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NOTE

Members may please note that the 48th AGM is being held through 
video conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) facility 
without the physical presence of the members  at a common venue. 
Please refer note No.32 of the Notice for the procedure.

Members may please note that they can vote by electronic voting 
(remote e-voting) on the resolutions set out in the Notice by logging on to  
www.evotingindia.com. The e-voting period begins on 15th December, 
2020 at 9 A.M. and ends on 17th December, 2020 at 5 P.M. Please refer 
Note No.32 of the Notice for procedure for remote e-voting.

TCP Limited
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the members of  
TCP Ltd (the Company) will be held through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM) facility, as per the following Schedule:

Day       :  	 Friday

Date	 :  	 18th December, 2020 – extended period

Time	 :  	 4.00 P.M.

Place	 :  	 Registered Office: ‘TCP SAPTHAGIRI BHAVAN’
                   No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar
                   Mylapore
                   Chennai - 600 004.

to transact the following business:

Ordinary business:

1.  	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited standalone and consolidated Financial Statements 
of the company for the financial year ended 31st March 2020 and the Reports of Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.  

2. 	 To declare a Dividend of Re.1/- per equity share of Rs.10/- each (10% of paid-up value of 
Rs.10/- per share) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 from out of the profits of the 
Company for previous financial years and remaining undistributed.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Shri A. S. Thillainayagam (DIN 00054102), who retires by 
rotation under section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment and in this regard to consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without 
modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT Shri A. S. Thillainayagam (DIN 00054102), Director, be and is hereby  
re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

4.	 To appoint a Director in place of Shri V. Sengutuvan (DIN 00053629), who retires by rotation 
under section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment and in this regard to consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without 
modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT Shri V. Sengutuvan (DIN 00053629), Director, be and is hereby  
re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

TCP LIMITED
Registered Office: No.4, Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U24200TN1971PLC005999
Telephone: 044 24991518; Fax: 044 24991777; E-mail: chem@tcpindia.com 

Website: www.tcpindia.com      

NOTICE OF 48TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Special Business
5.	 To ratify the appointment of Smt T. Amudha as General Manager – (Marketing – Chemical 

Division) of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 under section 188 (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 188 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, appointment of Smt T. Amudha as General Manager – (Marketing – Chemical 
Division) of the Company on a monthly remuneration of Rs.29,30,000/- with effect from  
1st June 2020, made under Section 188 (1) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
15 (3) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, made with the 
consent of the Board of Directors given by a resolution passed at a meeting of the Board be 
and is hereby approved and ratified.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to determine 
the terms and conditions of appointment including remuneration and its modification thereof 
from time to time.”

6.	 To ratify the appointment of Smt S. Arundati as General Manager – (Human Resources & 
Industrial Relations)  of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 under section 188 (3) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 188 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, appointment of Smt S. Arundati as General Manager – (Human Resources  
& Industrial Relations) of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020, made under Section 
188 (1) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 (3) of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, with the consent of the Board of Directors given by a 
resolution passed at a meeting of the Board be and is hereby approved and ratified.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to determine 
the terms and conditions of appointment including remuneration and its modification thereof 
from time to time.”

7.	 To ratify the appointment of Smt Padma as General Manager – (Marketing – Power Division) 
of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 under section 188 (3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 188 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, appointment of Smt Padma as General Manager – (Marketing – Power Division) of 
the Company with effect from 1st June 2020, made under Section 188 (1) (f) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 (3) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014, with the consent of the Board of Directors given by a resolution passed at a meeting of 
the Board be and is hereby approved and ratified.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to determine 
the terms and conditions of appointment including remuneration and its modification thereof 
from time to time.”
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8.	 To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial year ending 31st March, 
2021 and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable for the Financial year ending 31st March, 
2021 to Shri M. Kannan, CMA (Fellow Membership No.9167), Cost Accountant in practice, 
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company on 10th June, 2020 to conduct the audit 
of cost records of the Company for the Financial year ending 31st March, 2021, amounting 
to Rs.1,25,000/- (Rupees One lakh Twenty Five Thousand Only) plus the Goods and services 
tax as applicable and reimbursement of expenses incurred by him in connection with the 
aforesaid audit be and is hereby approved and confirmed.”

9.	 To approve the waiver of the recovery of the amount refundable to the Company by Shri  
V. R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director [DIN 00037524] and Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive 
Director [DIN 00037006] in respect of the managerial remuneration drawn in excess of the 
limits prescribed in section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year ended 
31st March 2020, in accordance with the provisions of section 197 (10)  of the Companies Act, 
2013 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) 
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions contained in section 197 (10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded for waiver of the recovery 
of the amount refundable to the Company by Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director 
[DIN 00037524] and Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director [DIN 00037006] in respect of 
the managerial remuneration drawn in excess of the limits prescribed by section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year ended 31st March 2020.”

	 By order of the Board of Directors
For TCP Limited 

Ravi Selvarajan
Company Secretary & DGM - Finance

Regd. Office:
TCP SAPTHAGIRI BHAVAN

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,
Mylapore, Chennai 600 004

Dated: 18th November 2020
Place: Chennai
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NOTES

1)	 The Registrar of Companies, vide letter dated 21-8-2020, has granted extension of time for 
holding the Annual General Meeting for the year 2019-20 by 3 months up to 31-12-2020 and 
the 48th Annual General Meeting is held during this extended period.

2)	 In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), vide 
its Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 April 13, 2020 and Circular 
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) has permitted 
to hold the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) for the calendar year 2020 through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of 
the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the “Act”), and MCA Circulars, the 48th AGM of the Company is being held through  
VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the 48th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the 
Company at No.4, Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004.

3)	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the 48th   AGM 
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not 
be a Member of the Company. Since this 48th AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA 
Circulars through VC / OAVM facility, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed 
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available 
for the 48th AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this 
Notice.

4)	 Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required 
to send a scanned copy (pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing’s body resolution /
authorization etc., authorizing their representative to attend the 48th AGM through VC / 
OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said resolution/authorization 
shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to srirampcs@
gmail.com and may also upload the same at www.evotingindia.com.

5)	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act and the SS-2 - Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings setting out the material facts in respect of the items under 
Special Business, viz., nos. 5 to 9 is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice. The Board 
of Directors, at their meetings held on 1st June, 2020, 26th June, 2020 and 18th November 
2020 while considering the items under Special Business, viz., nos. 5 to 9, also decided that 
the special businesses set out under items No.5 to 9, being considered unavoidable, be 
transacted at the 48th AGM of the Company.

6)	 At the 45th AGM held on 22nd September, 2017 Members approved the appointment of 
M/s NSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.010522S) as Auditors of the 
Company for a period of 5 years to hold office from the conclusion of 45th AGM till the 
conclusion of the 50th AGM, in the year 2022. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed 
for appointment of the auditors at the 48th AGM.

7)	 Notice is also given that pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 10 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Register of 
Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 
12th December 2020 to Friday, 18th December, 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose 
of ascertaining the eligibility of members for payment of dividend and for the purpose of the 
48th Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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8)	 All documents referred to in the Notice and in the accompanying Explanatory Statement 
are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days of the 
Company between 11 A.M. and 1 P.M. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

9)	 The facility of joining the 48th AGM through VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before 
and will be open up to 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the 48th  AGM, i.e., from 
3.45 p.m. to 4.15 p.m. and will be available for 1,000 members on a first-come first-served 
basis. This rule, however, would not apply to participation of shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding, promoters, institutional investors, directors, key and senior managerial 
personnel, auditors, etc.

10)	 In accordance with Rule 18 (1) and (2) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 and in compliance with the MCA Circulars No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 
No. 17/2020 April 13, 2020 and No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, Notice of the 48th AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members 
may note that the Notice and Annual Report for the Financial Year 2019-20 will also be 
available on the Company’s website www.tcpindia.com and on the website of CDSL (agency 
for providing the Remote e-voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) viz., www.
evotingindia.com

11)	Further, those Members who have not registered their email addresses may temporarily 
get themselves registered with Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Cameo 
Corporate Services Ltd by clicking the link: https://investors.cameoindia.com, fill in the details 
and submit for receiving the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2019-20 also containing the 
Notice of the AGM. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form may get their e-mail 
address registered or updated with their Depository Participant.

12)	Members attending the 48th AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

13)	The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on 11th December, 2020 being Cut-off Date.

14)	Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member after dispatch of 
the Notice, but holds shares as on the Cut-off Date for remote e-voting i.e. 11th December, 
2020, may obtain the login Id and password by sending a request to CDSL at www.
evotingindia.com or to the RTA at investors@cameoindia.com

15)	In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the 48th 
AGM.

16)	Since the 48th AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this 
Notice.

17)	The Statutory Registers will be available for inspection by the members at the registered 
office of the Company during business hours, except on holidays, up to and including the 
date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

18)	As required by Rule 18(3) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, 
members are requested to provide their e-mail address to facilitate easier and faster dispatch 
of Notices of the general meetings and other communications by electronic mode from time 
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to time. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses or those who wish 
to update a fresh e-mail address are requested to register their e-mail address with their 
Depository Participant (s) (DP) in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and 
with M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, in 
case the shares are held by them in physical form for receiving all communication including 
Annual Report, Notices, Financial Results etc. from the Company in electronic mode. 
Members are also requested to notify any change in their e-mail Id or bank mandates or 
address to the Company. In respect of holding in electronic form, members are requested to 
notify any change of e-mail ID or bank mandates or address to their Depository Participants.

19)	 In all correspondence with the Company, members are requested to quote their Folio 
Number in the case of shares held in physical form and their DP ID and Client ID Number in 
the case of shares held in the dematerialised form.

20)	As per the provisions of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 19 of the 
Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, facility for making nomination is 
available to the members in respect of the shares held by them in the Company. Members 
holding shares in their single name are advised to make a nomination in respect of their 
shareholding in the Company. The Nomination form (in Form SH-13) can be obtained 
from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Members holding shares in 
dematerialised form may approach their respective Depository Participant to avail and/or 
effect any change in the nomination facility.

21)	Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 
email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, 
bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held 
by them in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical 
form.

22)	Members are requested to note that as per Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
dividend which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the date of transfer 
to the company’s Unpaid Dividend Account are required to be transferred to the ‘Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)’ established by the Central Government, as and when 
they fall due. Rule 5 of the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Authority, Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules”) provides that the amounts required 
to be credited to the IEPF shall be remitted into the IEPF within a period of 30 days of such 
amounts becoming due to be credited to the IEPF.  Section 124 (6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 provides that all shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 
7 consecutive years or more shall be transferred by the Company to the IEPF Authority. 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, has notified the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (Authority, Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the 
Rules”) with effect from the 7th September 2016 providing for the transfer of the Equity 
Shares to the IEPF Authority in respect of which dividend has remained unpaid / unclaimed 
for seven consecutive years or more. Kindly note that the members can claim such dividend 
and shares from the IEPF Authority in accordance with Rule 7 of the Rules. Accordingly, 
dividend declared for the financial year 2012-13 and which still remains unclaimed shall be 
transferred to the IEPF within 30 days from the due date viz., 1st November, 2020. Similarly, 
shares on which dividend remains unclaimed for a period of 7 consecutive years from the 
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financial year 2012-13 shall be transferred to the IEPF Authority within 30 days from the due 
date viz., 27th September 2020. Members may kindly view at the Company’s website 
www.tcpindia.com at the web link ‘IEPF DISCLOSURES – IEPF DISCLOSURES FOR 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21’ the details of the dividend amount and the shares 
that will be transferred to the IEPF during the financial year 2020-21. Those members 
whose dividend amount and whose shares will be transferred to the IEPF during the 
financial year 2020-21 are requested to claim their unclaimed dividend amount from the 
Company as one last opportunity before they are transferred to the IEPF. The Company 
has already transferred unclaimed dividend declared for the financial year 2011-12 and earlier 
periods to the IEPF and the shares on which dividend remained unclaimed for a consecutive 
period of 7 years from the financial year 2011-12 to the IEPF Authority during the financial 
year 2019-20. Members may kindly view at the Company’s website www.tcpindia.com 
at the web link ‘IEPF DISCLOSURES – IEPF DISCLOSURES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
2019-20’ the details of the dividend amount and the shares that were transferred to the 
IEPF during the financial year 2019-20.  

23)	The payment of Dividend, upon declaration by the shareholders at the 48th Annual General 
Meeting, will be paid within 30 days from the date of declaration, to those members whose 
name appears in the Company’s Register of Members as on 11th December, 2020, the 
cut-off date, after giving effect to all valid share transfers in physical form lodged with the 
Company before the closing hours on Friday, the 11th December, 2020, the cut-off date. 
In respect of shares held in dematerialised form, the dividend will be payable on the basis of 
beneficial ownership details furnished by The National Securities Depository Ltd (NSDL) and 
The Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

24)	Members may please note that dividends declared and paid by the Company, to a 
shareholder who is resident in India, are liable for Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) at the rate 
of 7.5% (if paid on or before 31st March 2021) and at 10% thereafter. However, no TDS will be 
deducted if the aggregate amount of dividend paid by the Company to a shareholder does 
not exceed Rs.5000/- . It may also be noted that TDS will not be deducted from the dividend 
if the recipient of the dividend furnishes a declaration in Form No.15 G (in the case of senior 
citizen it is Form No.15H) to the Company before the declaration of dividend to the effect 
that the tax on his total income will be nil.

25)	Members holding shares in physical form are advised to furnish, on or before 4th December, 
2020, particulars of their bank account, if not done already or if it is changed, to the Company, 
to incorporate the same in the dividend warrants/payment instruments.  In respect of cases, 
where the payments to the shareholders holding shares in dematerialised form are made 
by NECS, NEFT, dividend warrants/payment instruments, particulars of bank account 
registered with their depository participants only will be considered by the Company 
for printing the same on the dividend warrants/payment instruments. It may be noted 
that instructions, if any, already given by Members in respect of shares held in physical form 
will not be automatically applicable to the dividend paid on shares held in dematerialised 
form. The Company will not entertain any direct request from such members for deletion or 
change of such bank details.

26)	As per RBI Notification, with effect from 1st October 2009, the remittance of money through 
ECS is replaced by National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) and banks have been 
instructed to move to the NECS platform. In this regard, please note, if the members 
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have not provided to their DP the new bank account number, if any, allotted to them, after 
implementation of Core Banking System (CBS), credit of dividend through NECS to their old 
bank account number, may be rejected or returned by the banking system.

27)	For administrative convenience, an attempt would be made to consolidate multiple folios. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form in identical names and in the same order of 
names under multiple folios are requested to intimate the Company to consolidate their 
holdings in a single folio. 

28)	Members holding share certificates in physical form are advised to consider converting their 
holding to dematerialised form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares like 
possibility of loss of documents and bad deliveries and for ease of portfolio management 
which includes easy liquidity, since trading is permitted in dematerialised form only, electronic 
transfer, savings in stamp duty. Members may approach any Depository Participant directly 
for dematerialising their physical shares.

29)	Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit their Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) details to the Company. Members holding shares in demat form are requested 
to submit their PAN details to their Depository Participant with whom they are maintaining 
their Demat Account. PAN details registered will be useful as a password for remote e-voting 
facility.

30)	Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, provide that every company having not less than 1,000 
shareholders, shall provide to its members facility to exercise their right to vote at general 
meetings by electronic means. A member may exercise his right to vote at any general 
meeting by electronic means and company may pass shareholders’ resolutions by electronic 
voting system (remote e-voting) in accordance with the aforesaid provisions. The company 
has less than 1,000 shareholders but still the Company is providing to the shareholders the 
remote e-voting facility.

31)	The Board of Directors has appointed Shri P. Sriram, Practising Company Secretary 
(Membership No. FCS 4862), Chennai, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the electronic voting 
(e-voting) process in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Rules made there under 
in a fair and transparent manner and he has consented to act as such.

32)	Voting by remote e-voting or by e-voting system on the day of the 48th AGM:

	 The business set out in this Notice shall be conducted through electronic means by remote 
e-voting. ‘Remote e-voting’ means the facility of casting votes by a member using an electronic 
voting system from a place other than the venue of the 48th Annual General Meeting.

	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs Circulars No.14/2020 dated 8th April 2020, No.17/2020 dated  
13th April 2020 and No.20/2020 dated 5th May 2020, the Company is pleased to provide 
to its members the facility to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions set out in the 
Notice for the 48th Annual General Meeting by remote e-voting. Please note that only remote 
e-voting facility is provided. Since the AGM is held through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other 
Audio Visual Means (OAVM), the facility for voting through ballot paper shall not be made 
available at the meeting venue as members are not required to be physically present at the 
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AGM Venue. Members attending the meeting through VC / OAVM and who have not already 
cast their vote by remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through the e-voting system available during the 48th AGM.

	 For the purpose of remote e-voting, the Company has entered into an agreement with the 
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd (CDSL) for facilitating e-voting, as the authorised 
e-voting agency, to enable the shareholders to cast their votes electronically. The facility of 
casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as through the e-voting system on 
the day of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

	 The process and manner for remote e-voting, the time schedule and the time period 
during which votes may be cast by remote e-voting, details about the log-in ID and the 
process and manner for generating or receiving the password and for casting of vote 
in a secure manner:

	 I.  	 The procedure and instructions for the voting through electronic means are as 
follows:

	 (i)	 The e-voting period begins on 15th December, 2020 at 9 A.M. and ends on 
17th December, 2020 at 5 P.M. During this period members of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-
off date of 11th December, 2020 may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the 
vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he shall not be entitled to change it 
subsequently or cast the vote again.

	 (ii)	 The Company provides only remote e-voting facility and those members who 
have not cast their vote by remote e-voting by 17th December, 2020 at 5 P.M. 
shall not be entitled to vote by remote e-voting thereafter but may vote through 
the e-voting system on the day of the AGM.

	 (iii)	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com 
	 (iv)	 Click on Shareholders.
	 (v)	 Now Enter your User ID
 		  a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
		  b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
		  c.	 Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 		

	 registered with the Company.
			   (OR)
			   Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you  

	 can log-in at https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login  
	 credentials. Once you successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services,  
	 click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

	 (vi)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
	 (vii)	 If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 

and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to 
be used.
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	 (viii)	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both Demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders)
•	 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/

Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by the Company / RTA in the PAN field or contact 
the Company / RTA.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 
your Demat account or in the company records in order to login.

Dividend 
Bank Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your Demat 
account or in the company records for the said Demat account 
in order to login.
•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or the 

company please enter the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

	 (ix)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
	 (x)	 Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, members holding shares in Demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their 
login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be 
also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through 
CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

	 (xi)	 For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for 
e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

	 (xii)	 Click on the EVSN of TCP Ltd.
	 (xiii)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the 

same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. 
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies 
that you dissent to the Resolution.

	 (xiv)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details.

	 (xv)	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.  
A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, 
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

	 (xvi)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to 
modify your vote.

	 (xvii)	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” 
option on the Voting page.
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	 (xviii)	 If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID 
and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details 
as prompted by the system.

	 (xix)	 Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-voting available 
for android based mobiles. The m-voting app can be downloaded from Google 
Play Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while 
voting on your mobile.

	 (xx)	 Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians
•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) and 

Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 
themselves as Corporates.

•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the 
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

•	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using 
the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link 
the depository account(s) / folio numbers on which they wish to vote.

•	 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast 
their vote.

•	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in 
PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

•	 Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant 
Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; binnymills@
bmlindia.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in 
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Process for those Shareholders whose e-mail addresses are not registered 
with the Depositories for obtaining the Login credentials for e-voting for the 
Resolutions proposed in this Notice:
1.	 For Physical shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio 

No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front 
and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by email to chem@tcpindia.com or  
agm@cameoindia.com 

2.	 For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 
digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master  
or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card)  
to chem@tcpindia.com or agm@cameoindia.com.
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The procedure and instructions for the voting through the e-voting system 
on the day of the 48th AGM are as follows:
(i)	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the 48th AGM is same as the 

instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
(ii)	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the 48th AGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system available during the 48th AGM.

(iii)	If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during 
the 48th AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the 
meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders 
shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 
available only to the shareholders attending the meeting through VC/OAVM 
facility.

(iv)	Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible  
to attend the 48th AGM, however, they will not be eligible to vote at the  
48th AGM.

Instructions for shareholders attending the 48th AGM through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM):
1.	 Shareholders will be provided with a facility to attend the 48th AGM through 

VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the 
same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by 
using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available 
in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

2.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for 
better experience. 

3.	 Further, shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a 
good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets 
or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/
Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches. 

5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions on the 
items of business to be transacted at the 48th AGM, during the 48th the AGM, 
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number to chem@tcpindia.com. The Speaker registration shall commence 
from Tuesday, the 8th December 2020 at 9 A.M. and shall close on Friday, 
the 11th December, 2020 by 5 P.M. The Company reserves the right to 
restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the 
48th AGM.

6.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only 
be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the 48th AGM.
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7.	 The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the 48th AGM but 
have queries may send their queries in advance, mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number to chem@
tcpindia.com  The queries may be sent during the period commencing from 
Tuesday, the 8th December 2020 at 9 A.M. and shall close on Friday, the  
11th December, 2020 by 5 P.M. These queries will be replied to by the 
company suitably by email.

II. 	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting 
from the e-Voting System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under 
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact  
Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or  
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542).

III.	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may 
be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

IV.	 Persons who have acquired shares of the Company and became members 
of the Company after the despatch of the Notice for the 48th Annual General 
Meeting may obtain their login ID and password from the RTA viz., Cameo 
Corporate Services Ltd or write to them at investor@cameoindia.com by 
mentioning Unit: TCP Ltd and the Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID.

V. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile 
details of the folio which may be used for sending future communications.

VI. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the 
paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 11th December, 2020, 
being cut-off date.

VI.	 For the purpose of ensuring that members who have cast their votes through 
remote e-voting do not vote again at the 48th Annual General Meeting, the 
scrutiniser shall have access, after the closure of period for remote e-voting  
and before the start of the 48th Annual General Meeting, the details relating to 
members, such as their names, folios, number of shares held and such other 
information that the scrutiniser may require, who have cast votes through 
remote e-voting but not the manner in which they have cast their votes.

VII. The scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the 48th 
Annual General Meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter, 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two 
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than 
three days of conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated scrutiniser’s report 
of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman who shall 
countersign the same. The Chairman shall declare the result of the voting 
forth with.

VIII.	The results declared along with the report of the scrutiniser shall be placed 
on the Company’s website www.tcpindia.com and on the website of CDSL 
immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman. 
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INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SS 2 - SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL 
MEETINGS IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT / APPOINTMENT 
AT THE ENSUING 48th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Name of Director Shri A.S. Thillainayagam Shri V. Sengutuvan
Date of Birth 17th February, 1952 7th December 1986
DIN 00054102 00053629

Date of Appointment 26th October, 2018 1st June 2009

Expertise in specific 
functional areas

Experience in management and 
administration functions

Experience in management and ad-ministration 
functions

Directorship held in 
other companies

1.	 The Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Ltd.
2.	 Photon Enterprises Private Ltd
3.	 Egmore Benefit Saswatha Nidhi Limited
4.	 Axon Property Developers Private Ltd.

1.	 Binny Mills Ltd
2.	 Mohan Breweries and Distilleries (AP)  
       Private Ltd
3.	 Indian Members Benefit Fund Ltd
4.	 TCP Hotels Private Ltd
5.	 Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Ltd.
6.	 The Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Ltd
7.	 Transworld Pharma (Madras) Private Ltd.
8.	 The Narashimha Mills Private Ltd.
9.	 Thirumalai Realtor Private Ltd
10.	Thirubalaa Realtors Private Ltd
11.	Mookambika Realtors Private Ltd
12.	Matrix Foundations Private Ltd
13.	Cosy Realtors Private Ltd
14.	Transworld Beverages Private Ltd
15.	Transworld Medical Corporation Ltd
16.	Transworld Drugs and Pharmaceuticals  
       Private Ltd
17.	Axiom Therapeutics Private Ltd
18.	Ramachandra Pharmaceuticals Private Ltd

Membership/ 
Chairmanship of 
Committees of other 
public companies 
(includes only Audit 
Committees and
Stakeholders’ 
Relationship 
Committee)

Nil Nil

Shareholdings in the 
Company

1,35,000 Equity shares 3,60,664 Equity shares

Disclosure of inter-
se relationships 
between directors 
and Key Managerial 
Personnel

He is the father of Dr. Shri T. Bhasker Raj 
and Shri T. Yeswanth, Directors of the 
Company.

He is the son of Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, 
Managing Director and brother of  
Mrs. V. Samyuktha, Woman Director.
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Annexure to the Notice
Explanatory Statement setting out material facts in respect of the Special Business

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)
Item No.5: To ratify the appointment of Smt T. Amudha as General Manager – (Marketing – 
Chemical Division) of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 under section 188 (3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
Particulars furnished pursuant to Explanation 3 to Rule 15(3) of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014:
Name of the related party: Smt T. Amudha

Name of the director or key managerial personnel who is related Nature of relationship
Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director Brother
Shri A.S. Thillainayagam, Director Husband 
Shri Dr. T. Bhasker Raj, Director Son
Shri T. Yeswanth, Director Son

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or arrangement:
Smt. T. Amudha was appointed as General Manager – (Marketing – Chemical Division) of the 
Company with effect from 1st June 2020 with the consent of the Board of Directors by way of a 
resolution passed at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 1st June 2020. The appointment 
was approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 1st June 
2020.
The remuneration payable will be a consolidated monthly salary of Rs.29,30,000/-. Any change 
or modifications in the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, shall be 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and shall be approved by the 
Board of Directors.
The appointee shall function as the head of the Marketing function of the Chemical Division 
of the Company and shall report to the Managing Director of the Company. The duties and 
responsibilities include expanding the marketing base (including exports) of the products of the 
Chemical Division of the Company. The expansion of marketing base shall be by way of widening 
the area of supply and increasing the customer base. She shall make recommendations to the 
Managing Director regarding the credit worthiness of the customers identified by her. She shall 
also follow up with the customers for recovery of the payments due from them.
Any other information, relevant or important for the members to take a decision to the 
proposed resolution:
Smt T. Amudha is one of the promoters of the Company holding 6,400 shares. Her husband 
Shri A.S. Thillainayagam, is also one of the promoters of the Company holding 1,35,000 shares 
and also a director of the Company. She is the daughter of late Shri NPV Ramasamy Udayar, 
Industrialist. Her husband is also an Industrialist. Her sons are entrepreneurs. Thus, hailing from 
Industrialists and entrepreneurs family she has acumen in marketing strategies. She has been 
associated with the Company, as a promoter, from 7th November, 1986, when the Company was 
disinvested in favour of the Udayar Group. As such, she has information and knowledge about 
the functioning of the Company, its products, its customers, its marketing operations and the 
marketing network.
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Post COVID-19 Pandemic has thrown up a situation where the Company needs to focus more 
on its marketing strategies in order to sustain and grow in the business. In such a situation, 
appointment of a senior person, for heading the marketing function of the Chemical Division of the 
Company, has become imperative. It is in these circumstances that the proposed appointment 
is made.

The Board of Directors recommend the passing of the resolution set out in item no.5 of the Notice 
as Ordinary Resolution. Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director (Brother of the proposed 
appointee), Shri A.S. Thillainayagam, Director (Husband of the proposed appointee), Shri  
Dr. T. Bhasker Raj and Shri T. Yeswanth, Directors, (Sons of the proposed appointee) shall be 
deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. None of the other Directors 
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.

Item No.6: To ratify the appointment of Smt S. Arundati as General Manager – (Human 
Resources & Industrial Relations) of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 under 
section 188 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars furnished pursuant to Explanation 3 to Rule 15(3) of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014:

Name of the related party: Smt S. Arundati

Name of the director or key managerial personnel who is related Nature of relationship

Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director Brother

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or arrangement:

Smt. S. Arundati was appointed as General Manager – (Human Resources & Industrial Relations) 
of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 with the consent of the Board of Directors by 
way of a resolution passed at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 1st June 2020. The 
appointment was approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held 
on 1st June 2020.

The remuneration payable will be a consolidated monthly salary of Rs.29,30,000/-. Any change 
or modifications in the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, shall be 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and shall be approved by the 
Board of Directors.

The appointee shall function as the head of the Human Resources & Industrial Relations function 
of the Company and shall report to the Managing Director of the Company. The duties and 
responsibilities include framing of suitable Human Resources Policy for the Company matching 
the position with the remuneration, promotion, increment in salary and benefits. She shall be 
responsible for complying with all labour related statutory compliances. She shall be responsible 
for recruitment and training of suitable employees of the Company. She shall be responsible for 
maintaining cordial labour relations and industrial relations with the workers and employees. She 
shall also be responsible for all liasoning activities with the Government authorities and other 
regulators in connection with labour and industrial issues.
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Any other information, relevant or important for the members to take a decision to the 
proposed resolution:
Smt S. Arundati is one of the promoters of the Company holding 50,450 shares. She is the 
daughter of late Shri NPV Ramasamy Udayar, Industrialist. Her husband is also an Industrialist. 
Thus, hailing from Industrialists family she has acumen in Human Resources & Industrial 
Relations function’s strategies. She has been associated with the Company, as a promoter, from 
7th November, 1986, when the Company was disinvested in favour of the Udayar Group. As 
such, she has information and knowledge about the functioning of the Company, its products, 
its employees’ policy on recruitment, training and welfare.

Post COVID-19 Pandemic has thrown up a situation where the Company needs to focus 
more on its Human Resources & Industrial Relations function’s strategies in order to sustain 
and grow in the business. The Company has about 400 employees in its Chemical and Power 
Divisions and in the Wind mill Division, comprising senior management personnel, middle level 
personnel and junior level personnel, comprising highly skilled and technical personnel and 
other experienced personnel. In such a situation, appointment of a senior person, for heading 
the Human Resources & Industrial Relation function of the Company, has become imperative. It 
is in these circumstances that the proposed appointment is made.

The Board of Directors recommend the passing of the resolution set out in item no.6 of the Notice 
as Ordinary Resolution. Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director (Brother of the proposed 
appointee), shall be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. None of 
the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives 
are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.

Item No.7: To ratify the appointment of Smt Padma as General Manager – (Marketing – 
Power Division) of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 under section 188 (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
Particulars furnished pursuant to Explanation 3 to Rule 15(3) of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014:
Name of the related party: Smt. Padma

Name of the director or key managerial personnel who is related Nature of relationship
Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director Brother
Shri C. Saravanan Son

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or arrangement:
Smt. Padma was appointed as General Manager – (Marketing – Power Division) of the Company 
with effect from 1st June 2020 with the consent of the Board of Directors by way of a resolution 
passed at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 1st June 2020. The appointment was 
approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 1st June 2020.

The remuneration payable will be a consolidated monthly salary of Rs. 13,80,000/-. Any change 
or modifications in the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, shall be 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and shall be approved by the 
Board of Directors.
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The appointee shall function as the head of the Marketing function of the Power Division of 
the Company and shall report to the Managing Director of the Company. The duties and 
responsibilities include expanding the revenue base of the Power Division of the Company, 
expanding the Group Captive Consumers (GCC) base, negotiating the rate of supply of power 
to different categories of GCC, follow up with the GCC for recovery of the payments due from 
them, negotiate with the TANGEDCO and other regulatory authorities in all matters related to the 
supply of Power from the Power Plant to the GCC.
Any other information, relevant or important for the members to take a decision to the 
proposed resolution:
Smt. Padma is one of the promoters of the Company holding 51,300 shares. She is the daughter 
of late Shri NPV Ramasamy Udayar, Industrialist. Her son is an entrepreneur. Thus, hailing from 
Industrialists and entrepreneurs family she has acumen in marketing strategies. She has been 
associated with the Company, as a promoter, from 7th November, 1986, when the Company was 
disinvested in favour of the Udayar Group. As such, she has information and knowledge about 
the functioning of the Company, its products, its customers, its marketing operations and the 
marketing network.
Post COVID-19 Pandemic has thrown up a situation where the Company needs to focus more 
on its marketing strategies in order to sustain and grow in the business. In such a situation, 
appointment of a senior person, for heading the marketing function of the Power Division of the 
Company, has become imperative. It is in these circumstances that the proposed appointment 
is made.
The Board of Directors recommend the passing of the resolution set out in item no.7 of the Notice 
as Ordinary Resolution. Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director (Brother of the proposed 
appointee) and Shri C. Saravanan, Director, (Son of the proposed appointee) shall be deemed 
to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. None of the other Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.
Item No.8: To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial year ending 
31st March, 2021
The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on 26th June 2020 on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, had approved the appointment and remuneration of 
Shri M. Kannan, CMA (Fellow Membership. No.9167), Cost Accountant in practice, to conduct 
the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March 2021 at a 
remuneration of Rs.1,25,000/- plus the Goods and Services tax as applicable and reimbursement 
of expenses incurred by him for the audit, subject to approval by shareholders.
In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a) 
(ii) of The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor has to be approved by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, the Members are 
requested to approve the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 
31st March 2021 as set out in the Resolution, for the aforesaid services to be rendered by him.
The Board of Directors recommend the passing of the resolution set out in item no.8 of the 
Notice as an Ordinary Resolution. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company or their respective relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed resolution.
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Item No.9: To approve the waiver of the recovery of the amount refundable to the Company 
by Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director [DIN 00037524] and Shri V. Rajasekaran, 
Executive Director [DIN 00037006] in respect of the managerial remuneration drawn in 
excess of the limits prescribed in section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the 
financial year ended 31st March 2020, in accordance with the provisions of section  
197(10) of the Companies Act, 2013
The second proviso to section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the remuneration 
payable to Managing Director and Whole-Time Director by a Company, in any financial year, shall 
not exceed 10% of the net profits of the Company for the financial year. The net profits being 
computed in the manner laid down in section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Section 197(3) provides that where in any financial year, a company has no profits or has 
inadequate profits, the company shall pay remuneration to Managing Director and Whole-
Time Director only in accordance with the provisions and limits laid down in Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
If the remuneration paid exceeds the limit of 10% of the net profits of the company then it shall 
be construed that the company has inadequate profits. If the company has incurred a loss then 
it shall be construed that the company has no profits for payment of remuneration.
For the Financial year 2019-20, the Company has incurred a loss and thus the Company has 
no profits for payment of managerial remuneration and thus the managerial remuneration paid 
by the Company exceeds the limit of 10% of the net profits of the Company. The Company 
has already availed the limits set out in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 for payment 
of managerial remuneration for the preceding three financial years, viz., 2015-16, 2016-17 and 
2017-18.
Section 197(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that if any director draws or receives, 
directly or indirectly, by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit prescribed in 
this section or without approval required under this section, he shall refund such sums to the 
company, within two years or such lesser period as may be allowed by the company and until 
such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the company.
Section 197 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Company shall not waive the 
recovery of any sum refundable to it under sub section (9) unless approved by the company by 
special resolution within two years from the date the sum becomes refundable. 
The remuneration actually drawn by the managerial personnel viz. Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, 
Managing Director and Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director, during the financial year ended 
31st March 2020 is as follows:

Name
Salary, allowances 
and commission

Rs.

Provident Fund  
and Gratuity 

Rs.

Perquisites
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Shri V.R. Venkataacha-lam 2,58,49,960 16,56,000 23,57,596 2,98,63,556

Shri V. Rajasekaran 2,01,39,960 15,26,400 1,65,43,167 3,82,09,527

Total 4,59,89,920 31,82,400 1,89,00,763 6,80,73,083
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The limit of 10% of the Net Profit of the Company computed in accordance with the provisions of 
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

Computation of limit on Managerial Remuneration				              Rs.

Net (Loss) as per Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31-3-20	 (6,98,74,353)
Add: Managerial remuneration deducted from gross profit	 6,80,73,083
	 ---------------------
Net (Loss) for computation of ceiling on Managerial remuneration	 (18,01,270)
	 ---------------------
10% of the Net Profit – ceiling on Managerial Remuneration	 Nil
Managerial Remuneration actually drawn	 6,80,73,083
(the Managerial Remuneration does not include actuarial valuation
of gratuity and actuarial valuation of Earned Leave Entitlements in
respect of the managerial personnel which are not actually drawn)
Managerial Remuneration drawn in excess of the limits	 (6,80,73,083)

The payment of remuneration to the managerial personnel have been approved by the 
shareholders as follows:
Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director – at the 46th Annual General Meeting held on  
26th October 2018 (held during extended period); and

Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director – at the 44th Annual General Meeting held on  
23rd September 2016.

During the financial year 2019-20 there was no profit to meet the limit of 10% of Net Profit for 
payment of the managerial remuneration.  The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs.6.99 crores 
during the year as compared to a net profit of Rs.15.63 crores in the previous year.  The Revenue 
from operations fell from Rs.360.84 crores in the previous year to Rs.249.60 crores in the current 
year. However, the Company has made operating profit of Rs.6.28 crores during the year viz., 
Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and Tax. The loss in the year was due to falling business 
demand which are beyond the control of the managerial personnel. The managerial personnel 
have done everything, to the best of their ability, to improve the Net Profit. The general economic 
slowdown prevailing all over the Country has affected the Company’s business also. Considering 
the economic situation and the past track record of the managerial personnel in improving the 
business and the net profit of the Company, year after year, the excess remuneration drawn by 
the managerial personnel during the year may be waived from recovery from the managerial 
personnel by the shareholders by passing a Special Resolution to this effect. 

I	 GENERAL INFORMATION:
	 1. 	 Nature of Industry:
		  Manufacture of Sodium Hydrosulphite, Liquid Sulphur di-oxide and Sulphoxilates and  
		  generation of electricity (both conventional and non-conventional methods).

	 2.	 Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:
		  Not Applicable (The Company is an existing Company)

	 3.	 In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project 	
	 	 approved by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus:
		  The Company is an existing and hence not applicable.
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	 4.	 Financial performance based on given indicators:

Particulars Financial Year (Rs. In lakhs)
2017-18 * 2018-19 * 2019-20 *

Total Income 29,630.01 36,353.11 25,561.19
Profit after Tax      739.95      1,064.12 (411.34)

	 *The figures are on Ind AS based financial statements.

	 5.	 Foreign Investments or collaborations, if any:
		  The company does not have any foreign investments or foreign collaborations.

II	 INFORMATION ABOUT THE MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
	 Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director [DIN 00037524]
	 1.	 Background details:
		  Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, a graduate, is the son of the famous Industrialist Late Shri  

N.P.V. Ramasamy Udayar. He has been functioning as the Managing Director of the 
company from 6th November 1986. Under his able guidance and leadership the company 
has diversified successfully into businesses like Power generation (both Conventional 
energy and Non-Conventional energy) apart from the Chemical manufacturing unit at 
Karaikudi.

		  Shri V.R. Venkataachalam is having rich experience in managing diverse businesses and 
industrial units, Hospitals, Medical Colleges and Public Charitable Trusts.  He is a director 
in several companies.

		  He is the Chancellor of the famous Sri Ramachandra Medical College and Research 
Institute, the first Private Medical College in the state of Tamil Nadu having Deemed 
University Status. Under his excellent leadership, the Institution has seen tremendous 
progress and stands as a role model for any similar institution of its type.

	 2.	 Past remuneration:
		  Rs. 2,33,06,318/- (For the Financial year 2016-17)
	 3.	 Recognition or awards:
		  Nil
	 4.	 Job profile and his suitability:
		  Shri V.R. Venkataachalam being the managing director of the company provides 

leadership and strategic guidance to the company.
	 5.	 Remuneration paid:	

Year Salary
Rs.

Perquisites
Rs.

Commission
Rs.

Total
Rs.

2017-18 1,83,45,000 24,50,680 40,00,000 2,47,95,680
2018-19 1,98,75,000 44,44,529 40,00,000 2,83,19,529
2019-20 2,35,05,960 23,57,596 40,00,000 2,98,63,556
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	 6. 	 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile 
of the position and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be w.r.t. the 
country of his origin):

		  The remuneration payable have been benchmarked with the remuneration being drawn 
by similar positions in the companies of comparable size engaged in the business of 
manufacture of similar chemicals and power generation and has been considered and 
approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and by the Board of Directors.

	 7.	 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any:

		  Shri V.R. Venkataachalam has no pecuniary relationship, directly or indirectly, with the 
company except to the extent of his remuneration and shareholding in the company. He 
is not related to any managerial personnel of the company.

	 Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director [DIN 00037006]

	 1.	 Background details:

		  Shri V. Rajasekaran is a B.E. (Chemical) Engineer and holds post-graduation qualification 
in M. Tech and M.B.A. He has been functioning as the Executive Director of the company 
from 1st March 1992. He has been in the service of the company from its initial years 
and has rich experience in managing the business affairs of the company. He has 
been in the forefront in the implementation of the power projects and in the expansion 
of the chemical business of the company. He is currently heading the manufacturing / 
generation operations of the company. Under his able leadership the company has grown 
tremendously. His rich technical knowledge and experience has helped the company to 
implement innovative strategies in its operations. He has about 43 years of experience in 
managing Chemical, Power and Textile businesses.

	 2.	 Past remuneration:

		  Rs. 2,18,60,411/- (For the Financial year 2016-17)

	 3.	 Recognition or awards:
		  Nil

	 4.	 Job profile and his suitability:
		  Shri V. Rajasekaran being the executive director of the company looks after Production 

and manufacturing, Power generation, domestic and international marketing, corporate 
administration, strategic planning and development, regulatory approvals, R&D and 
development of new projects.

	 5.	 Remuneration paid:	
Year Salary

Rs.
Perquisites

Rs.
Commission

Rs.
Total
Rs.

2017-18 1,69,80,000 32,64,654 - 2,02,44,654

2018-19 1,84,80,000 52,39,068 - 2,37,19,068

2019-20 2,16,66,360 1,65,43,167 - 3,82,09,527
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	 6.	 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile 
of the position and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be w.r.t. the 
country of his origin):

		  The remuneration payable have been benchmarked with the remuneration being drawn 
by similar positions in the companies of comparable size engaged in the business of 
manufacture of similar chemicals and power generation and has been considered and 
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors.

	 7.	 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any:

		  Shri V. Rajasekaran has no pecuniary relationship, directly or indirectly, with the company 
except to the extent of his remuneration in the company. He is not related to any 
managerial personnel of the company.

III	 OTHER INFORMATION:

	 1.	 Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:

		  About 70% of the Company’s turnover comes from the Power Division operations of 
the Company. The Power Sector in Tamil Nadu is going through a crisis phase due to 
economic slowdown. The demand for power from industrial units are falling. Due to this 
the supply exceeds the demand. As a result of stiff competition in the sale of power, the 
selling price becomes a crucial factor. The Company has to sell power at a reduced rate 
in order to sustain in the business. On the other hand, cost of coal has increased together 
with the freight and handling charges. Due to this the profit margins have eroded leading 
to loss to meet the managerial remuneration limit of 10% of the Net Profits.

		  The Company has to meet a major portion of its coal requirements by way of imports. As 
a result, international trade factors also affect the supply position including the price of 
supply. The foreign exchange fluctuations in the payments made for the purchase also 
has impacted the cost of generation of power.

	 2.	 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:
		  The company has taken measures to improve its business performance. The company 

has firmed up plans to boost sales, both in the domestic and exports market. The company 
has identified new export buyers and new export markets. The company is negotiating 
with the consumers for a revision in the selling price of the electricity sold to them. The 
company has also taken measures to control costs and to improve overall efficiency.

	 3.	 Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:
		  The company has been striving to perform at its optimum capacity utilisation. The 

company would strive to further increase its production capabilities in all possible areas. 
The company would reorient its product mix in accordance with the market demand in 
order to increase productivity and improve profits.

IV  	DISCLOSURES:
	 The company, being an Unlisted Company, is not required to attach a report on Corporate 

Governance to the Directors’ Report. However, the disclosures on remuneration package 
of each managerial person and details of all elements of remuneration package such as 
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salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, etc., details of fixed component and 
performance linked incentives along with the performance criteria, Service contracts, notice 
period, severance fees, Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued 
at a discount as well as the period over which accrued and over which exercisable are 
mentioned, to the extent applicable, at appropriate places, in the Directors’ Report attached 
to the financial statement for the information of shareholders.

The Board of Directors and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their respective 
meetings held on 18th November 2020 had approved the proposal, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders by way of a Special Resolution, for waiver of the recovery of refund of the excess 
remuneration drawn by the managerial personnel due to circumstances in which the loss has 
been incurred which are beyond the control of the managerial personnel.
Board of Directors recommend the passing of the resolution set out as item no.9 in the Notice 
as a Special Resolution.  Shri V. Sengutuvan, Director and Smt V. Samyuktha, Director, who are 
son and daughter, respectively, of Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, shall be deemed to be interested 
in the passing of this resolution.  None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company or their respective relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, 
in the proposed resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For TCP Limited 

Ravi Selvarajan
Company Secretary & DGM - Finance

Regd. Office:
TCP SAPTHAGIRI BHAVAN

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,
Mylapore, Chennai 600 004

Dated: 18th November 2020
Place : Chennai
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IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS- GREEN INITIATIVE IN 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its Circular No.17/2011 dated 21st April 2011 
and Circular No.18/2011 dated 29th April 2011 has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate 
Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by the companies, thereby allowing companies 
to serve documents to its members through electronic mode.

Your Company believes in Environment conservation for sustainable development and therefore 
your Company supports MCA in this initiative.

Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to intimate their e-mail address to 
the Company/Share Transfer Agent and members holding shares in demat form can intimate 
their e-mail address to their Depository Participant, to enable the company, in future, to send 
documents such as notices of general meetings, annual reports and other shareholder’s 
communication to all the members through e-mail.

Members may also note that in case any member makes a request to the Company for the 
physical copy of the documents sent by e-mail, it shall be sent by post.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Forty Eighth Annual Report and the Audited 
Accounts of your company for the financial year ended 31st March 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS – HIGHLIGHTS 
Stand-alone Financial Results:
The Stand-alone Financial Results for the year ended 31st March 2020 is as follows:

Based on Ind AS financial statements Year ended 
31st March 2020

Year ended 
31st March 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sales 		  24,868.90		  35,923.58
Other operating revenue		  91.70		  161.28
Other income		  600.59		  268.25
Total income		  25,561.19		  36,353.11
Profit before Interest & Depreciation		  628.27		  2,913.18
Less: Interest	 716.91		  734.16	
         Depreciation	 610.10	 1,327.01	 615.68	 1,349.84
Profit before tax		  (698.74)	 	 1,563.34
Less: Current tax		  -		  603.00
         Tax relating to earlier years		  -		  91.59
         Deferred tax credit (Net)		  (291.64)		  (64.02)
Profit after tax – Profit for the year		  (407.10)		  932.77
Other Comprehensive Income for the year		  (4.24)		  131.35
Total Comprehensive Income for the year		  (411.34)		  1,064.12

Retained Earnings – opening balance		  20,361.80		  19,858.37
Comprehensive Income for the year		  (407.10)		  932.77
Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income		  (4.24)		  131.35
Transfer to General Reserve		  -		  (500.00)
Dividend paid		  (50.32)		  (50.32)
Tax on dividend paid		  (10.34)		  (10.34)
Retained Earnings – balance at the end of the year		  19,889.80		  20,361.80

Company’s Key Financial Ratios		  2020		  2019
		  Rs.		  Rs.
Earnings per share		  (8.09)		  18.54
Dividend per share (out of previous years profits)		  1		  1
Return on Net worth 		  Nil		  2%
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DIVIDEND

Your Directors have pleasure in recommending a dividend of Re.1/- per Equity Share (10% of paid-
up value of Rs.10/- per share). The quantum of dividend outgo on this account is Rs. 50.32 lakhs. 
As the Company has not earned profits during the year, the dividend is being recommended for 
declaration from out of the profits of the Company for previous financial years and remaining 
undistributed in accordance with section 123 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not made entry in the books of accounts for the proposed dividend in 
accordance with Standard No.10 of Ind AS 10 – Events after the Reporting Period – which 
provides as follows:

‘The liability to pay a dividend shall be recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised 
and is no longer at the discretion of the entity, which is the date:…………

(b) When the dividend is declared, eg, by management or the board of directors, if the jurisdiction 
does not require further approval.

Hence, the dividend declared at the 48th Annual General Meeting will be recognised in the 
accounts for the financial year 2020-21.

The dividend declared for the financial year 2018-19 along with the applicable Dividend 
Distribution Tax on it is recognised in the Retained Earnings in the financial year 2019-20.

Members may please note that dividends distributed during the financial year 20-21 is taxable 
in the hands of the recipient of dividend. Members may also note that dividends declared and 
paid by the Company, to a shareholder who is resident in India, are liable for Tax Deducted at 
Source (TDS) at the rate of 7.5% (if paid on or before 31st March 2021) and at 10% thereafter. 
However, no TDS will be deducted if the aggregate amount of dividend paid by the Company to 
a shareholder does not exceed Rs.5000/-.  Members are requested to read Note No.24 of the 
Notice of the 48th Annual General Meeting in this regard.

SEGMENTWISE / PRODUCTWISE PERFORMANCE

PRODUCTION

I.  	 CHEMICALS  

	 Sodium Hydrosulphite
	 During the year your company had produced 9,980 MT of Sodium Hydrosulphite as against  
	 11,809 MT in the previous year, a decrease by about 15%. This is due to fall in demand  
	 caused by cheaper Chinese imports into India and also in the international markets.
	 Liquid Sulphur Dioxide
	 During the year your Company had produced 9,241 MT of Liquid Sulphur Dioxide as against  
	 9,941 MT in the previous year, a decrease by about 7%.    
	 Sulphoxilates
	 There was no production of Sulphoxylates during the year as in the previous year.
II.	 RECOVERY SALTS 
	 The trisalt production was 2,729 MT as against 2,297 MT in the previous year.    
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III. 	ELECTRIC POWER  
	 Electric Power Generation
	 Your company had generated 3,180 lakh units of electricity as against 4,657 lakh units last 

year from the Thermal Power Plant. The average Plant Load Factor during the year under 
review is 56.80%. The Wind Mills had generated 209 lakh units of electricity as against 242 
lakh units in the previous year. The lower generation is due to lower demand for power from 
the consumers. 

SALES 
I.	 CHEMICALS 
	 Sodium Hydrosulphite	
	 During the year your company had made sale of 9,867 MT of Sodium Hydrosulphite as 

against 11,777 MT in the previous year. The domestic sales is 8,349 MT, the Export sales is 
1,518 MT. During the year the Company was facing threat of cheaper Chinese Imports into 
India. This has affected our normal selling price of the product. The profit margins will have 
to be shrunk to meet the competition. This has also resulted in lower offtake of the products.

	 The domestic sales, which was 8,081 MTs in the previous year, increased to 8,349 MTs in 
the current year. The major chunk of sales is to textile units. We also make supplies to Paper 
and Pharma Industries. It is expected that the diversified application of the products in the 
paper and pharma industries will contribute to increased sales volume in the current year. 
The increase in demand for the product in the south Tamil Nadu region is a new beginning 
for the growth in sales. Your company is preparing to expand its market base in the current 
year.

	 Meanwhile, the Company is also expecting an announcement from the Government of India 
imposing anti-dumping duty on the Chinese imports into India. If this comes into force, the 
Company’s products will have an edge over the Chinese products in terms of selling price 
and will result in more offtake of the Company’s products by the customers.

	 Liquid Sulphur Dioxide
	 The sale of Liquid Sulphur Dioxide during the year was 907 MT as against 518 MT in the 

previous year. During the year, the Company was able to penetrate into the southern markets, 
which had contributed to increased sales.

	 Sulphoxylates
	 There were no sale of Sulphoxilates during the year as in the previous year. This is due to no 

production during this year.  
	 Recovery salts
	 The sale of Recovery salts was 2,662 MT during the year as against 2,066 MT in the previous 

year. The Company had identified few buyers who use the product for their indigenous 
production. We are exploring the possibility of selling in new markets in the North India, 
where its consumption is of substantial quantity.

II.	 POWER 
	 During the year your Company had sold 2,730 lakh units of electricity as against 4,022 lakh 

units in the previous year from the Thermal Power Plant. The Wind mills had exported 207 
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lakh units of electricity as against 239 lakh units in the previous year. The lower sales is due 
to fall in demand from consumers.

	 The Company sells power under Group Captive Consumer arrangement. The power 
generated up to 58 MW were sold to Group Captive Consumers and the balance power 
generated was towards captive consumption. The Group Captive Consumers arrangement 
Rules stipulate that the Group Captive Consumers should hold at least 26% share holding in 
the Company. As at 31st March 2020 there are about 81 Group Captive Consumers holding 
about 26.16% equity shareholding in the Company.

EXPORTS
During the year, your Company had exported 1,518 MTs of Sodium Hydrosulphite as against 
3,672 MTs during the previous year, a decrease by 58.66%. 

The highlight of this year’s performance is that we had exported 510 MTs of Sodium Hydrosulphite 
to Turkey, (33% of total exports), 324 MTs to Taiwan, (21% of total exports), 306 MT to the United 
States of America, (20% of total exports), 158 MTs to Pakistan and 112 MTs to Sri Lanka. The 
exports to these countries have decreased during the current year, when compared with the 
previous year.

This year Sodium Hydrosulphite was exported to 8 countries spread across all the regions like 
the United States of America, Europe, South Asia, Africa (including Egypt), Far East, Middle East, 
and South America. This year we had exported to Colombia, a new market, for the first time.

The international market has transformed itself into a price-sensitive market where price of the 
product determines the securing of the orders. Price has to be adjusted, frequently, in keeping 
with the global price. We continue to face tough competition from China – the World’s largest 
producer and exporter of Sodium Hydrosulphite, which constantly reduces its export price. 
Fluctuation in exchange rates, Strengthening of Rupee against US Dollar and frequent increase 
in shipping freight by the shipping lines are the other factors which had an adverse effect on the 
export profit margin. Despite severe competition, we could get reasonably good price for the 
products, especially from our regular buyers. 

There are buyers who prefer the Company’s products primarily due to its quality and timely 
shipments which are favourable factors to the Company.

In the current year also the Company would be focusing on improving the quality of the product 
and reducing the production cost, wherever possible, in order to offer a competitive price to the 
buyers and for retaining the existing markets, identifying new buyers in the existing markets and 
penetrating into new markets in order to enhance the volume of exports.

CREDIT RATING
The Credit rating assigned to the Company as at 11th July 2019 are as follows:

 Credit Rating Agency Credit Facilities Rating
 CRISIL Bank borrowings – Long term CRISIL BBB / Stable
 CRISIL Bank borrowings – Short term CRISIL A3+
 CRISIL Fixed Deposits FA-/ Stable

The rating shall remain valid up to 31st March 2020.
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DEPOSITS
The Company has stopped renewing / accepting deposits from the public from 1st October 
2016. The Company has been repaying the deposits from the public on their maturity date. All 
outstanding deposits from the public has matured for repayment by the end of September 2019. 
As such, the Company has no outstanding public deposits other than unclaimed deposits.
Deposits repaid during the year ended 31st March 2020:

Type of deposit
Principal amount 

Repaid  
         Rs.                        

Number of 
deposits 
repaid

Amount paid 
on maturity    
             Rs.

Fixed deposit 3,86,03,000 306 3,86,03,000
Cumulative deposit 94,94,000 116 1,25,82,175
Total 4,80,97,000 422 5,11,85,175

Unclaimed deposits as at 31st March 2020:

Type of deposit
Principal 
amount  

           Rs.                        
Number of 
deposits

Interest accrued 
and unclaimed             
                Rs.

 Amount payable 
on maturity                                  

                Rs.
Fixed deposit 41,76,000 62 3,88,895 41,76,000
Cumulative deposit 16,22,000 31 5,79,675 22,01,675
Total 57,98,000 93 9,68,570 63,77,675

Deemed Deposits from Promoter- members outstanding as at 31st March 2020:

Type of deposit
Principal 
amount  
      Rs.                        

Number of 
deposits

Amount payable 
on maturity    
               Rs.

Fixed deposit – from Promoter 
-  members considered as deemed 
deposits

4,68,15,956 6 4,68,15,956

Total Deposits 4,68,15,956 6 4,68,15,956

There were no deposits, which were claimed but not paid by the Company. Appropriate steps are 
being taken continuously to obtain the depositors’ instructions so as to ensure repayment of the 
unclaimed deposits in time. All unclaimed deposits are public deposits.

As per Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, the credit rating agency CRISIL Limited vide its 
letter TCPLMTD/216453/FD/071956392 dated 11th July 2019, has assigned a rating of ‘CRISIL 
FA-/Stable’ (pronounced “F A minus rating with stable outlook”) for the Fixed Deposits accepted 
by the Company, indicating ‘Adequate Safety’. This rating indicates that the degree of safety 
regarding timely payment of interest and principal is satisfactory.

The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Amendment Rules, 2018, which came into effect from 
15th August 2018, has removed the provisions relating to deposit insurance. Hence, there is no 
requirement for deposit insurance.

The Company has deposited with the Indian Overseas Bank, in a separate bank account, called 
as Deposit Repayment Reserve Account, an amount of not less than 20% of the amount of its 
deposits maturing during the financial year 2020-21 in accordance with the requirements of 
section 73(2) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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The Company’s outstanding deposits are within the limits laid down in Rule 3(4) of the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 viz., 10% of the aggregate of the paid up share capital 
and free reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2019 in the case of deposits accepted from 
the members and 25% of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the 
Company as at 31st March 2019 in the case of deposits accepted from the public. The Company 
will accept deposits within the aforesaid limits.

The deposits accepted by the company from its members and the public are unsecured deposits.

ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The novel Corona virus outbreak originated in Wuhan province of China. The World Health 
Organization (WHO) declared novel Corona virus as pandemic on 11th March, 2020. The 
untamed spread of the COVID-19 virus, over the past few months, has caused unimaginable 
crisis across the globe. Never before, in recent history, has the world encountered a challenge of 
this dimension that has so profoundly impacted almost every human on this planet.

There is no doubt that the task ahead will be daunting. Though the Indian economy will face 
multi-dimensional challenges in the short-term, it is certainly reassuring that our country remains 
one of the major economies in the world with huge potential.

This strength of conviction and hope in the country’s future is also premised in the laudable 
manner that India has fought back. The Government has played an admirable role in dealing 
with the health crisis, extending timely relief to the vulnerable and in announcing the Rs.20 lakh 
crores special package. The wide ranging reforms, accelerated infrastructural development and 
policy interventions to shape competitive ‘Make in India’ supply chains, will augur well for the 
economy and is expected to spur growth over time. The transformative reforms announced in 
the agricultural sector have also been path-breaking. They hold the promise to foster a new era 
of growth for farmers and rural India that comprise nearly half of the country’s workforce, besides 
triggering a virtuous cycle of consumption, investment and employment.

OUTLOOK AND OPPORTUNITIES                                                                                                                                             

The pandemic has caused unprecedented disruption to economic activity the world over, 
propelling the already slowing global economy into a recessionary shock. World output is 
estimated to contract by 5% to 7%. Estimates for the Indian economy indicate a substantial 
contraction in the year 2020-21, with several sectors experiencing severe demand destruction. 
This is likely to shrink livelihood opportunities considerably, causing a severe stress on consumer 
spends.

Such a situation, undoubtedly, calls for a strategic response focusing on the vigorous pursuit of 
value-creating opportunities, leveraging your Company’s institutional strengths on the one hand 
while driving thrift, cost optimization and conservation of cash, on the other hand.

It is widely believed that the future will belong to purposeful enterprises who will constantly 
build competitiveness with agility and innovation to respond speedily to external shocks and 
emerge even stronger from the crisis. It is this compelling strategic response that drives your 
Company to strengthen organizational vitality in a manner that it is future-ready, fosters extreme 
competitiveness while contributing to the vision of an Atmanirbhar Bharat.
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Your Company’s agility, compassionate action and adaptive capabilities during these trying 
times demonstrates its enduring strengths. Undoubtedly, the short-term will be immensely 
challenging as the crisis takes its course. However, the Board of Directors remain optimistic that 
your Company’s focus on top strategic priorities will continue to create a larger value for the 
Company and its stakeholders.

Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic and the subsequent Lockdown on the business of the 
Company:

On 24th March, 2020 the Government of India had announced a 21 day lockdown which was 
further extended by 19 days and 14 days across the Country to contain the spread of the Corona 
Virus. The nationwide lockdown had lasted for 68 days till 31st May 2020. The pandemic has 
severely affected the business of the Company. Since, both the Chemical and the Power Plants 
are continuous process units, they were permitted to reopen after the initial lockdown period. 
However, the Plants could not operate at their full capacities due to labour shortage and lack of 
demand for the products. The fall in demand in consumption is continuing even now and the 
Company is facing difficulty of a liquidity crunch due to lower sales. The textiles units, which 
are the main customers for the Company’s products, have either shut-down their business or 
operating at a very low capacity due to lack of demand for their products. This has severely 
affected the offtake of our products from the Chemical Unit. Similarly, there was low demand for 
power as most of the units are either not functioning or shut down their business or operating at 
less than their normal capacities. This has affected the power generation resulting in lower sale 
of power.

The Company is hopeful that the economy will soon revive to at least the Pre-Covid -19 levels 
which will be immensely helpful to revive the business activities of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board:

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of professionals from varied disciplines. The day 
to day management of the affairs of the Company is entrusted with Executive Director (Whole 
time director), headed by the Managing Director, who functions under the overall supervision, 
direction and control of the Board of Directors of the Company.

As of 31st March, 2020 the Company’s Board comprised of twelve directors. The Board comprises 
of an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, with ten directors being 
Non-Executive directors. The Non-Executive Directors, thus, constitute more than 50% of the 
Board. There are four Independent Directors, who exercise independent judgement in the 
Board’s deliberations, discussions and decisions. 

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director and Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director are the 
two executive directors on the Board. Shri V.R. Venkataachalam is the Chairman of the Board and 
accordingly the Chairman of the Company.

There were changes in the composition of the Board during the year. The changes that have 
occurred in the composition of the Board during the financial year ended 31st March 2020 is 
given in the Paragraph ‘The details of directors or key managerial personnel who were appointed 
or have resigned during the year’.
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Directors retiring by rotation and seeking reappointment:

Shri A. S. Thillainayagam (DIN 00054102), Director, is retiring by rotation at this Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Shri V. Sengutuvan (DIN 00053629), Director, is retiring by rotation at this Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Term of office of Managing Director and Executive Director:

At the 46th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 26th October 2018 – held during 
the extended period, Shri V.R. Venkataachalam was reappointed as Managing Director of the 
Company for a further term of five years from 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2023.

At the 44th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 23rd September 2016, Shri  
V. Rajasekaran was reappointed as the Executive Director of the Company for a further term of 
five years from 1st March 2017 to 28th February 2022. 

Approval of the shareholders is sought under section 197 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
waiver of recovery of the amount refundable to the Company towards the remuneration drawn 
by the managerial personnel in excess of the prescribed limits:

The second proviso to section 197 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the remuneration 
payable to Managing Director and Whole-Time Director by a Company, in any financial year, shall 
not exceed 10% of the net profits of the Company for the financial year. The net profits being 
computed in the manner laid down in section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Section 197(3) provides that where in any financial year, a company has no profits or has 
inadequate profits, the company shall pay remuneration to Managing Director and Whole-
Time Director only in accordance with the provisions and limits laid down in Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

If the remuneration paid exceeds the limit of 10% of the net profits of the company then it shall 
be construed that the company has inadequate profits.

For the Financial year 2019-20, the Company has no profits and hence the managerial 
remuneration paid by the Company exceeds the limit of 10% of the net profits of the Company. 
The Company has already availed the limits set out in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
for payment of managerial remuneration for the previous three financial years, viz., 2015-16, 
2016-17 and 2017-18.

Section 197(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that if any director draws or receives, 
directly or indirectly, by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit prescribed in 
this section or without approval required under this section, he shall refund such sums to the 
company, within two years or such lesser period as may be allowed by the company and until 
such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the company.

Section 197 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Company shall not waive the 
recovery of any sum refundable to it under sub section (9) unless approved by the company by 
special resolution within two years from the date the sum becomes refundable.

The remuneration actually drawn by the managerial personnel viz. Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, 
Managing Director and Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director, during the financial year ended 
31st March 2020 is as follows:
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Name
Salary, allowances 
and commission

Rs.

Provident Fund 
and Gratuity

Rs.
Perquisites

Rs.     
Total
Rs.

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam 2,58,49,960 16,56,000 23,57,596 2,98,63,556
Shri V. Rajasekaran 2,01,39,960 15,26,400 1,65,43,167 3,82,09,527
Total 4,59,89,920 31,82,400 1,89,00,763 6,80,73,083

The limit of 10% of the Net Profit of the Company computed in accordance with the provisions of 
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

Computation of limit on Managerial Remuneration	 Rs.
Net (loss) as per Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31-3-20	 (6,98,74,353)
Add: Managerial remuneration deducted from gross profit	 6,80,73,083
	 ---------------------
Net Profit for computation of ceiling on Managerial remuneration	 (18,01,270)
	 ---------------------
10% of the Net Profit – ceiling on Managerial Remuneration	 Nil
Managerial Remuneration actually drawn	 6,80,73,083
(the Managerial Remuneration does not include actuarial valuation
of gratuity and actuarial valuation of Earned Leave Entitlements in
respect of the managerial personnel which are not actually drawn)
Managerial Remuneration drawn in excess of the limits	 (6,80,73,083)
The payment of remuneration to the managerial personnel have been approved by the 
shareholders as follows:
Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director - at the 46th Annual General Meeting held on          
26th October 2018 (held during extended period); and
Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director - at the 44th Annual General Meeting held on                 
23rd September 2016.
During the financial year 2019-20 there was no profit to meet the limit of 10% of Net Profit for 
payment of the managerial remuneration.  The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs.6.99 crores 
during the year as compared to a net profit of Rs.15.63 crores in the previous year.  The Revenue 
from operations fell from Rs.360.84 crores in the previous year to Rs.249.60 crores in the current 
year. However, the Company has made operating profit of Rs.6.28 crores during the year viz., 
Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and Tax. The loss in the year was due to falling business 
demand which are beyond the control of the managerial personnel. The managerial personnel 
have done everything, to the best of their ability, to improve the Net Profit. The general economic 
slowdown prevailing all over the Country has affected the Company’s business also. Considering 
the economic situation and the past track record of the managerial personnel in improving the 
business and the net profit of the Company, year after year, the excess remuneration drawn by 
the managerial personnel during the year may be waived from recovery from the managerial 
personnel by the shareholders by passing a Special Resolution to this effect.
The Board of Directors and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their respective 
meetings held on 18th November 2020 had approved the proposal, for waiver of recovery of 
the amount refundable to the Company towards the remuneration drawn by the managerial 
personnel in excess of the prescribed limits, due to circumstances in which no profits has been 
made which are beyond the control of the managerial personnel, subject to the approval of 
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the shareholders by way of a Special Resolution at the ensuing 48th Annual General Meeting 
in accordance with the provisions of section 197(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Board of 
Directors recommend the passing of the Special Resolution.

Board Meetings:

During the year there were 8 Board Meetings held on 4-4-19, 23-4-19, 28-5-19, 8-7-19, 30-7-19, 
11-11-19, 29-1-20 and 25-2-20. All the directors attended the Board Meetings.

Independent Directors’ meeting:

For the year 2019-20 the Independent Directors were not able to hold their meeting without the 
presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the management due to the Pandemic 
and Lockdown situation. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its General Circular 
No.11/20 dated 24th March 2020, in Para IV, has stated that for the financial year 2019-20, if the 
independent Directors of a company have not been able to hold such a meeting, the same shall 
not be viewed as a violation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were changes in the composition of the Audit Committee 
during the year. Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 30th July 2019, reconstituted the 
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee comprises of the following members:
Shri M. Parthasarathi,	 Chairman of the Committee
Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy; and 
Shri Chaniyilparampu Nanappan Ramchand

All the members of the Audit Committee are Independent Directors. The members of the 
committee are financially literate with ability to read and understand the financial statement. The 
Chairman of the committee has related financial management expertise by way of experience in 
financial management in his field of business. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary for 
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shall have such powers, duties and responsibilities and shall function in 
such manner as provided in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Audit Committee Meetings:

During the year there were 4 Audit Committee Meetings held on 28-5-19, 30-7-19, 11-11-19 and 
29-1-20. All the members of the Audit Committee attended the meetings. 

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism 
for its directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances. The Vigil 
Mechanism is monitored by the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism provides for adequate 
safeguards against victimization of directors / employees who avail of the mechanism and also 
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. It also 
ensures standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board is constituted in accordance with 
Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. There were changes in the composition of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the year. Board of Directors, at their meeting 
held on 30th July 2019, reconstituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following members:
Shri M. Parthasarathi,	 Chairman of the Committee
Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy; and
Shri Ashwath Naroth;

All the members of the Committee are Independent directors. The Company Secretary acts as 
the secretary for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall carry out such functions as laid down in 
section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings:

During the year there were 3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting held on 28-5-19, 
8-7-19 and 30-7-19. All the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee attended 
the meetings.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board is constituted in accordance with Section 
178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. There were changes in the composition of the Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee during the year. Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 30th July 
2019, reconstituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

The following Non-Executive directors are the members of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee:

Shri A.S. Thillainayagam	 Chairman of the Committee
Shri  Dr. T. Bhasker Raj; and
Shri C. Saravanan

The Chairman of the Committee is a Non-executive director. The company secretary acts as the 
secretary for the committee.

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted to consider and resolve the 
grievances of shareholders and other security holders of the Company. The Committee shall 
expedite the process of share transfers. The Board has delegated the powers of registration of 
share transfers to the committee. Any major transfers approved at the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee meetings are placed before the Board.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings:

During the year no Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings were held 



T C P LIMITED

39

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors, at its meeting held 
on 30th May 2014, had constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. There was 
a change in the composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee during the year. 
Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 30th July 2019, reconstituted the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

As required by section 135 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the CSR Committee comprises of the 
following three directors viz.

Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Chairman 
Shri V. Rajasekaran, member; and
Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy, member

Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy is an independent director on the Board.

The CSR Committee shall carry out such functions as laid down in section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings:

During the year there was one Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) Meeting held 
on 4-4-19. All the members of the CSR Committee attended the meeting. 

DISCLOSURES AS PER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 
8(5) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Extract of Annual Return:

The extract of Annual Return in the Form No. MGT 9 is annexed to the Directors’ Report as 
Annexure-I. In accordance with the provisions of section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the extract of the Annual Return will be placed on the website of the Company at the web address 
www.tcpindia.com

In accordance with the proviso Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 is placed on the website of the 
company at the web link www.tcpindia.com 

Number of meetings of the Board:

During the year there were 8 Board Meetings held on 4-4-19, 23-4-19, 28-5-19, 8-7-19, 30-7-19, 
11-11-19, 29-1-20 and 25-2-20. All the directors attended the Board Meetings. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the confirmation and explanations 
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
i)	 That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, for the year ended 31st March 2020, the 

applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation for 
material departures, if any;

ii)	 That such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent were made so as to give a true and fair view of 
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the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year ended 31st March 2020 
and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

iii)	 That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safe guarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv)	 That the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2020 had been prepared on a going 
concern basis. and;

v)	 Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws had been 
devised and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Directors:

The Board has received the declaration from all the Independent Directors as per the requirement 
of section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that all the Independent 
Directors meet the criterion of independence as mentioned in section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV 
to the Act and the Code of Conduct for Directors and senior management personnel.

Company’s policy on Directors appointment and remuneration:

In accordance with the requirements of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee has put in place a policy for appointment of directors taking into 
consideration the qualification and wide experience of the directors in the fields of chemical, 
power generation, manufacturing, finance, administration and legal apart from compliance of 
legal requirements of the Company. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also laid down remuneration criteria for the 
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees in the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy. It has also laid down, in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the evaluation criteria 
for performance evaluation of the directors including independent directors. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure II and is also uploaded on 
the Company’s website www.tcpindia.com.

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark or disclaimer made in the Auditors’ Report and in the Secretarial Audit Report:

The Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders for the year under review states that the Managerial 
Remuneration paid by the Company for the year ended 31st March 2020 to the extent of  
Rs. 6,80,73,083/- has been paid in excess of the limits prescribed under section 197 read 
with Schedule V of the Act. However, the Company is in the process of getting the approval of 
shareholders for waiving the recovery of excess remuneration.

Explanation to the observation:

The Company is seeking the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing 48th Annual General 
Meeting by way of special resolution under section 197 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
waiver of recovery of the amount refundable to the Company by the managerial personnel, 
towards remuneration drawn in excess of the specified limits. This is set out as item no.9 of the 
Notice of the 48th Annual General Meeting and in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the 
Notice.
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The Secretarial Audit Report to the Shareholders for the year under review states that: 

(a)	The company could not fully spend the eligible amount on Corporate Social Responsibility 
Measures…….. However, the company is advised to spend the remaining CSR amount early 
in accordance with the Act and rules made thereunder.

	 Explanation to the observation:

	 The explanation to this observation is given in the para “Reasons for not spending the amount 
that is to be spent during the financial year 2019-20” under the main heading of ‘Corporate 
Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the year’.

(b)	In view of the absence of profit, the payment of managerial remuneration needs to be 
regulated as per the provisions of the Act.

	 Explanation to the observation:

	 The Company is seeking the approval of the shareholders under section 197 (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, by way of a special resolution at the ensuing 48th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies  
Act, 2013:

There are no loans made, guarantees given or security provided during the year, under section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The aggregate value of investments made by the Company under section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 is within the limits prescribed in the section.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in section 188(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013:

There are no contracts or arrangements entered into with the Related Parties referred to in section 
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended 31st March 2020.

The Company has entered into a rental agreement with TCP Hotels Private Ltd, [CIN: 
U55101TN2001PTC046673] its subsidiary Company, for using on rental basis, a portion of the 
building space of the subsidiary company, in Chennai, for the purpose of Company’ business, 
on payment of a monthly rental amount of Rs.3 lakhs. The transactions were entered into in 
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and were in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. A Rental Agreement was entered into with TCP Hotels 
Private Ltd – Subsidiary Company. The Rental Agreement is for a period of 5 years at a time and 
can be renewed for further periods with the mutual consent of the parties to the agreement.

The Company has entered into a rental agreement with Nagoorar Enterprises Private Ltd, [CIN: 
U24110TN2007PTC065076] a company in which a director of the Company is a member, for 
using a portion of its premises as godown space, on a monthly rental of Rs.1,30,000/-. A Rental 
Agreement was entered into between the Companies. The transactions were entered into in 
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and were in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The aforesaid transactions do not exceed the limit of 10% or more of the turnover of the Company 
as provided in Rule 15 (3) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and 
as such they are not material transactions.
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Justification for entering into the aforesaid contracts:

The contracts were entered into as the Company is assured of a commitment in terms of service 
provided and its sustainability would benefit the Company in the long run. 

The Related Party Transactions (RPT’s) entered into by the Company are given in the Notes 
on Accounts attached to the Financial Statements.  These transactions were entered into in 
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and were in compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially significant related party 
transactions made by the Company with the Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or 
other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large.

Related Party Transactions referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 that have 
occurred after the end of the financial year but before the date of the Directors’ Report:

Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 1st June 2020, has appointed the following related 
parties to an office or place of profit in the Company, with effect from 1st June 2020, carrying a 
monthly remuneration exceeding Rs.2,50,000/- (Rupees two lakhs fifty thousand only):

Name of the Related Party and designation 	 Monthly Remuneration Rs.
1.	 Smt. T. Amudha, 
	 General Manager – (Marketing – Chemical Division)	 29,30,000 
2.	 Smt. S. Arundati
	 General Manager – (Human Resources & Industrial Relations)	 29,30,000
3.	 Smt. Padma
	 General Manager – (Marketing – Power Division)	 13,80,000

The aforesaid appointments were considered and recommended for appointment by the Board 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The aforesaid appointments are made subject to the approval and ratification of the shareholders 
at the ensuing 48th Annual General Meeting.

Justification for the appointments:

Smt. T. Amudha:

Smt. T. Amudha is one of the promoters of the Company holding 6,400 shares. Her husband 
Shri A.S. Thillainayagam, is also one of the promoters of the Company holding 1,35,000 shares. 
She is the daughter of late Shri NPV Ramasamy Udayar, Industrialist. Her husband is also an 
Industrialist. Her sons are entrepreneurs. Thus, hailing from Industrialists and entrepreneurs 
family she has acumen in marketing strategies. She has been associated with the Company, as a 
promoter, from 7th November, 1986, when the Company was disinvested in favour of the Udayar 
Group. As such, she has information and knowledge about the functioning of the Company, its 
products, its customers, its marketing operations and the marketing network.

Post COVID-19 Pandemic has thrown up a situation where the Company needs to focus more 
on its marketing strategies in order to sustain and grow in the business. In such a situation, 
appointment of a senior person, for heading the marketing function of the Chemical Division of the 
Company, has become imperative. It is in these circumstances that the proposed appointment 
is made.
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Smt S. Arundati:

Smt S. Arundati is one of the promoters of the Company holding 50,450 shares. She is the 
daughter of late Shri NPV Ramasamy Udayar, Industrialist. Her husband is also an Industrialist. 
Thus, hailing from Industrialists family she has acumen in Human Resources & Industrial 
Relations function’s strategies. She has been associated with the Company, as a promoter, from 
7th November, 1986, when the Company was disinvested in favour of the Udayar Group. As 
such, she has information and knowledge about the functioning of the Company, its products, 
its employees’ policy on recruitment, training and welfare.

Post COVID-19 Pandemic has thrown up a situation where the Company needs to focus 
more on its Human Resources & Industrial Relations function’s strategies in order to sustain 
and grow in the business. The Company has about 400 employees in its Chemical and Power 
Divisions and in the Wind mill Division, comprising senior management personnel, middle level 
personnel and junior level personnel, comprising highly skilled and technical personnel and 
other experienced personnel. In such a situation, appointment of a senior person, for heading 
the Human Resources & Industrial Relation function of the Company, has become imperative. It 
is in these circumstances that the proposed appointment is made

Smt. Padma:

Smt Padma is one of the promoters of the Company holding 51,300 shares. She is the daughter 
of late Shri NPV Ramasamy Udayar, Industrialist. Her son is an entrepreneur. Thus, hailing from 
Industrialists and entrepreneurs family she has acumen in marketing strategies. She has been 
associated with the Company, as a promoter, from 7th November, 1986, when the Company was 
disinvested in favour of the Udayar Group. As such, she has information and knowledge about 
the functioning of the Company, its products, its customers, its marketing operations and the 
marketing network.

Post COVID-19 Pandemic has thrown up a situation where the Company needs to focus more 
on its marketing strategies in order to sustain and grow in the business. In such a situation, 
appointment of a senior person, for heading the marketing function of the Power Division of the 
Company, has become imperative. It is in these circumstances that the proposed appointment 
is made.

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director, Shri A.S. Thillainayagam, Shri Dr. T. Bhasker Raj, 
Shri T. Yeswanth and Shri C. Saravanan, Directors, shall be deemed to be interested in the 
aforesaid appointment.

The statement of RPT’s is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board on a quarterly basis. 
Omnibus approval was obtained for the transactions of repetitive nature. None of the directors 
have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company except for the payment of 
sitting fees. 

The particulars of RPT’s to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure VI

The state of the Company’s affairs:

The state of the Company’s affairs is explained in the paragraph ‘Segment wise/ product wise 
performance’ in the Directors’ Report.
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The amount, if any, carried to reserves:
The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves.
The amount, if any, which it recommends, should be paid by way of dividend:
The Board is recommending payment of dividend of Re.1/- per equity share at 10% on the paid 
up equity shares of the Company from out of the profits of the Company for previous financial 
years and remaining undistributed in accordance with section 123 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 
2013.
Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of report:
The Company has made appointments of three General Managers with effect from 1st June 
2020. The details about the appointment are given under the disclosure – ‘Particulars of contracts 
or arrangements with related parties referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013’.
The additional financial commitment due to the above appointment during the year 20-21 is 
Rs.7.24 crores.
There are no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company, that have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which 
the financial statements relate and the date of report viz., for the period from 31st March 2020 to 
18th November, 2020.
Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 
The information pursuant to section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as follows:
(A)   Conservation of Energy:

a.	 The Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are conducted in the manner 
whereby optimum utilization and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved. As 
the impact of measures taken for conservation and optimum utilisation of energy are not 
quantitative, its impact on cost cannot be ascertained accurately.

b.	 The Company’s chemical plant engaged in manufacturing operations utilises the 
alternative sources of energy from the Biomass based power and power generated from 
windmills.

c.	 No specific investment has been made on energy conservation equipment.
(B)	 Technology absorption:
	 The Company’s products are manufactured by using in-house know how and no outside 

technology is being used for manufacturing activities. Therefore no technology absorption 
is required. The Company constantly strives for maintenance and improvement in quality 
of its products and entire Research & Development activities are directed to achieve the 
aforesaid goal.

(C)	 Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:
	 During the year the foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as follows:
	 Foreign exchange earnings:
	 Foreign exchange earnings from exports Rs.9.69 crores
	 Foreign exchange outgo:
	 Foreign exchange outgo on payments for imports Rs.15.87 crores.
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A statement indicating development and implementation of a Risk Management Policy for 
the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion 
of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company:
The Company has framed a Risk Management Policy to identify, communicate and manage 
material risks across the organisation. The policy also ensures that responsibilities have been 
appropriately delegated for risk management. Key Risks and mitigation measures are as follows:

Risk Management is an ongoing process. The Board of directors has approved a Risk 
Management Policy. The Board has defined the roles and responsibilities of persons identified for 
implementation of the Risk Management Policy and has delegated the monitoring and reviewing 
of the Risk Management Plan to the Executive Director.

The Company maintains Risk Register listing all the risks likely to affect the achievement of the 
business goals set by the Company. Significant risks are identified using a scoring methodology. 
The process of Risk Management includes Risk Identification and Categorization, Risk Description 
and Risk Mitigation. The Risk Owners are accountable to the Executive Director for identification, 
assessment, aggregation, reporting and monitoring of the risks related to their respective areas 
/ functions.

The key implementation areas for Risk Mitigation are as follows:
For Finance function:					     Treasury operations and fund transfers
For Computer systems and Data maintenance		  Data Security
For purchase and sales functions			   Credit Administration 

The Company is exposed mainly to Credit Risk, Market risk (competition), interest rate risk and 
Cash Management Risk in its business operations. The experience in the selling functions acquired 
by the Company over the years, has helped to identify the credit worthiness of its customers for 
giving credit and has helped to mitigate the Credit Risk. The Company has maintained its quality 
in supply and services to its customers and has earned a brand image for quality supplies and 
by this process manages to retain existing customers and bring in new customers. In this way, it 
tries to mitigate the Market risk. The Company’s debt servicing is a record without any default in 
the timely payment of interest for its working capital borrowings. The Company’s profitability and 
financials are improving every year. This strength of the Company helps to mitigate the interest 
rate risk. The Company’s fund operations are centralized at the Head Office. The requirement 
of funds from the units are met from the Head Office. The spending at the units are monitored 
by the accounts personnel at the Head office on a periodical basis. The Cash operations at 
the Head Office is subjected to multi-level checks and controls, the internal auditor periodically 
verifies physical cash balance and in this way the Company mitigates the Cash Management 
Risk.

The details about the policy developed and implemented by the Company on Corporate 
Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the year:

The objective of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company is to continue 
to contribute towards social welfare projects for the benefit of the general public and in particular 
to the people living around the areas where the company’s manufacturing / generation activities 
are located. The CSR Policy focuses on providing facilities for imparting education, vocational 
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training, and promoting health care to economically weaker and under privileged sections of 
the society and to do such other activities as may be permissible under section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.
The Company has spent the following amount on CSR activities during the year 2019-20:
Amount to be spent on CSR activities for the year ended 31-3-20	 : 	 Rs. 38,59,404
Amount spent on the CSR activities during 2019-20 	 : 	 Rs. 18,92,702
Amount unspent 	 : 	 Rs. 19,66,702
The nature and the amount spent on the CSR activities during the year 2019-20 is given in 
the Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year 2019-20 given in Annexure III to the 
Directors’ Report.
Reasons for not spending the amount that is to be spent during the financial year  
2019-20: During the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Company has to spend an amount 
of Rs. 38,59,404/- being the 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the three 
immediately preceding financial years as provided in section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The CSR Committee has identified and approved various CSR Projects to be implemented in a 
phased manner. During the year, the Company had spent Rs. 18,92,702/- on CSR activities, in 
pursuance of its CSR Policy. The amount unspent is Rs. 19,66,702/-. 
During the financial year 2019-20, the Company was engaged in identification of CSR activities 
and identifying Implementing agencies, laying basic framework for the CSR Projects. Due to 
falling demand the Company’s business got affected. As a result, the Company has incurred 
loss during the financial year 2019-20. The Company’s cash flows were hampered. This has 
severely affected the spending on the CSR activities during the year. The Company will ensure 
achievement of the target spend on CSR activities in a phased manner in the Financial years to 
follow.
Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year 2019-20: Pursuant to Rule 8(1) of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Annual Report on CSR 
activities, to be included in the Directors’ Report for the financial year 2019-20 in the format 
prescribed as Annexure to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, 
is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure - III and is also uploaded on the Company’s 
website www.tcpindia.com
Performance and financial position of the Subsidiary Company viz., TCP Hotels Private Ltd:
The Company has one Subsidiary Company viz., TCP Hotels Private Limited. The Company 
holds 96% equity shareholding in its subsidiary company.
TCP Hotels Private Ltd:
TCP Hotels Private Ltd derives rental income from letting out its property and this is the only 
source of income for the company for the year ended 31st March 2020. For the year ended 31st 
March 2020, the company has earned income of Rs.42 lakhs and had reported Net profit (before 
tax) of Rs.37,97,714 (Rs. 36,86,891 in the previous year) and Net profit (after tax) of Rs.30,67,070 
(Rs. 29,46,891 in the previous year). TCP Ltd is paying rent to TCP Hotels Private Ltd, pursuant 
to a rental agreement entered into with TCP Hotels Private Ltd, for taking on rent, a portion of the 
premises owned by TCP Hotels Private Ltd and the amount of such rent paid during the year is 
Rs.36 lakhs. This is a related party transaction in the ordinary course of business and made on 
arm’s length basis. The omnibus approval of the Audit Committee has been obtained for entering 
into this routine transaction.
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The annual report and annual accounts of the subsidiary company viz., TCP Hotels Private Ltd 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2020 and the related detailed information shall be made 
available to shareholders of the Company seeking such information. The annual accounts of the 
subsidiary company shall also be kept for inspection by shareholders at the Registered Office 
of the company and the Subsidiary Company. The annual accounts of the subsidiary company 
shall be available on the website of the Company viz., www.tcpindia.com.

The financial summary or highlights:

The financial summary is given in the Paragraph ‘Financial Results - Highlights’ in the Directors’ 
Report.

The change in the nature of business, if any:
There is no change in the nature of business.

The details of directors or key managerial personnel who were appointed or have resigned 
during the year:
Details of Directors who were appointed or have resigned during the year are as follows: 

Appointment of Directors:

The following Additional Directors, in the category of Non-Independent Directors, were appointed 
at the Board Meeting held on 8th July 2019:

	 1.  Shri Dr. T. Bhasker Raj (DIN: 02724086);  
	 2.  Shri T. Yeswanth (DIN: 01236613); and   
	 3.  Shri C. Saravanan (DIN: 01038557)

The following Additional Directors, in the category of Independent Directors, were appointed at 
the Board Meeting held on 30th July 2019: 

		  1.  Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy (DIN: 00659260); 
		  2.  Shri Chaniyilparampu Nanappan Ramchand (DIN: 05166709); and 
		  3.  Shri Ashwath Naroth (DIN: 05343532).

In accordance with the provisions of section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Additional 
Directors held office up to the date of the 47th Annual General Meeting viz., 27th September 2019.

In accordance with the provisions of section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the aforesaid 
Additional Directors, being eligible for appointment as Directors, were appointed as Directors of 
the Company, at the 47th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th September 2019.

At the 47th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th September, 2019,  
Shri. Bharatbala Ganapathy [DIN: 00659260], Shri. Chaniyilparampu Nanappan Ramchand 
[DIN: 05166709] and Shri. Ashwath Naroth [DIN: 05343532] were appointed as Directors in the 
category of Independent Directors of the Company, for a term of five consecutive years from 30th 
July 2019 to 30th July 2024, not liable to retirement by rotation.

Reappointment of Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive years:

Shri M. Parthasarathi [DIN: 03209175], who was appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company for a term of 5 consecutive years from 1st April 2014 shall hold office up to 31st March 
2019, not liable to retire by rotation.
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As per section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director shall hold office 
for a term of up to 5 consecutive years on the Board of the Company but shall be eligible for 
re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board’s report. Section 149(11) provides that no independent director shall 
hold office for more than two consecutive terms.

Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 28th May 2019, re-appointed Shri M. Parthasarathi 
[DIN: 03209175] as an independent director on the Board of the Company for a second term of 
5 consecutive years to hold office from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2024, subject to the approval 
of the shareholders at the 47th Annual General Meeting, by passing a Special Resolution.

The above re-appointment by the Board of Directors is based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee which has carried out Performance Evaluation of the 
functioning of the director including his contribution to the Board process and decision making 
process and has expressed its satisfaction over his performance. In the opinion of the Board, he 
fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment as an Independent 
director.

At the 47th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th September 2019, the 
appointment of Shri M. Parthasarathi as an Independent Director of the Company for a second 
term of five consecutive years to hold office from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2024, was approved 
by the shareholders by passing a Special Resolution.

Resignation of Directors:

Shri S. Varatharajan [DIN: 01819133], who was already a director, was classified as an 
Independent Director of the Company from 1st April 2014 to hold office up to 31st March 2019, 
not liable to retire by rotation.

Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 28th May 2019, re-appointed Shri S. Varatharajan 
[DIN: 01819133] as an independent director on the Board of the Company for a second term of 
5 consecutive years to hold office from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2024, subject to the approval 
of the shareholders at the 47th Annual General Meeting, by passing a Special Resolution.

Subsequently, Shri S. Varatharajan [DIN: 01819133] has submitted his resignation from the 
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from 8th August 2019 and this was taken on record 
by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th July 2019.

Shri R. Ravikrishnan [DIN: 01722565], who was already a director, was classified as an 
Independent Director of the Company from 1st April 2014 to hold office up to 31st March 2019, 
not liable to retire by rotation.

Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 28th May 2019, re-appointed Shri R. Ravikrishnan 
[DIN: 01722565] as an independent director on the Board of the Company for a second term of 
5 consecutive years to hold office from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2024, subject to the approval 
of the shareholders at the 47th Annual General Meeting, by passing a Special Resolution.

Subsequently, Shri R. Ravikrishnan [DIN: 01722565] has submitted his resignation from the 
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from 30th July, 2019 and this was taken on record 
by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th July 2019.
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Shri N. Jaiganesh [DIN: 06969618], who was already a director, was classified as an Independent 
Director of the Company from 1st April 2014 to hold office up to 31st March 2019, not liable to 
retire by rotation.

Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 28th May 2019, re-appointed Shri N. Jaiganesh [DIN: 
06969618] as an independent director on the Board of the Company for a second term of 5 
consecutive years to hold office from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2024, subject to the approval 
of the shareholders at the 47th Annual General Meeting, by passing a Special Resolution.

Subsequently, Shri N. Jaiganesh [DIN: 06969618] has submitted his resignation from the Board 
of Directors of the Company with effect from 30th July, 2019 and this was taken on record by the 
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th July 2019.

Apart from the above, no other director or key managerial personnel were appointed or resigned 
during the year.

The names of companies which have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, joint ventures 
or associate companies during the year:

There are no companies which have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies during the year.

The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013:

The Company has stopped renewing / accepting deposits from the public 1st October 2016. The 
Company has been repaying the deposits from the public on their maturity date. All outstanding 
deposits from the public has matured for repayment by the end of September 2019. As such, the 
Company has no outstanding public deposits other than unclaimed deposits. 

(a)	 Accepted during the year:
	 No deposits were accepted or renewed during the year.
(b)	 Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year:
	 There are 62 fixed deposits and 31 cumulative deposits aggregating to 93 deposits for 

an amount of Rs. 57.98 lakhs that have matured but remained unclaimed (maturity value 
Rs.63.77 lakhs).

(c)	 Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon 
during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total amount involved:

	 There has been no default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during 
the year.

The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of 
the Companies Act, 2013:

There are no deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.
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The details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the 
Financial Statements:

The Company’s well defined organizational structure, documented policy guidelines, defined 
authority matrix and internal financial controls ensure efficiency of operations, protection of 
resources and compliance with the applicable laws and regulations. Moreover, the Company 
continuously upgrades its systems and undertakes review of policies. The internal financial 
control is supplemented by regular reviews by management and standard policies and guidelines 
to ensure reliability of financial data and all other records to prepare the financial statements and 
other data. The Audit Committee reviews the internal financial controls and also monitors the 
implemented suggestions.

Disclosure as to whether maintenance of cost records is required by the Company and 
whether such accounts and records are made and maintained

The Company is required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under 
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosure under section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

During the year under review, there were no cases filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Disclosure as to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has a policy for prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace in 
accordance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has complied with the provisions relating 
to constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The 
following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the 
year:

     a) Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year	 Nil
     b) Number of complaints received during the year			   Nil
     c) Number of complaints disposed of during the year			  Nil
     d) Number of cases pending at the end of the year			   Nil

Other Disclosures:

1.	 No equity shares were issued with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

2.	 No equity shares (including sweat equity shares) were issued to the employees of the 
Company under any Scheme.

3.	 The Company has not resorted to any buy-back of its equity shares during the year.

4.	 There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company to the Audit Committee under 
section 143(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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5.	 Composition of Audit Committee: (pursuant to section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013): 
The Audit Committee comprised of the following directors namely, Shri M. Parthasarathi, 
Chairman, Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy and Shri Chaniyilparampu Nanappan Ramchand. 
The Audit Committee was reconstituted during the year from 30th July, 2019.

6.	 The disclosures on the composition of committees constituted by the Board under the 
Companies Act, 2013, as well as changes in their composition, if any, during the year, is 
given under the Paragraphs with respect to each of the Committees included in the Directors’ 
Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, a Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company and its Subsidiary 
Company viz., TCP Hotels Private Ltd, has been prepared in the same form and manner in 
which the Company’s Financial Statement has been prepared and such Consolidated Financial 
Statement is attached to this Annual Report. The Consolidated Financial Statement has been 
prepared in compliance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. A Statement containing 
the salient features of the Financial Statement of the Subsidiary Company in Form AOC-1 is also 
attached to this Annual Report.
STATEMENT OF EMPLOYEES’ PARTICULARS
Pursuant to Rules 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the statement showing the particulars of the employees employed 
throughout the financial year ended 31st March 2020 and was in receipt of remuneration for the 
year which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs.1 crore and 2 lakhs and a statement of top 10 
employees in terms of remuneration drawn, is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure - IV.
AUDITORS 
M/s NSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Firm Registration No. 010522S) the Auditors 
of the Company, were appointed as auditors at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 22nd September, 2017 for a period of five years and they shall hold office till the conclusion 
of the 50th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022.
COST AUDITOR
Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Shri M. Kannan, Cost Accountant in practice, has been appointed as 
the Cost Auditor of the company for the year 2019-20, for the audit of the cost records maintained 
by the Company.
INTERNAL AUDITOR
Pursuant to section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, M/s Sankaran & Krishnan, Chartered Accountants, Chennai, are 
appointed as internal auditors of the Company to conduct internal audit of the functions and 
activities of the Company.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT
The Board has appointed Shri K. Elangovan, M/s Elangovan Associates, Company Secretaries 
in Practice, Chennai, (Certificate of Practice No.3552) Membership No. FCS 1808 to carry out 
Secretarial Audit under the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial 
year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to the Directors’ report as Annexure - V.
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TRANSFERS MADE TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
DURING THE YEAR
Transfer of unclaimed dividend:
Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the amount of dividend transferred to 
the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period 
of seven years from the date of such transfer, shall be transferred by the Company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund established under section 125 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, during the year 2019-20, the dividend declared at the 40th AGM held on  28-9-2012 
and transferred to the Unpaid Dividend Account and which remained unclaimed is required to 
be transferred to the IEPF.
During the year, unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to the financial year 2011-12, for an 
amount of Rs.5,350/-, due to 36 shareholders, were transferred to the IEPF on 15-10-2019.
Transfer of unclaimed deposits:
Section 125(2) (i) and (k) read with the proviso to that sub section provides that matured deposits 
together with interest accrued thereon, which remains unclaimed for a period of seven years 
from the date it became due for payment shall be transferred to the IEPF.
Accordingly, during the year 2019-20, unclaimed deposits for an amount of Rs.42,000/- due to 3 
depositors were transferred to the IEPF on 15-10-2019.
Web link for viewing the details:
The details of the amounts transferred to the IEPF and other particulars are placed on the 
website of the Company www.tcpindia.com under the web link ‘IEPF DISCLOSURES – IEPF 
DISCLOSURE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-2020 – CLICK HERE TO VIEW UNCLAIMED 
DIVIDEND, DEPOSITS TO BE TRANSFERRED TO THE IEPF DURING THE YEAR 2019-20.’
Transfer of shares to the IEPF Authority:
Section 124 (6) provides that all shares in respect of which unpaid or unclaimed dividend has 
been transferred to the IEPF shall also be transferred by the company in the name of Investor 
Education and Protection Fund along with a statement containing such details as may be 
prescribed.
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, had notified the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (Authority, Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the 
Rules”) with effect from the 7th September 2016 providing for the transfer of the Equity Shares 
to the IEPF Authority in respect of which dividend has remained unpaid / unclaimed for seven 
consecutive years or more. 
Accordingly, the equity shares held by those shareholders, whose dividend remained unclaimed 
for seven consecutive years, viz. pertaining to the dividends for the financial year 2011-12 to 
the financial year 2017-18, shall be liable to be transferred to the IEPF during the financial year 
2019-20. 
The said Rules were amended by the MCA vide their Notification dated 28th February 2017 
and 13th October 2017, wherein, amongst other things, the revised procedure for transfer of 
shares has been notified. The MCA has issued General Circular No.11/06/2017-IEPF dated 16th 
October 2017 intimating the demat accounts of the IEPF Authority for the purpose of transfer of 
shares to the IEPF Authority whether held in physical form or in dematerialied form.
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Rule 6 (first proviso) of the Rules provides that in case the beneficial owner has encashed any 
dividend warrant during the last 7 years, such shares shall not be required to be transferred to the 
Fund even though some dividend warrants may not have been encashed. In effect, this means 
that only those shares on which the dividend remains unclaimed for a period of 7 consecutive 
years are required to be transferred to the IEPF Authority.
The shares shall be credited to Demat Account of the IEPF Authority within a period of 30 days 
of such shares becoming due to be transferred to the IEPF. [Rule 6 (1)]
In accordance with Rule 6 (3) of the Rules, the Company has sent individual communication, 
dated 12th August, 2019, to those shareholders whose shares are liable to be transferred to 
the demat account of the IEPF Authority, informing them about the transfer of their shares to 
the IEPF Authority, within 30 days from the due date viz., 28th  September 2019. Newspaper 
advertisements were published in English (Financial Express) and in Tamil (Maalai Sudar) in their 
issues dated 14th August, 2019 intimating about the same information.
During the year 500 shares held by 2 shareholders were transferred to the Demat Account of the 
IEPF Authority on 13th November 2019 as per the following details:
DP ID: 12047200 – DP: SBICAP – Depository: Central Depository Services (India) Ltd – CDSL - 
Client ID: 13676780 – Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs. As of 31st March 2020, 3,400 shares are held in the name of the IEPF Authority.
The names of the shareholders whose shares are transferred to the demat account of the IEPF 
authority, along with the shares transferred and their folio number or DP ID / Client ID are available 
on the website of the Company www.tcpindia.com under the web link ‘IEPF DISCLOSURES – 
IEPF DISCLOSURE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20 - CLICK HERE TO VIEW SHARES TO 
BE TRANSFERRED TO IEPF DURING 2019-20’
The Dividend declared and payable on the 2,900 shares viz., Rs.2,900/- that were transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund has been credited to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund on 9-1-2020.
For the financial year 2020-21:
The details of the unclaimed dividends and deposits and the shares that are liable to be transferred 
to the IEPF during the year 2020-21 are placed on the website of the Company www.tcpindia.
com under the web link ‘IEPF DISCLOSURES – IEPF DISCLOSURE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
2020-2021. 

ANNEXURES TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

	 1.	 The Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 – Annexure I
	 2.	 The Nomination and Remuneration Policy – Annexure II
	 3.	 Annual Report on CSR Activities – Annexure III
	 4.	 Statement under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of  
		  Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 – Annexure IV; and
	 5.	 Secretarial Audit Report – Annexure V
	 6.	 Form No. AOC – 2 – Annexure VI
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.]

I.	 REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN U24200TN1971PLC005999

2 Registration Date 08-06-1971

3 Name of the Company TCP Limited

4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares / Indian Non-
Government Company

5 Address of the Registered office
 & contact details

“TCP Sapthagiri Bhavan”
No 4, Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, 
Chennai, 600004
Telephone: 044 24991518; 

6 Whether Listed Company Unlisted Company

7 Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Cameo Corporate Services Limited 
“Subramanian Building”
No. 1, Club House Road
Chennai 600 002 - India.
Phone : 91-44 - 2846 0390 (5 lines)
Fax      : 91-44 - 2846 0129

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

Sl 
No Name & Description of  main products/services NIC Code of the 

Product /service
% to total turnover 

of the company

1 Manufacture and Sale of Chemical products 2411  30 %

2 Generation and export of power 4010  70 %

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl 
No

Name and the Address of 
the company CIN

Holding /
Subsidiary / 
Associate

% of 
shares 

Applicable 
Section 

1 TCP Hotels Private Limited
No 4, Karpagambal Nagar, 
Mylapore, Chennai,  
600 004

 
U55101TN2001PTC046673

 
Subsidiary 96% 2(87)

ANNEXURE I
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(iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year
S. 

No.
No of shares % of total 

shares of the 
company

No of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company
1. The Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Pvt. Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

13,08,300
13,08,300

26
26

13,08,300
13,08,300

26
26

2. V.R. Venkatachalam
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
Purchase on 14-6-19
Purchase on 21-6-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

12,43,249
+100
+100

12,43,449

24.7073
0.0020
0.0020

24.7113

12,43,249
12,43,349
12,43,449
12,43,449

24.7073
24.7093
24.7113
24.7113

3. Sengutuvan V
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
Sale on 14-6-19
Sale on 21-6-19
Sale on 28-6-19
Sale on 12-7-19
Purchase on 22-11-19
Sale on 13-3-20
Sale on 20-3-20
At the end of the year 31-3-20

3,61,664
-100
-400
-100
-100

+100
-300
-100

3,60,664

7.1874
0.0020
0.0079
0.0020
0.0020
0.0020
0.0060
0.0020
7.1675

3,61,664
3,61,564
3,61,164
3,61,064
3,60,964
3,61,064
3,60,764
3,60,664
3,60,664

7.1874
7.1854
7.1775
7.1755
7.1735
7.1755
7.1695
7.1675
7.1675

4. Radha Venkataachalam
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

1,75,350
1,75,350

3.4848
3.4848

1,75,350
1,75,350

3.4848
3.4848

5. Samyuktha Venkataachalam
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

1,20,000
1,20,000

2.3848
2.3848

1,20,000
1,20,000

2.3848
2.3848

6. Thillainayagam A S
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

1,35,000
1,35,000

2.6829
2.6829

1,35,000
1,35,000

2.6829
2.6829

7. Kamalam R
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

97,550
97,550

1.9386
1.9386

97,550
97,550

1.9386
1.9386

8. Andal Arumugam
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

78,782
78,782

1.5656
1.5656

78,782
78,782

1.5656
1.5656

9. Radha R
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

69,950
69,950

1.3901
1.3901

69,950
69,950

1.3901
1.3901

10. Ramasamy Udayar N P V
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

54,602
54,602

1.0851
1.0851

54,602
54,602

1.0851
1.0851

11. Padma Ramasamy Udayar
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

51,300
51,300

1.0195
1.0195

51,300
51,300

1.0195
1.0195

12. Arundathi S
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

50,150
50,150

0.9967
0.9967

50,150
50,150

0.9967
0.9967

13. TVRRS Enterprises
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

10,000
10,000

0.1987
0.1987

10,000
10,000

0.1987
0.1987
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14. Amudha T
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

6,400
6,400

0.1272
0.1272

6,400
6,400

0.1272
0.1272

15. Andal Arumugam (jointly)
Arundathi R
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

3,300
3,300

0.0656
0.0656

3,300
3,300

0.0656
0.0656

16. Poovai Ammal
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

400
400

0.0079
0.0079

400
400

0.0079
0.0079

17. Arundathi S
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

300
300

0.0060
0.0060

300
300

0.0060
0.0060

18. ICL Financial Services Limited
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

4,59,480
4,59,480

9.1313
9.1313

4,59,480
4,59,480

9.1313
9.1313

19. ICL Securities Limited
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

2,70,272
2,70,272

5.3712
5.3712

2,70,272
2,70,272

5.3712
5.3712

20. K2 V2 Engineering Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

2,31,158
2,31,158

4.5939
4.5939

2,31,158
2,31,158

4.5939
4.5939

21. ESS PT Real Estate Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 1-4-19
At the end of the year 31-3-20

2,20,000
2,20,000

4.3721
4.3721

2,20,000
2,20,000

4.3721
4.3721

(iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and  
	 Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. No Name of the Shareholder

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No of shares 
% of total 

shares of the 
company

No of shares 
% of total 

shares of the 
company

1 Narendhiran R G     
 At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019       41,500 0.8247      41,500 0.8247
 At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020       41,500 0.8247      41,500 0.8247
2 Ramalinga Raya Reddy     
 At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019       18,456 0.3667      18,456 0.3667
 At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020       18,456 0.3667      18,456 0.3667
3 Investor Education and Protection Fund 

Authority, Ministry of Corporate Affairs
    

At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 2,900 0.0576 2,900 0.0576
 Purchase on 15-11-19 500 0.0099
 At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 3,400 0.0675 3,400 0.0675
4 Tanchem Imports & Exports Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019         3,000 0.0596        3,000 0.0596
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020         3,000 0.0596        3,000 0.0596

5 Vijaya Sridharan
 At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 800 0.0158 800 0.0158
 At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 800 0.0158 800 0.0158



62

6 Partha Narayan   
 At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 800 0.0158 800 0.0158
 At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 800 0.0158 800 0.0158
7 Bharti Rameshchandra Mehta

At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 600 0.0119 600 0.0119
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 600 0.0119 600 0.0119

8 Hiral Harshad Patel
 At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 522 0.0103 522 0.0103
 At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 522 0.0103 522 0.0103
9 Maruthai Pillai P

At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 500 0.0099 500 0.0099
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 500 0.0099 500 0.0099

10 Laveena Sharon Saldanha
At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 400 0.0079 400 0.0079
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 400 0.0079 400 0.0079

(v)	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year
S. No Name of the Share holder No of shares % of total 

shares of the 
company

No of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company
1 V R Venkatachalam     
 At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019   12,43,249 24.7073   12,43,249 24.7073

Purchase on 14-6-19 +100 0.0020 12,43,349 24.7093
Purchase on 21-6-19 +100 0.0020 12,43,449 24.7113
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 12,43,449 24.7113 12,43,449 24.7113

2 Shri V. Sengutuvan     
At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019   3,61,664 7.1874     3,61,664 7.1874
Sale on 14-6-19 -100 0.0020   3,61,564 7.1854
Sale on 21-6-19 -400 0.0079   3,61,164 7.1775

 Sale on 28-6-19 -100 0.0020   3,61,064 7.1755
Sale on 12-7-19 -100 0.0020   3,60,964 7.1735

 Purchase on 22-11-19 +100 0.0020   3,61,064 7.1755
Sale on 13-3-20 -300 0.0060   3,60,764 7.1695

 Sale on 20-3-20 -100 0.0020   3,60,664 7.1675
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020   3,60,664 7.1675   3,60,664 7.1675

3 Shri A.S. Thillainayagam      
 At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019   1,35,000 2.6829     1,35,000 2.6829

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020   1,35,000 2.6829     1,35,000 2.6829
4 Samyuktha Venkataachalam

At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 1,20,000 2.3848 1,20,000 2.3848
 At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 1,20,000 2.3848 1,20,000 2.3848
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V.	 INDEBTEDNESS:
       Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for  
        payment:

Particulars

Secured loans 
- excluding  
deposits

Rs.

Unsecured 
Loans - 

excluding  
deposits 

Rs.

Deposits 
 

Rs.

Total  
Indebtedness 

Rs.
Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year
i)   Principal Amount 45,65,89,445 10,30,01,949 5,38,95,000 61,34,86,394
ii)  Interest due but not paid/claimed - 3,30,68,297 9,86,935 3,40,55,232
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - 26,80,915 26,80,915
Total (i+ii+iii) 45,65,89,445 13,60,70,246 5,75,62,850 65,02,22,541
Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year
Additions 18,91,54,142 - - 18,91,54,142
Reduction (10,16,04,610) (1,36,45,861) (5,07,96,280) (16,60,46,751)

Net Change 8,75,49,532 (1,36,45,861) (5,07,96,280) 2,31,07,391
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year
i)   Principal Amount 54,41,38,977 9,39,57,904 57,98,000 64,38,94,881
ii)  Interest due but not paid/claimed - 2,84,66,481 9,68,570 2,94,35,051
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 54,41,38,977 12,24,24,385 67,66,570 67,33,29,932

Note: The borrowings – Inter Corporate Deposit amount is taken at the Book Value of Rs.295.00 
lakhs as against the discounted value of Rs.183.45 lakhs (Previous year: Rs.168.30 lakhs) for 
comparative purposes. The amount of borrowings as shown in this statement will differ to this extent 
with the amount shown in the Long Term borrowings in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 / 
31st March 2019.  

VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
    A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S. No Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total 
Amount

Shri V R Venkataachalam, 
Managing Director

Shri. V Rajasekaran, 
Whole-time Director 

1 Gross salary Rs. Rs. Rs.
(a) Salary as per 

provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the 
Income Tax. 1961.

2,18,49,960 2,01,39,960 4,19,89,920 
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S. No Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total 
Amount

Shri V R Venkataachalam, 
Managing Director

Shri. V Rajasekaran, 
Whole-time Director 

Rs. Rs. Rs.
(b) Value of perquisites 

u/s 17(2) of the 
Income tax Act, 1961

23,57,596 1,65,43,167 1,89,00,763

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) of 
the Income Tax Act, 
1961

- - -

2 Stock option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission:-    
 as % of profit - - -
 Fixed Commission 40,00,000 - 40,00,000
5 Others, please specify - - -
 PF Contribution 16,56,000 15,26,400 31,82,400
 Total (A) 2,98,63,556 3,82,09,527 6,80,73,083

Ceiling as per the Act   Nil -  
Loss during 

the year
    B.	 Remuneration to other directors:

S. No Name of Directors Particulars of remuneration
Fee for attending 
board / committee 

meetings 
� (in Rs)

Commission 
 
 

� (in Rs)

Others 
 
 

� (in Rs)

Total 
amount 

 
� (in Rs)

1 Independent Directors     
Shri S. Varatharajan 40,000  -  - 40,000
Shri M. Parthasarathi  65,000  -  -  65,000
Shri R. Ravi Krishnan  35,000  -  -  35,000
Shri N. Jai Ganesh  25,000  -  -  25,000
Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy 25,000 25,000
Shri Channiyilparampu 
Nanappan Ramchand 25,000 25,000

Shri Ashwath Naroth 15,000 15,000
Total of (1) 2,30,000

 2 Other Non-Executive Directors   
 Shri A.S. Thillainayagam 40,000  -  - 40,000

Shri  V. Sengutuvan  40,000  -  -  40,000
 Smt V. Samyuktha 40,000 40,000

Shri Dr. T. Bhasker Raj 20,000 20,000
 Shri T. Yeswanth 20,000 20,000

Shri C. Saravanan 20,000 20,000
Total of (2)  -  - 1,80,000
Total of (1) & (2) 4,10,000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 82,00,000
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    C.	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel, Other than MD / Manager / WTD

S. No Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel  
Company Secretary

Total Amount

1 Gross salary Rs. Rs.
(a) Salary as per provisions    
      contained in section 17(1) of  
      the Income Tax. 1961.

11,13,750 11,13,750

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)  
      of the Income tax Act, 1961

2,71,446 2,71,446 

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under  
      section 17(3) of the Income  
      Tax Act, 1961

- -

2 Stock option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -
 as % of profit - -
 others (specify) - -
5 Others, please specify - -
 PF Contribution 68,220 68,220
 Total 14,53,416 14,53,416

VII.	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type
Section 
of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief  
Description

Details of  
Penalty/Punishment/
Compounding fees 

imposed

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/

Court)

Appeal made 
if any  

(give details)

A.  COMPANY
     Penalty - - - - -
     Punishment - - - - -
     Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
     Penalty - - - - -
     Punishment - - - - -
     Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
     Penalty - - - - -
     Punishment - - - - -
     Compounding - - - - -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

V R Venkataachalam
										                Chairman
� DIN: 00037524
Dated: 18th November 2020
Place: Chennai
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Annexure - II

TCP LIMITED
CIN: U24200TN1971PLC005999

REGISTERED OFFICE: No.4, Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004

TCP LIMTED – NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY RELATING TO THE 
REMUNERATION FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER 
EMPLOYEES
Approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th January 2015
Principle and Rationale:
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 requires the Board of Directors of every company having turnover 
of Rs.100 crores or more or having outstanding loans or borrowings or deposits aggregating to 
Rs.50 crores or more, as on the date of last audited financial statements, among other classes 
of companies, to
	 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the 
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

	 Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal.

	 Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.
	 Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors on the Board.

Accordingly, in adherence to the above said requirements and in line with the Company’s 
philosophy towards nurturing its human resources, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
of the Board of Directors of TCP Limited herein below recommends to the Board of Directors for 
its adoption the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the directors, key managerial personnel 
and other employees of the Company as set out below:

Company Philosophy:

TCP Ltd is an organisation committed to paying fair remuneration to its employees matching the 
responsibilities and performance. The organisation does not discriminate on grounds of age, 
gender, colour, race, ethnicity, language, caste, creed, economic or social status or disability. 
The Company’s committed workforce, spread across its corporate office and factory locations, 
which has, over the years, transformed TCP Ltd into a consistent growing organisation, forms the 
backbone of the Company. 

Pay revisions and other benefits are designed in such a way to compensate good performance 
of the employees of the Company and motivate them to do better in future.

Employee recognition schemes in the form of Production incentive and Service award have also 
been introduced as successful tools in acknowledging their contribution.
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The endeavour of the company is to acknowledge the contributions of its directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees with best compensation and benefits that appropriately rewards 
performance in line with the regulatory and industry best practices.

Guiding Principles:
In the formulation of this Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also 
endeavoured to ensure the guiding principles as prescribed u/s 178(4) of the Companies Act, 
2013 summarized hereunder:
a)	 the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate human resource including directors of the quality required to run the company 
successfully;

b) 	 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks;

c)  Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

d)  	 Facilitating effective shareholder participation in key Corporate Governance decisions such 
as the nomination and election of board members;

e)  	 Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the longer term interests of the company 
and its shareholders;

f) 	 Ensuring a transparent board nomination process with the diversity of thought, experience, 
knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board.

Nomination of the Directors:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is dedicated to ensuring 
the continuance of a dynamic and forward-thinking Board and recommend to the Board qualified 
candidates for directorship.
Before recommending a nominee’s candidature to the Board for being appointed as a Director, 
the following criteria set out may be applied as guidelines in considering potential nominees to 
the Board of Directors.
General Criteria
a)	 The background and qualifications of the Directors considered as a group should provide a 

significant combination of experience, knowledge and abilities to assist the Board in fulfilling 
its responsibilities.

b)	 Directors should be so selected such that the Board of Directors should remain as a diverse 
body, with diversity reflecting gender, ethnic background and professional experience. 
Because a mix of viewpoints and ideas enhances the Board’s ability to function effectively, 
the Committee shall consider the diversity of the existing Board when considering potential 
nominees, so that the Board maintains a body of directors from diverse professional and 
personal backgrounds.

c)	 Potential nominees shall not be discriminated against on the basis of race, religion, national 
origin, sex, disability, or any other basis prohibited by law.

d)	 Any nominee should be free of any conflict of interest which would violate any applicable law 
or regulation or interfere with the performance of the responsibilities of a director.
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e)	 Commitment of the nominee to understanding the Company and its industry, embracing 
the Company’s values to help shape its vision, mission and strategic direction including 
oversight of risk management and internal control.

f)	 Commitment of the nominee to spending the time necessary to function effectively as a 
Director, including attending and participating in Board meetings and its Committee 
meetings.

Specific Criteria
a)	 Demonstrated business acumen, experience and ability to use sound judgment and to 

contribute to the effective oversight of the business and financial affairs of a large or medium 
sized, multifaceted, Indian Company.

b)	 The nominee reflects the right corporate tone and culture and excels at board - management 
relationships.

c)	 Experience in strategic planning and managing multidisciplinary responsibilities, the 
ability to navigate among diverse professional groups and points of view, a track record 
of communicating effectively in a global environment, and high standards of integrity and 
professional conduct.

d)	 Nominees understand and endeavour to balance the interests of shareholders and / or 
other stakeholders and put the interests of the company above self-interest. He/she has 
demonstrated a commitment to transparency and disclosure.

e)	 He/ she is committed to superior corporate performance, consistently striving to go 
beyond the legal and/or regulatory governance requirements to enhance, not just protect, 
shareholder value.

f)	 Nominee contributes to effective governance through superior, constructive relationships 
with the Executive Directorate and management.

Remuneration of the Directors:
The Company strives to provide fair compensation to directors, taking into consideration industry 
benchmarks, Company’s performance vis-à-vis the industry, responsibilities shouldered, 
performance/ track record, macroeconomic review on remuneration packages of heads of other 
similar sized companies.

The remuneration payable to the directors of the company, shall at all times be determined, in 
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Appointment and Remuneration of Managing Director and Whole time- Director:

The terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration payable to the Managing Director 
and the Whole-time Director(s) shall be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee to the Board for its approval which shall be subject to approval by shareholders at the 
next general meeting of the Company and by the Central Government in case such appointment 
is at variance to the conditions specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. Approval 
of the Central Government is not necessary if the appointment is made in accordance with the 
conditions specified in Schedule V to the Act.

In terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Company may appoint a person as its 
Managing Director or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding 5 (years) at a time. The 
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executive directors may be paid remuneration either by way of a monthly payment or at a 
specified percentage of the net profits of the Company or partly by one way and partly by the 
other.

The break-up of the pay scale, performance bonus and quantum of perquisites including, 
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided 
and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and shall be within the 
overall remuneration approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

While recommending the remuneration payable to a Managing/ Whole-time Director, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, inter alia, have regard to the following matters:
l	 Financial and operating performance of the Company
l	 Relationship between remuneration and performance
l	 Industry/ sector trends for the remuneration paid to similar executives.
Annual Increments to the Managing/ Whole Time Director(s) shall be within the slabs approved by 
the Shareholders. Increments shall be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
at times it desires to do so but preferably on an annual basis.
Insurance Premium as Part of Remuneration:
Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its managing director, whole-time 
director, manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for 
indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance, 
breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in relation to the company, the 
premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any 
such personnel.
However, if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be 
treated as part of the remuneration.
Remuneration of Independent Directors:
Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of

	 Sitting fees for participation in the Board and other meetings
	 Reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings
	 Commission as approved by the Shareholders of the Company
Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board may 
decide the sitting fee payable to independent directors. Provided that the amount of such fees 
shall not exceed the maximum permissible under the Companies Act, 2013.
Remuneration to Directors in other capacity:
The remuneration payable to the directors including managing or whole-time director or manager 
shall be inclusive of the remuneration payable for the services rendered by him in any other 
capacity except the following:
(a) 	 The services rendered are of a professional nature; and
(b) 	 In the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the director possesses the  
	 requisite qualification for the practice of the profession.
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Evaluation of the Directors:
As members of the Board, the performance of the individual Directors as well as the performance 
of the entire Board and its Committees is required to be formally evaluated annually.

Section 178 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 also mandates the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee to carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

In developing the methodology to be used for evaluation on the basis of best standards and 
methods meeting international parameters, the Board / Committee may take the advice of an 
independent professional consultant.

Nomination and Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (other than Managing / 
whole time directors), key executives and senior management:
The executive management of a company is responsible for the day to day management of a 
company. The Companies Act, 2013 has used the term “key managerial personnel” (KMP) to 
define the executive management.

The KMPs are the point of first contact between the company and its stakeholders. While the 
Board of Directors are responsible for providing the oversight, it is the key managerial personnel 
and the senior management who are responsible for not just laying down the strategies but for 
its implementation as well.

The Companies Act, 2013 has, for the first time, recognized the concept of Key Managerial 
Personnel. As per section 2(51) “key managerial personnel”, in relation to a company, means—
(i) 	 The Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;
(ii) 	 The whole-time director;
(iii) 	 The Chief Financial Officer;
(iv) 	 The company secretary; and
(v) 	 Such other officer as may be prescribed.
Among the KMPs, the remuneration of the CEO or the Managing Director and the Whole time 
Director(s), shall be governed by the Section on Remuneration of the Directors of this Policy 
dealing with “Remuneration of Managing Director and Whole time- Director”.
Apart from the directors, the remuneration of
l 	 All the Other KMPs such as the company secretary or any other officer that may be prescribed  
	 under the statute from time to time; and
l	 “Senior Management” of the Company i.e. personnel who are members of its core  
	 management team excluding the Board of Directors. Senior executives one level below the  
	 Board i.e. President cadre
Shall be determined by the Human Resources Department of the Company in consultation with 
the Managing Director and/ or the Whole time Director.
The remuneration determined for all the above said senior personnel shall be in line with the 
Company’s philosophy to provide fair compensation to key - executive officers based on their 
performance and contribution to the Company and to provide incentives that attract and retain 
key executives, instill a long-term commitment to the Company, and develop a pride and sense 
of Company ownership, all in a manner consistent with shareholder interests.



T C P LIMITED

71

The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to 
P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided by the Company’s HR 
department.
Decisions on Annual Increments of the Senior Personnel shall be decided by the Human 
Resources Department in consultation with the Managing Director and/ or the Whole time 
Director of the Company.
Remuneration of other employees:
Apart from the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management, the remuneration for rest of the 
employees is determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee, 
including professional experience, responsibility, job complexity and local market conditions.
The Company considers it essential to provide incentives to the workforce to ensure adequate 
and reasonable compensation to the staff. The Human Resources Department shall ensure that 
the level of remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who perform according to set 
expectations for the employee.
The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances, perquisites etc. may be 
combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package. The annual increments 
to the remuneration paid to the employees shall be determined based on the annual appraisal 
carried out by the Head of Departments of various departments. Decisions on Annual Increments 
shall be made on the basis of this annual appraisal.
General:
This Policy shall apply to all future employment of Company’s Senior Management including
Key Managerial Personnel and Board of Directors.
Any or all the provisions of this Policy would be subject to the revision/ amendment in the 
Companies Act, 2013, related rules and regulations, guidelines on the subject as may be notified 
from time to time. 
Any such amendment shall automatically have the effect of amending this Policy without the 
need of any approval by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/ or the Board of 
Directors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

V.R. Venkataachalam
Chairman

	 DIN: 00037524
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ANNEXURE III

TCP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

1.	 A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and 
projects and programs.

	 The aim of TCP Ltd is to be one of the most respected companies in India delivering superior 
and everlasting value to all our customers, associates, shareholders, employees and Society 
at large. 

	 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives of the Company focus on holistic 
development of host communities and create social, environmental and economic value to 
the society.

	 To pursue these objectives we will continue to:

i.	 Work actively in areas of eradication of hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting 
health care including preventive health care and sanitation and making available safe 
drinking water.

ii.	 Provide opportunity and financial assistance for the promotion of education, provide 
medical aid to the needy and down trodden.

iii.	 Collaborate with like minded bodies like Voluntary organizations, charitable trusts, 
Government and academic institutes in pursuit of our goals.

iv.	 Interact regularly with stakeholders, review and report our CSR initiatives.		
Web Link: www.tcpindia.com

2.	 The Composition of CSR Committee

	 Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Chairman 							     
	 Shri V. Rajasekaran, member; and								      
	 Shri Bharatbala Ganapathy, member

3.	 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 19,29,70,222/-

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):  
	 Rs. 38,59,404/-

5.	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

	 (a)	Total amount to be spent during the financial year: 		  Rs. 38,59,404/-
	 (b)	Amount spent		                                                		  Rs. 18,92,702/-
	 (c)	Amount unspent, if any:						     Rs. 19,66,702/-
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Annexure - IV
Statement under Rule 5(2) of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014
(a) 	 Particulars of Employees drawing remuneration of not less than Rs.1.02 crores during the financial  
	 year 2019-20.

Name Designation Remuneration

Rs.

Nature  
of  

Employment

Qualification Experience Date of 
commence-

ment of  
employment

Age in 
Years

Particulars  
of last  

employment

Shri  
V.R. Venkataachalam

Managing 
Director

2,98,63,556 Contractual B.A. 40 years’ 
experience 
in business 
of various 
industries 
such as 
Textiles, 
Chemicals, 
Granites, 
Vanaspati 
and 
Medical.

7-11-1986 60 NIL

Shri 
V. Rajasekaran

Executive 
Director

3,82,09,527 Contractual B.E. (Chem),
M.Tech, 
M.B.A.

44 years’ 
experience 
in Chemical, 
Power, 
Textile and 
Financing

25-9-1976 68 NIL

Total 6,80,73,683

Note: 
1.	 The Remuneration amount does not include amounts towards actuarial valuation of earned 

leave entitlement and actuarial valuation of Gratuity entitlement which are not actually drawn 
by the managerial personnel.

2.	 Percentage of equity shares held by the employee in the Company along with his spouse 
and Children:

	 Shri V.R. Venkataachalam	 34.26%            	
3.	 Relationship with Directors: 
	 Shri V.R. Venkataachalam is the father of Shri V. Sengutuvan, Director and Smt. V. Samyuktha, 

Director.
4.	 There are no employees posted and working in a country outside India, not being directors 

or their relatives, drawing more than Rs.60 lakhs during the financial year or Rs.5 lakhs per 
month.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

V R Venkataachalam
Chairman

Dated: 18th November 2020	             DIN: 00037524
Place : Chennai
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				          Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)
To
The Members
TCP Limited (CIN U24200TN1971PLC005999)
Chennai 600004.
1.	 I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s TCP Limited, Chennai 600004 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted with reference 
to the  required books and  records made available   to me, in a manner that  provided 
me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion  thereon.

2. 	 Based on my verification of the Company’s  Books, records, papers, minutes books, various 
forms and returns filed and other records and returns maintained by the company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I, on the basis 
and strength of such records, and information so provided, hereby report that in my opinion 
and understanding, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
in my limited review , that the company has proper and adequate Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter.

	 I have examined the forms and returns as filed, books including minutes books, papers and 
other records maintained by the Company and made available to me, for the audit period up 
to the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 according to the applicable provisions of:

	 1.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder  as applicable;
	 2.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 (SCRA) and Rules made thereunder;
	 3.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;
	 4.	 Other Laws on the operation of the company viz.,
	 a)	 Gas Cylinders Rules, 2004;
	 b)	 The Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules 1981;
	 c)	 The Petroleum Act 1934;
	 d)	 The Electricity Act 2003;
	 e)	 The Boilers Act, 1923;
	 f)	 The Arms Act, 1959;
	 g)	 Tamil Nadu Denatured Spirit Methyl Alcohol and Varnish (French Polish), Rules,  

	 1959 and all other Laws applicable and Rules made thereunder, pertaining to  
	 chemical industry.

	 I have examined the systems and processes of the company in place to ensure the compliance 
with other laws like Labour Laws, Competition Law, Environmental Laws, Employees’ 

ANNEXURE V
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Provident Funds Act, Employees State Insurance Act etc., considering and relying upon 
representations made by the company and its Officers for systems and mechanisms formed 
by the company for compliance under these laws and other applicable sector specific Acts, 
Laws, Rules and Regulations applicable to the company and its observance by them.

	 I have examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of:
	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
	 The company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Standards, and Guidelines etc., mentioned above during the period under review except to 
the extent as mentioned below:

	 The company could not fully spend the eligible amount on Corporate Social Responsibility 
Measures. The company has conducted the required meeting of the CSR Committee. 
However, the company is advised to spend the remaining CSR amount early in accordance 
with the Act and rules made thereunder.

	 In view of the absence of profit, the payment of managerial remuneration needs to be 
regulated as per the provisions of the Act.

  	 I further report that the related documents that I have come across show that the Board of 
Directors of the company is constituted as per applicable provisions with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and adequate  notices have been  
given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. I also report that board’s decisions have been arrived at and 
recorded   in the Minutes Book in line with the stipulations prescribed by the Companies Act, 
2013, Rules made thereunder  and the Secretarial Standards in operation. The company 
has been advised to adhere to the Secretarial Standards in conducting Board Meetings and 
recording their minutes.

I further report that there appears to be adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
I further report that my audit is subject only to verifying adequacy of systems and procedures that 
are in place for ensuring proper compliance by the company and I am not responsible for any 
lapse in compliance on the part of the company.

                                              		
	    K.ELANGOVAN
	    FCS 1808
	    CP. NO. 3552
                                                                                                              UDIN: F001808B000460607
Place: Chennai                                     
Date: 16-07-2020  
This Report is to be read with my testimony of even date which is enclosed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report.



78

Annexure A

To
The Members, 
TCP Limited (CIN U24200TN1971PLC005999),
Chennai 600004.

My report of even date is to be read along with this supplementary testimony.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of Management of the company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes that were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification 
was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
I believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my 
opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company.

4.	 Wherever required , I have consulted the Management and Officers of the company about 
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings  of events etc., 

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules and 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. My examination was limited to 
the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 
an attestation of the effectiveness with which the management conducted the affairs of the 
company.

                                     

                                                 			      K.ELANGOVAN
									            FCS 1808
									            CP. NO. 3552

 UDIN: F001808B000460607
Place: Chennai 
Date: 16-07-2020
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ANNEXURE VI
FORM NO. AOC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)  
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto
	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis

The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement with related parties referred to 
in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year ended 31st March 2020.

Particulars of the material contract or arrangement with related party referred to in sub-section 
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain not at arm’s length transactions 
under third proviso thereto that were entered into after 31st March 2020 but before the date of 
the Directors’ Report:

(a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
	 Smt T. Amudha, Smt S. Arundati and Smt Padma – relatives of directors.
(b)	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
	 Appointment to an office or place of profit in the Company as follows:
	 Name of the Related Party and designation 		 Monthly Remuneration Rs.
	 1.	 Smt T. Amudha, 
			  General Manager – (Marketing – Chemical Division)		  29,30,000
	 2.	 Smt S. Arundati	
			  General Manager – (Human Resources & Industrial Relations)	 29,30,000
	 3.	 Smt Padma
			  General Manager – (Marketing – Power Division)			  13,80,000
(c)	 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
	 The appointment is effective from 1st June 2020. No term is fixed for the appointments.
(d)	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
	 The amount of the monthly remuneration payable exceeds the prescribed limit of 

Rs.2,50,000/- (Rupees two lakhs fifty thousand only) as provided in Rule 15 (3)(b) of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

(e) 	 Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil
For and on behalf of the Board

			 

		  V.R. Venkataachalam 	 V. Rajasekaran
                                                                            	 Chairman	 Director
		  DIN: 00037524	 DIN 00037006
Place: Chennai: 600 004
Date:  18th November, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members of TCP Limited  
Chennai
Report on the IND AS Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of TCP Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the IND AS 
financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid IND AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2020, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the IND AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the IND AS financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the IND AS financial statements.
Emphasis of matters
We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the financial statements:
Note 3 (q) in the financial statements with regard to preliminary assessment made by the 
management on the possible effects of Covid-19.
Note 55 with regard to the balance with Banks (in few cases), Trade Receivables, 
Unsecured Loans, Loans and Advances and Trade Payables are subject to confirmation 
and reconciliation.
Other information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.  The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. The other information included in the 
Company’s annual report other than the financial statements and Auditors report is expected to 
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.
Management’s Responsibility for the IND AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these IND AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes 
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IND AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.
In preparing the IND AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IND AS financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these IND AS financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the IND AS financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the IND AS financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the IND AS financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit 
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
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d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, managerial Remuneration to the extent of Rs. 680.73 Lakhs has been 
paid in excess of the limits prescribed under section 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Act. However, we are informed that the Company is in the process of getting the 
approval of shareholders for waiving the recovery of excess remuneration.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its IND AS financial statements.

	 ii.	 The Company does not have any long term contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses including derivative contracts. 

	 iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

								        For NSR & Co
								        Chartered Accountants
								        Firm Regn.No.0105022S

Place: Chennai							       N. Sowrirajan
Date:  18.11.2020						      Proprietor
								        M. No. 207820
								        UDIN: :20207820AAAACI3104
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the Members of TCP Limited of even date):

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of  
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TCP LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the 
Company.



T C P LIMITED

85

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

								        For NSR & Co
								        Chartered Accountants
								        Firm Regn.No.0105022S

Place: Chennai							       N. Sowrirajan
Date:  18.11.2020						      Proprietor
								        M. No. 207820
								        UDIN: :20207820AAAACI3104
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’  

section of our report to the Members of TCP Limited of even date)

i.	 In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

 	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets

	 (b)	 The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the year in a 
phased manner, and no material discrepancies between the books records and the physical 
fixed assets have been noticed.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name 
of the Company.

ii.	 The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of such verification is reasonable. On the basis of our examination of records of 
Inventories, in our opinion, the Company has maintained proper records of Inventories and no 
material discrepancies were noticed between physical stock and book records.

iii.	 The Company has taken unsecured loan from 10 parties covered in register maintained under 
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the year-end balance of such loan taken from such 
parties was Rs. 929.24 lakhs.

	 According to the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion, the Company is regular 
in payment of principal and interest to the parties, wherever applicable, from whom loans have 
been taken by the Company.

iv.	 The company has not given/made any loans, investments, guarantees, and securities requiring 
compliance with the provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
compiled with the provisions of Section 73 to 76 and any other relevant provision of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 with regards to the deposits 
accepted from the public. As per information and explanations given to us, no order in respect of 
the above has been passed on the Company by the Company Law Board or National Company 
Law Tribunal or RBI or any other Court or and other Tribunal in respect of the aforesaid deposits. 

vi.	 We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company Specified by the Central 
Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the 
opinion that prima facie the prescribed amounts and records have been made and maintained. 
We have however not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including  
	 Provident Fund,Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and  
	 other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

		  As at 31st March 2020, the following are the particulars of disputed statutory dues that have 
not been deposited.
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Particulars of 
Dispute

Amount  
(In Rs)

Forum where 
pending Remarks

Excise Duty 6,01,696/- Tribunal Rs.2,37,655 has been paid under 
protest

Excise Duty 1,99,984/- Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Rs.62,599 has   been  paid under 
protest

Electricity Tax 20,80,980/- Honourable 
Supreme Court of 
India

Interim stay for the payment of the 
taxes had been granted by the 
Honourable High Court of Madras. 
The appeal is pending disposal by 
the Honourable Supreme Court Of 
India.

Income Tax 
(AY 2008-09)

6,25,26,170/- Commissioner 
(Appeals)

First appeal is pending.

viii.	The company has not taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the government 
and has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the order is not 
applicable to the Company.

ix.	 The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. The Company has not 
raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or 
term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

x.	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the year.

xi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, Managerial Remuneration to the extent 
of Rs. 680.73 Lakhs has been paid in excess of the limits prescribed under section 197 read with 
Schedule V of the Act. However we are informed that the Company is in the process of getting the 
approval of shareholders for waiving the recovery of excess remuneration.

xii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company 
as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

xiii.	According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv.	During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv.	 According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not 
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

xvi.	According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be 
registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

								        For NSR & Co
								        Chartered Accountants
								        Firm Regn. No.0105022S

Place: Chennai							       N. Sowrirajan
Date:  18.11.2020						      Proprietor
								        M. No. 207820
								        UDIN: :20207820AAAACI3104
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Note  No. As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March, 31 2019

A ASSETS ` `  
Non-current assets
   Property, plant and equipment 4  9,150.39  9,505.12 
   Intangible assets 4  5.80  15.79 
   Capital work in progress 5  1,196.58  1,193.02 
   Investment Property 6  302.44  303.54 
   Financial Assets
   Investments 7  22,894.55  22,911.45 
   Other  financial assets 8  542.39  522.43 
   Other non-current assets 9  3,752.69  3,840.35 
Total Non-current assets  37,844.84  38,291.70 

Current assets
   Inventories 10  5,361.67  7,317.61 
   Financial Assets
   Trade receivables 11  8,573.60  7,869.68 
   Cash and cash equivalents 12  107.14  618.03 
   Bank balances other than above 13  29.41  71.01 
   Other  Financial assets 14  91.37  100.54 
   Other current assets 15  2,348.12  3,356.04 
Total Current Assets  16,511.31  19,332.91 

Total Assets  54,356.15  57,624.61 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
   Equity
      Equity share capital 16  503.19  503.19 
      Other equity 17  40,978.42  41,450.42 
Total equity  41,481.61  41,953.61 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
   Financial liabilities
   Borrowings 18  828.03  903.32 
   Other financial liabilities 19  331.62  350.55 
   Provisions 20  69.62  58.19 
   Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 21  49.09  342.64 
Total Non-current liabilities  1,278.36  1,654.70 

Current liabilities
   Financial liabilities
      Borrowings 22  5,441.39  4,565.89 
      Trade payables 23  2,675.70  6,847.27 
      Other financial liabilities 24  119.13  31.02 
      Other current liabilities 25  3,254.29  2,477.28 
      Short Term Provisions 26  105.67  94.84 
Total current liabilities  11,596.18  14,016.30 
Total liabilities  12,874.54  15,671.00 

Total Equity and Liabilities  54,356.15  57,624.61 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
				    As per our report of even date attached
                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820
Place : Chennai			                    

UDIN:20207820AAAACI3104

Date  :  18th November, 2020
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended  
31  March, 2020

For the year ended  
31  March, 2019

CONTINUING OPERATIONS                         `                       `
A Income

Revenue from operations 27  24,960.61  36,071.68 
Other income 28  600.59  281.42 
Total income  25,561.20  36,353.11 

 

Expenses
    (a) Cost of materials consumed 29  16,277.00  23,996.42 
    (b) Purchases of traded stock 30  -    777.59 
    (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods 31  (98.47)  (14.54)
    (d) Employee benefits expense 32  2,894.81  2,838.06 
    (e) Finance costs 33  716.92  734.16 
    (f)  Depreciation 34  610.10  615.69 
    (g) Other expenses 35  5,859.58  5,842.39 
Total expenses  26,259.94  34,789.77 

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary 
items and tax  (698.74)  1,563.34 
Exceptional items  -    -   
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax  (698.74)  1,563.34 
Extraordinary items - -
Profit / (Loss) before tax from continuing operations   (698.74)  1,563.34 
Income Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense for current year  -    603.00 
(b) Taxes relating to earlier years  -    91.59 
(c) Deferred tax (net)  (291.64)  (64.03)

 (291.64)  630.57 
Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations  (407.10)  932.77 

E Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss         
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations  (6.16)  201.90 
Income tax relating to these items  1.92  (70.55)
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax  (4.24)  131.35 
Total comprehensive income for the year  (411.34)  1,064.12 
Profit / (Loss) for the year  (411.34)  1,064.12 

Earnings per Equity share :
(i) Basic earnings per share  (8.09)  18.54 
(ii) Diluted earnings per share  (8.09)  18.54 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
				    As per our report of even date attached
                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820
Place : Chennai			                    

UDIN:20207820AAAACI3104

Date  :  18th November, 2020



90

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020
`

 For the year ended 
31 March 2019

`

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit /(loss) before tax  (698.74)  1,563.34 

     Adjustments for

         Depreciation and amortization expense  610.10  615.69 

         (Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed asset  (345.46)  -   

         Fair Value changes of investments considered to profit and loss  41.39  (7.56)

         CWIP written off  5.62  -   

         Rent Received  (32.83)  (30.75)

         Interest received  (85.76)  (98.81)

         Dividend Income  (128.52)  (124.26)

         Finance cost  716.92  672.94 

 82.70  2,590.59 
Change in operating assets and liabilities

     (Increase)/ decrease in Other financial assets  (19.96)  81.32 

     (Increase)/ decrease in inventories  1,955.95  960.12 

     (Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables  (703.92)  (48.14)

     (Increase)/ decrease in Other assets  1,164.95  (1,098.35)

     Increase/ (decrease) in provisions and other liabilities  904.17  (382.24)

     Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  (4,171.57)  2,088.43 

Cash generated from operations  (787.67)  4,191.73 
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds)  (69.38)  (692.09)

Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities (A)  (857.05)  3,499.64 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

     Purchase of PPE (including changes in CWIP)  (256.00)  (479.74)
     Sale proceeds of PPE (including changes in CWIP)  348.00  -   
     (Investments in)/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks  41.60  (11.20)
     (Investments in) equity shares of listed company  (24.49)  -   
     Interest income     94.94  121.55 
     Dividend Income  128.52  124.26 
     Rent received  32.83  30.75 
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (B)  365.40  (214.37)
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Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020
`

 For the year ended 
31 March 2019

`
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings  875.50  (1,656.96)
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings  (75.29)  (358.97)
Finance costs  (787.89)  (676.31)
Dividend Paid  (21.20)  (50.32)
Tax on Dividend  (10.34)  (10.34)
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C)  (19.23)  (2,752.90)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (510.89)  532.36 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  618.03  85.66 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  107.14  618.03 

Notes: 	
1.  The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7  
      “Cash Flow Statements”.	
2.   Components of cash and cash equivalents

  Balances with banks
      - in current accounts  72.17  602.65 
  Cash on hand  34.97  15.37 

 107.14  618.03 

				    As per our report of even date attached
                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820

Place : Chennai			                    
UDIN:20207820AAAAC13104

Date  :  18th November, 2020
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity Share Capital
Balance at the beginning of April, 2019  503.19 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance at the end of Mar, 2020  503.19 

(B) Other Equity

Particulars Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Other  
Comprehensive 

Income
Total

Balance as at April, 2018  0.01  25.00  20,563.60  19,858.35  -    40,446.96 
Additions/(deductions) during the year  -    -    500.00  932.77  131.35  1,564.12 
Transfers to reserves during the year  -    -    -    (500.00)  -    (500.00)
Transfers to retained earnings during 
the year  -    -    -    -    (131.35)  (131.35)

Transfer from Comprehensive income  -    -    -    131.35  -    131.35 
Dividend and tax on dividend paid 
during the year  -    -    -    (60.66)  -    (60.66)

Balance as at April, 2019  0.01  25.00  21,063.60  20,361.80  -    41,450.42 
Additions/(deductions) during the year  -    -    -    (407.11)  (4.24)  (411.34)
Transfers to reserves during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Transfers to retained earnings during 
the year  -    -    -    -    4.24  -   

Transfer from Comprehensive income  -    -    -    (4.24)  -    -   
Dividend and tax on dividend paid 
during the year  -    -    -    (60.66)  -    (60.66)

Balance as at March, 2020  0.01  25.00  21,063.60  19,889.80  -    40,978.42 

				    As per our report of even date attached

                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820

Place : Chennai			                    
UDIN:20207820AAAACI3104

Date  :  18th November, 2020
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
1	 Corporate Information							     
	 TCP Ltd (the Company) is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies 

Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of Sodium 
Hydrosulphite, Liquid Sulphur Dioxide and generation and sale of power.		

2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements				  
	 Statement of compliance							     
	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

(Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017.

	 Basis of preparation and presentation						    
	 For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company prepared 

its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). 

	 The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first financial statements 
the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS with the date of transition as April 1, 
2017. Refer to note 51 for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.	

	 Use of estimates							     
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised prospectively in current and future periods. 

	 Functional and presentation currency						    
	 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s 

functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the 
nearest lakhs (up to two decimals). 

	 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 
18th November, 2020.							     

2A	 Critical accounting estimates and management judgments			 
	 In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management 

of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant.						    
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	 Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in 
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised 
in the financial statements is included in the following notes:			

	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Intangible Assets and Investment Properties
	 The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible Assets and Investment 

Properties are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account 
the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past 
history of replacement and maintenance support. Upon review, the management accepts 
the assigned useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortization. 
Also, management judgement is exercised for classifying the asset as investment property 
or vice versa.

	 Current tax						   
	 Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and 

management’s judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of 
relevant provisions of law.

	 Deferred Tax Assets						    
	 Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at 

each reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained / 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with 
future tax planning strategies. 						    

	 Fair Value						    
	 Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments 

where active market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, 
management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions 
that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would 
use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its 
best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates 
may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the 
reporting date.

	 Impairment of Trade Receivables						    
	 The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default 

and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of impairment 
are based on management judgement considering the past history, market conditions and 
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.	

	 Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE/Intangible Assets/Investment property) 
	 The  impairment  of  non-financial  assets  is  determined  based  on  estimation  of recoverable  

amount  of  such  assets.  The  assumptions  used  in  computing  the recoverable amount 
are based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount 
rates and the risks specific to the asset.					   

	 Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term benefits			 
	 The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits, and the present value of 

such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. 
Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the 
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discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and  its  long term  nature, this  obligation is  
highly sensitive  to changes  in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

	 Fair value measurement of financial instruments				  
	 When  the  fair  values  of  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  could  not  be measured 

based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including 
the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value  The  inputs  to  these  
models  are  taken  from  observable  markets  where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

	 Provisions and contingencies
	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the 

probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at 
the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from 
the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.					  

2B	 Recent accounting pronouncements		  				  
	 Standards issued but not yet effective						    
	 The following standards have been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
	 a.   	Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective from April 1, 2019) 

b.   	Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 
c.   	Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income taxes regarding recognition of deferred tax assets  
	 on unrealised losses

	 The Company is evaluating the requirements of the above standards/its applicability to the 
Company and the effect on the financial statements is also being evaluated.

3	 Significant Accounting Policies							     
	 a)	 Current versus non-current classification	 				  

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ 
non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:						    
i)	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle	
ii)	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading					   
iii)	Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv)	Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a  
     liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
	 All other assets are classified as non-current.					   
	 A liability is current when:						    

i)	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle			
ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading					  
iii)	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv)	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period					   
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		  All other liabilities are classified as non-current.		
		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

		  The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and  
	 their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 12 months as  
	 its operating cycle.

	 b)	 Fair value measurement						    
	 The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each 

reporting period.						    
	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer 
the liability takes place either:				  

	 i) 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability;					   
	 ii) 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or  

	 liability.					  
	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
	 The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest.						    

	 A fair value measurement of a non - financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by 
selling it to another  market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.		

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:	

	 Level 1: 	 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or  
	 liabilities;						   

	 Level 2 :	 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair  
	 value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and		

	 Level 3 : 	 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair  
	 value measurement is unobservable.					   

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.		

	 The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and 
procedures for both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement.  External valuers 
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are involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Company’s board of directors.  
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether 
professional standards are maintained. 

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and 
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.  The component wise fair value 
measurement is disclosed in the relevant notes.

	 c)	 Revenue Recognition						    
	 Sale of goods						    
	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is 
being made. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership 
is transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the dispatch of the goods or as per 
the Inco-terms agreed with the customers.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods after 
deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on sale. It also excludes value of 
self-consumption.

	 Power Generation						    
	 Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking arrangement 

with the State Electricity Board/Electricity Distribution Companies are consumed at factories. 
The monetary values of such power generated that are captively consumed are not 
recognised as revenue. 						    

	 Export entitlements	 					   
	 Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in 
respect of the exports made by the Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty 
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.	

	 Interest Income						    
	 Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly 

discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the 
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount 
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.			 

	 Rental income						    
	 Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the 

relevant lease, if the escalation is not a compensation for increase in cost inflation index.
	 Dividend income						    
	 Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established 

by the reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.	
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	 d)	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress	
	 Presentation						    
	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes 
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying 
asset,  if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on 
their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or 
loss as incurred. 						    

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet 
date, are disclosed as capital advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of 
the tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital 
work in progress.

	 Component Cost						    
	 All material / significant components have been identified for our plant and have been 

accounted separately. The useful life of such component are analysed independently and 
wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful 
life of components are considered for calculation of depreciation.			 

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of 
repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

	 Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of 
fixed assets and their issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such 
spares is charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and 
when consumed.	

	 Derecognition						    
	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured 

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized

	 e)	 Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment		
	 Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful 

life. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted 
for cost, less 5% being its residual value.

	 Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013.						    

	 Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such 
additions. For deletion/ disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the 
date on which such assets have been discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing 
5000 each or less are fully depreciated. 		

	 The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate.						    
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	 f)	 Intangible assets						    
	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost 

of a separately acquired intangible asset comprises (a) its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; and 
(b) any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.

	 Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

	 Useful life and amortisation of intangible assets			 
	 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible 

assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

	 Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follow:	

  Assets Category Estimated useful life (in years)
  Technical know-how 5

	 The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

	 g)	 Investment property	 					   
	 Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 

(including property under construction for such purposes).			 
	 Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent 

to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16 - 
Property, plant and equipment’s requirements for cost model. The cost includes the cost of 
replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced 
at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. 
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 
incurred.	

	 Company depreciates investment property as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013.						    

	 Though the Company measures investment property using the cost-based measurement, 
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined 
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer 
applying a valuation model.			

	 An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.	
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	 h)	 Inventories						    
	 Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost includes cost of 

purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Costs are determined on weighted average method following basis :	

	 i) 	 Raw materials, consumable stores and machinery spares : At purchase cost, viz., the  
	landed cost, excluding taxes.		

	 ii) 	 Work in progress: At cost, which includes the cost of raw materials and an appropriate 
share of production overheads on weighted average cost basis up to the stage of 
completion or the net realisable value, whichever is lower,  after adjustment of unrealised 
profits on inter division transfer.

	 (iii) Finished goods and waste : At the lower of the cost or net realisable value. The cost 
includes landed cost of raw materials consumed, conversion costs and other costs 
directly attributable to bring the finished goods to the present location and condition, as 
reduced by recovery of by-products.

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 i)	 Financial Instruments						    
	 Financial assets						    
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments.	
	 Initial recognition and measurement						    
	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets 

not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to 
the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market 
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

	 Subsequent measurement						   
	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of managing them.
	 Financial assets are classified into the following categories:			 
	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at amortised cost		
	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVTOCI)					   
	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at 

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)					   
	 ●	 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

(FVTOCI)					   
	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at amortised cost		
	 The Company classifies a financial instruments other than equity instruments as at amortised 

cost, if both the following conditions are met:				  
	 a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 

contractual cash flows; and					   
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	 b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.	

		  Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. 				  

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at FVTOCI			 
	 The Company classifies a financial instrument other than equity at FVTOCI, if both of the 

following criteria are met:	
	 a)	 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling the financial assets, and					   
	 b)	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.	
	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments included within the FVTOCI category 

are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized 
in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the group recognizes interest income, 
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss 
statement. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI 
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.		

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at FVTPL			 
	 The Company classifies all financial instruments other than equity instruments, which do not 

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.	
	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are 

measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.		
	 Equity investments						    
	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 

which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where  the Company makes an 
irrevocable election of equity instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent changes 
in the fair value in other comprehensive income, without any recycling of the amounts from 
OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of such investments.			 

	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the profit and loss.						    

	 Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual 
terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents solely payments of principal 
and interest thereon, are measured as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans to related  parties,  deposits, interest 
receivable and other advances recoverable in cash.

FVTOCI	 Equity investments in companies other than Subsidiaries and Associates 
as an option exercised at the time of initial recognition.	

FVTPL		 Other investments   in  equity instruments.
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	 Derecognition						    
	 A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:					   
	 ●	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or		
	 ●	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

	 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues 
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement.   
In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and 
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 
the Company has retained.						    

	 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.			 

	 Impairment of financial assets						    
	 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit 
risk exposure:						    

	 a)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,  
	 loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.	

	 b)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI		
	 c)	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that  

	 result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.
	 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
	 ●	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and				     

●	 All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17
	 The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes 

in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected 
Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.	

	 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to 
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

	 Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime 
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date.						    
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	 ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., 
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the 
Company considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument and 
Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to 
the contractual terms.						    

	 ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense 
in the statement of profit and loss, net of lien available on securities held against the 
receivables. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. 
The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

	 ●	 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying 
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment 
allowance from the gross carrying amount.		

	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial 
assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from 
its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the 
OCI.	

	 For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial 
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating 
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a 
timely basis.					   

	 For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each 
reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar 
credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done retrospectively on the 
following basis:

Name of the financial asset Impairment Testing Methodology			 
Trade Receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over 

lifetime of the assets are estimated by using a provision  matrix  
which  is  based  on  historical  loss rates reflecting  current 
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions which 
are grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics such 
as nature of industry,  customer  segment,  past  due  status  
and other factors that are relevant to estimate the expected 
cash loss from these assets.

Other financial assets When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month 
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. When there is 
significant change in credit risk since initial recognition, the 
impairment is measured based on probability of default over 
the life time. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the  entity  
reverts  to  recognising  impairment  loss allowance based 
on 12 month ECL.
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	 Financial liabilities						   
	 Initial recognition and measurement						    
	 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as 

at amortised cost.						    
	 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as 
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.			 

	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.	

	 The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.		

	 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL						    
	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities 
are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined 
by Ind AS 109.

	 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
	 For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own 

credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit 
and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All 
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and 
loss.		

Classification Name of the financial liability
Amortised cost Borrowings, Trade payables, Interest accrued, Unclaimed/ Disputed 

dividends, Security deposits and other financial liabilities not for trading.
FVTPL Foreign exchange Forward contracts being derivative contracts do 

not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109 and other financial 
liabilities held for trading.

	 Loans and borrowings						    
	 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when 
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities						    
	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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	 Reclassification of financial assets						    
	 The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. 

After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity 
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those 
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior 
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal 
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to 
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or 
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies 
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date 
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in 
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

	 The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:	

S.No. Original 
classification

Revised 
classification Accounting treatment

1. Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortized cost and 
fair value is recognised in P&L.

2. FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on 
the new gross carrying amount.

3. Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortised cost and 
fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR 
due to reclassification.

4. FVTOCI Amortised 
cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its 
new amortised cost carrying amount. However, 
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against 
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as 
if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

5. FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.

6. FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. 
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification 
date.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.						    
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	 j.	 Foreign currency transactions and translations		

	 Transactions and balances							     

	 Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are 
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. However, for 
practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual 
rate at the date of the transaction.						    

	 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences 
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss 
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value 
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively).					   

	 k.	 Borrowing Costs						    
	 Borrowing cost  include  interest  computed using Effective  Interest  Rate  method, 

amortisation  of  ancillary  costs  incurred  and  exchange  differences  arising  from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a 
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of borrowing 
cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred 
on such cost. The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted average rate of 
borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during 
the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying 
asset. The amount of borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the period does 
not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowings 
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

	 l.	 Taxes						    
	 Current income tax						    
	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the 
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.		

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
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situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where  appropriate.		

	 Deferred tax						    
	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax 

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at 
the reporting date.						    

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.	

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets 
arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised 
to the extent of deferred tax liability.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.		

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised 
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.			

	 n.	 Retirement and other employee benefits			 
	 Short-term employee benefits						    
	 A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is 

rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
that service.						   

	 Defined contribution plans						   
	 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 

Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The 
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, 
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme 
for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, 
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution 
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent 
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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	 Defined benefit plans						    
	 The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to 

be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.			 

	 Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return 
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), 
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to 
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.			 

	 Compensated absences						    
	 The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and 

non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences 
is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance 
sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / 
availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. 
Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which 
the absences occur.						   

	 Other long term employee benefits						    
	 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the 

present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. 	

	 o.	 Leases						   
	 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 

substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, 
a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on  the use of a specific asset or assets 
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right  is not 
explicitly specified in an arrangement.						    

	 For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2017, the Company has determined whether 
the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date 
of transition.						    

	 A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the 
Company is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are operating leases.

	 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are 
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with 
the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as 
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.	
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	 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no 
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, 
the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease 
term.						    

	 p.	 Impairment of non financial assets						    
	 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset 

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount.						    

	 q.	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset			 
	 Provisions						   
	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 

as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.						    

	 Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax 
rates that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in 
the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	 Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made if realisation of money is 
doubtful in the judgement of the management. 

	 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from Covid-19 
	 The World Health Organisation (WHO) had declared Covid-19 pandemic as a global 

pandemic on 11th March 2020.  The Government of India had announced a nationwide lock 
down from 25th March 2020.  Due to this lockdown the operations in the Chemical Plant and 
the Power Plant got temporarily disrupted. Though the Plants started functioning, after the 
initial lockdown period, as they are continuous process plants, there was labour shortage 
and fall in demand. In the light of these circumstances, the Company has considered the 
possible effects that may result from COVID 19 on the carrying amount of financial assets, 
inventory, receivables, advances, Property plant and equipment etc. as well as liabilities 
accrued. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the 
economic conditions because of this pandemic, the company has used internal and external 
information such as current contract terms, financial strength of parties etc. Having reviewed 
the underlying data and based on current estimates the Company expects the carrying 
amount of these assets will be recovered and there is no significant impact on the liabilities 
accrued.  The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ from 
that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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	 Contingent liability						   
	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will 

be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because 
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A 
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed 
separately.		

	 Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation 
of contingent liabilities only when converted into demand.		

	 Contingent assets						    
	 Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description 

of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where 
practicable, an estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not 
recognised in the financial statements.

	 r.	 Cash and cash equivalents						    
	 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-

term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 s.	 Cash Flow Statement						    
	 Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future cash receipts or payments.						    

	 Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where 
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash 
management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents 
for the purpose of Cash flow statement.

	 t.	 Earnings per share						    
	 The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable 

to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period.  

	 Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity 
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently 
for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares 
are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.	
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `

5.  Capital Work-in-progress
     Capital work in progress 1,196.58  1,193.02 

1,196.58 1,193.02

6.  Investment Property

Particulars Tangible Assets
 Land  Buildings  Total  

Gross Carrying Value  as at April 1, 2018  282.79  22.94  305.73 
Additions  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
Ind AS adjustments  -    -    -   
Cost as at April 1, 2019  282.79  22.94  305.73 
Additions  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
Ind AS adjustments  -    -    -   
Cost as at March 31, 2020  282.79  22.94  305.73 
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1st April, 2018  -    1.10  1.10 
Depreciation/Amortization
Charge for the year  -    1.09  1.09 
Ind AS Adjustments  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at March 31, 2019  -    2.19  2.19 
Charge for the year  -    1.10  1.10 
Ind AS Adjustments  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at March 31, 2020  -    3.29  3.29 

Net Block
As at April 1, 2018  282.79  21.84  304.63 
As at March 31, 2019  282.79  20.75  303.54 
As at March 31, 2020  282.79  19.65  302.44 
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Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `
7.  Non-current investments
     Investments in equity instruments
     Non- trade - Unquoted - at cost
     Subsidiaries
     TCP Hotels Pvt Ltd. (Subsidiary Company)
     (48,000 ( 2019 - 48000 )shares of Rs.10/- each)  893.25  893.25 
     Associates
     M/s Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Pvt Ltd.
     (70,000 ( 2019 - 70000 )shares of Rs.100/- each)  70.00  70.00 
Non-trade-Unquoted - Fair valued through  
     profit and loss*
     Other companies
     Jugal Chemicals Ltd
     (10,000 (2019- 10000 ) shares of Rs.10/- each)  1.00  1.00 
     Madras Enterprises Ltd 
     (13,67,050 (2019 - 13,67,050 ) shares of Rs.1/- each)  35.98  35.98 
Non-trade-Quoted - Fair valued through profit and loss*
     Associates
     Binny Mills Ltd 
     (63,670 ( 2019 - 5664 )shares of Rs.10/- each)  38.06  13.58 
     Clariant Chemicals (India) Ltd 
     (352 ( 2019 - 352 ) shares of Rs.10/- each)  0.80  2.90 
     Indian Overseas Bank 
     (28,100 (2019 - 28,100 ) shares of Rs.10/- each)  1.99  12.95 
     IDBI Bank Ltd 
     (27,360 ( 2019 - 27,360 ) shares of Rs.10/- each)  5.28  25.21 
     Indian Bank (formerly  Allahabad Bank)
     (2,035 (2019-17,700 ) shares of Rs.10/- each,  
     Persuant to amalgamation of Allahabad Bank with   
     Indian Bank with effect from 01st April, 2020)

 1.35  9.74 

Non-trade-Unquoted - at amortised cost
Investment in preference shares     
    Binny Mills Limited
    (27,60,54,066  ( 2019 - 27,60,54,066)  13,802.70  13,802.70 
    preference shares of Rs.5/- each)
    M/s Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Pvt Ltd. 
    (18,14,075  ( 2019 - 18,14,075 )  8,120.37  8,120.37 
    preference shares of Rs.100/- each)
    National Savings Certificates  0.23  0.23 

 22,971.02  22,987.92 
    Less: Provision for diminution in the value of  
              investments  76.46  76.46 

        22,894.55  22,911.45 
*  Fair values have been determined to the extent information available with the Company in  
   respect of the investments in unlisted companies. In the opinion of the management, the  
     impact of fair value changes, is not considered to be material. 
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Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `
Total non-current investments
Aggregate amount of quoted investments  47.49  64.39 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  47.49  64.39 
Aggregate cost of unquoted investments  22,923.53  22,923.53 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  76.46  76.46 

Note 8 -Other non-current Financials Assets
     (unsecured, considered good)
     Bank deposits maturing after 12 months from  
     the reporting date *  352.31  345.85 

     Security deposits  192.08  176.58 
 542.39  522.43 

* represents earmarked deposits held as per Companies (Deposit Acceptance) Rules 2014 and     
   as margin money against letter of credit.

9.  Other non-current assets
     (Unsecured, considered good)
     Capital Advances  2,146.38  2,146.38 
     Advance for vehicle  85.20  109.11 
     Advance for property  529.42  662.55 
     Advance Income Tax (net of provisions)  991.69  922.31 

 3,752.69  3,840.35 

10. Inventories
      Raw Materials  2,430.68  3,232.71 
      Goods in Transit  0.73  1,427.63 
      Work in Progress  60.41  63.33 
      Finished goods (other than those acquired for trading)  156.37  57.90 
      Stores and spares  2,713.48  2,536.04 

 5,361.67  7,317.61 
      Inventory comprise of Raw Materials
      Sodium Formate  415.81  341.76 
      Caustic Soda Lye  53.35  46.16 
      Sulphur  53.88  65.08 
      Coal  1,816.74  2,693.16 
      Others  90.90  86.55 

 2,430.68  3,232.71 
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Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `

Work in progress
Caustic Soda Lye  16.10  16.10 
Sulphur  1.82  1.82 
Others  42.49  45.41 

 60.41  63.33 

Finished goods
Sodium Hydrosulphite  94.66  23.69 
Liquid Sulphur Dio-xide  12.46  3.76 
Others  49.25  30.46 

 156.37  57.90 

11.  Trade receivables
      (Unsecured, considered good)
       Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six        
       months from the date they are due for payment  3,835.78  3,308.11 

       Other Trade Receivables  4,764.39  4,588.14 
       Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  (26.57)  (26.57)

 8,573.60  7,869.68 

12.   Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  34.97  15.37 
Balances with Banks         
    In current accounts  72.17  602.65 

 107.14  618.03 

13.   Other Bank Balances
Unpaid dividend account  29.41  0.30 
Bank deposits maturing within 12 months from the 
reporting date  -    70.71 

 29.41  71.01 
14. Other current financial assets

(Unsecured, considered  doubtful)
Inter-corporate deposits and interest accrued thereon  208.43  192.09 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss  (208.43)  (192.09)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest accrued  91.37  100.54 

 91.37  100.54 
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Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `
15.   Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and advances to related parties
Others  0.97  0.66 
Loans and advances to employees  10.73  4.11 
Prepaid expenses  110.82  147.84 
Prepaid gratuity  40.72  30.41 
Balance with the Government Authorities
GST credit receivable  63.11  12.64 
Claims recoverable  238.01  484.30 
Advance to suppliers  1,636.98  2,344.06 
Others advances  246.78  332.02 

 2,348.12  3,356.04 

16. Capital
Authorised Share Capital
1,17,50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights  1,175.00  1,175.00 
11% Cumulative Redeemable preference shares of  
Rs.100/- each  25.00  25.00 

 1,200.00  1,200.00 
Issued Share Capital
50,31,909 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting 
rights  503.19  503.19 

 503.19  503.19 
Subscribed and fully paid up share capital
50,31,909 Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting 
rights  503.19  503.19 

 503.19  503.19 
Notes:
1. Reconciliation of number of equity shares 

subscribed
Balance at the beginning and end of the year  50.32  50.32 

2. Shares issued for consideration other than cash
There are no shares which have been issued for  
consideration other than cash during the last 5 years.

3. The company does not have any holding company
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       4.   Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total share capital

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Name of the share holder No of shares % of Holding No of shares %  of Holding

Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Pvt Ltd.,  13,08,300 26.00%  13,08,300 26.00%
Shri V R Venkataachalam  12,43,449 24.71%  12,43,249 24.71%
ICL Financial Services Ltd  4,59,480 9.13%  4,59,480 9.13%
Shri V Sengutuvan  3,60,664 7.17%  3,61,664 7.19%
ICL Securities Ltd  2,70,272 5.37%  2,70,272 5.37%

	 5.	 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the  
     Company

	 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re.10 each. The 
equity shares of the company having par value of Re.10/- rank pari-passu in all respects 
including voting rights and entitlement to dividend. The dividend proposed if any, by the 
Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. During the year, the Company proposed a dividend of INR 1/- per equity 
share held (Previous year INR 1/- per equity share held)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `

17. Other Equity
Capital Reserve  0.01  0.01 
Capital Redemption Reserve  25.00  25.00 
General Reserve  21,063.60  21,063.60 
Retained earnings  19,889.81  20,361.81 

 40,978.42  41,450.42 
a) Capital reserve
     Balance at the beginning and end of the year  0.01  0.01 

b) Capital Redemption Reserve
     Balance at the beginning and end of the year  25.00  25.00 

c) General reserve
    Balance at the beginning of the year  21,063.60  20,563.60 
       Transfer from retained earnings  -    500.00 
    Balance at the end of the year  21,063.60  21,063.60 
d) Retained earnings
     Balance at the beginning of the year  20,361.81  19,858.35 
     Comprehensive income for the year  (407.10)  932.77 
     Transfer to General Reserve  -    (500.00)
     Transfer from OCI  (4.24)  131.35 
     Dividend paid  (50.32)  (50.32)
     Tax on dividend paid  (10.34)  (10.34)
     Balance at the end of the year  19,889.80  20,361.81 
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Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `
e) Other Comprehensive Income
     Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
         Additions during the year  (4.24)  131.35 
         Transfer to balance in profit and loss account  4.24  (131.35)
     Balance at the end of the year  -    -   

18.  Long Term borrowings  
       Unsecured-Considered good

Loans from
     Key Management Personnel  65.24  103.23 
     Relatives of Key Management Personnel  292.63  346.84 
     Others  286.70  284.95 
Deposits from
     Inter Corporate Deposit  183.46  168.30 

 828.03  903.32 
19. Other non financial liabilities

Advance received  163.41  149.88 
Unamortised interest income  168.22  200.67 

 331.63  350.55 
20.  Provisions (Non-current)

Provision for Compensated Absences  69.62  58.19 

21.  Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) - Net
Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Liability
     On property plant and equipment  577.69  661.40 

 577.69  661.40 
Deferred Tax Asset
On expenses allowable on payment basis  158.74  186.56 
On fair valuation of financial instruments  110.01  122.92 
On Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  9.28  9.28 
On Un-absorbed losses  250.57  -   

 528.60  318.76 
Net Deferred tax liability / (asset)  49.09  342.64 

22.  Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings
Secured loans
   Cash Credit loans from
      Indian Overseas Bank  2,115.67  462.25 
      State Bank of India  1,048.24  1,031.86 
      IDBI Bank  1,277.49  1,071.78 
Short term Loans from    
      HDFC Bank  1,000.00  2,000.00 

 5,441.39  4,565.89 
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Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `

	 Terms of loan and security details 	
	 Cash Credit loans and short term loans from banks are secured by a pari passu first charge 

on the inventory of raw materials, stores and spares and finished goods and a pari passu 
second charge on the fixed assets of the Company (movable and immovable assets) 
except wind mills, the corporate office building and specific land and buildings situated 
at Bawa Road, Chennai and is collaterally secured by the personal guarantee of Shri V R 
Venkataachalam, promoter director of the Company.

	 Short term Loans from bank are secured by first charge on the Corporate Office building and 
specific land and builidngs situated at Bawa Road, Chennai and is collaterally secured by 
the personal guarantee of Shri V R Venkataachalam, promoter director of the Company.

23. Trade payable
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises **  24.68  6.85 
Dues to others  -    -   
    Acceptances  -    4,694.49 
    Other than acceptances  2,651.02  2,145.93 

 2,675.70  6,847.27 
  **  Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have 

been identified on the basis of information collected by the management represents the 
principal amount payable to these enterprises. There are no interest due and outstanding as 
at the reporting date. Please refer note 47.

24.  Other current financial liabilities
Security deposits received  119.13  31.02 

 119.13  31.02 
25.  Other current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt from
    Others  -    444.41 
Unclaimed deposits  57.98  94.54 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings  9.69  34.64 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings from
    Key Management Personnel  9.79  20.84 
    Relatives of Key Management Personnel  160.97  98.81 
    Others  113.90  211.04 
Other payables
    Statutory dues payable  113.39  120.05 
    Advances from customers  1,427.45  169.91 
    Employee related  payables  502.23  439.25 
    Unpaid dividend  29.41  0.30 
    Others Current Liabilities  829.48  843.49 

 3,254.29  2,477.28 



120

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2020
 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `

26.  Provisions (Current)
Provision for compensated absences  105.67  94.84 

 105.67  94.84 

27. Revenue from operations
Sale of Products (Refer (i) below)  24,868.90  35,923.58 
Other Operating Revenue (Refer (ii) below)  91.71  148.10 

 24,960.61  36,071.68 
(i)  Sale of products comprises
      Manufactured goods
      Sodium Hydrosulphite  7,052.87  10,428.79 
      Liquid Sulphur Dioxide  203.98  113.39 
      Sodium Formate Sulphoxilate   0.01  -  
      Recovery Salts  497.65  430.82 
      Power (Units in Lakhs)  17,107.10  24,230.44 
      Coal Trading  -    711.52 
      Miscellaneous Sales  7.29  8.63 
Total - Sale of manufactured goods  24,868.90  35,923.58 
Total - Sale of products  24,868.90  35,923.58 

(ii) Other operating revenue comprises
      Sales- Scrap  24.64  21.17 
      Export Incentive  10.52  32.50 
      Insurance Claims  -    10.46 
      Rent Received  18.00  18.00 
      Miscellaneous Income  38.55  65.97 
Total - Other operating revenues  91.71  148.10 
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Particulars

As at  
31 March, 2020

 `

As at  
31 March, 2019

 `

28.  Other income
Interest Income
     Deposits  22.50  26.29 
     Interest on loans and advances given  63.26  72.52 
Dividend Income:
     Non Current Investments  128.52  124.26 
     Net gain fair value of investments  -    7.56 
     Gain on exchange rate fluctuations  0.67  -   
     Rent received  40.18  37.69 
     Unclaimed credits written back  -    2.18 
     Prior period income  -    10.94 
     Profit on sale of asset  345.46  -   
Total  600.59  281.42 

 
Particulars

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

`

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

`
29. Cost of materials consumed
 MATERIALS CONSUMED     
    Opening Stock  4,660.34  5,839.32 

   (Add) Purchases  14,048.06  22,817.47 
   (Less) Closing Stock  (2,431.41)  (4,660.34)
Cost of Material Consumed  16,277.00  23,996.42 
Cost of Material Consumed      
   Sodium Formate  1,738.93  2,190.73 
   Caustic Soda Lye  1,022.85  1,285.76 
   Sulphur  408.10  642.68 
   Coal consumed  12,228.91  18,719.70 
   CR Sheets consumed  407.07  450.63 
   Others  471.13  706.92 
Total  16,277.00  23,996.42 

30.	 Purchase of stock-in-trade - Traded goods
 Non-coking coal  -    777.59 
  -    777.59 
31.	 Changes in inventories of finished goods
 Opening Balance
     Finished goods  57.90  43.36 

 57.90  43.36 
Closing Balance
    Finished goods  156.37  57.90 

 156.37  57.90 
Total changes inventories of finished goods  (98.47)  (14.54)
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Particulars
for the Year Ended 

March 31, 2020
`

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

`

32.	 Employee benefits expense
 Salaries, wages and bonus  2,450.60  2,246.61 
 Contribution to provident and other funds  154.50  154.34 

Staff/ workmen welfare expenses  289.71  437.11 
 2,894.81  2,838.06 

33.	 Finance Costs
 Interest on Borrowings  672.04  672.94 

    Bank Processing charges  44.88  61.23 
  716.92  734.16 
34.  Depreciation and amortization expense
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  599.01  599.68 
 Amortization of Intangible assets  9.99  14.91 

Depreciation on Investment property  1.10  1.10 
 610.10  615.69 

35.	 Other expenses
  Consumption of stores and spare parts  117.95  115.27 
  Power and fuel  3,061.28  3,295.89 

 Rent   71.85  65.40 
 Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  44.03  51.58 
 Repairs and maintenance - Machinery  979.86  755.18 
 Repairs and maintenance - Others   113.74  117.22 
 Insurance  152.85  81.04 
 Rates and taxes  303.91  483.82 
 Communication   22.95  27.60 
 Travelling and conveyance   38.24  68.81 
 Printing and stationery  16.99  15.30 
 Freight and forwarding   63.41  62.18 
 Sales commission   27.93  27.23 
 Business promotion   8.92  8.55 
 Legal and professional   9.36  22.41 
 Fees  500.35  209.90 
 Payments to auditors   10.62  10.62 
 Bad trade and other receivables written off  -    71.58 
 Prov for Bad & Doubtful Debts   -    26.57 
 Long pending advances written off  5.62  13.72 
 Net loss on foreign currency transactions   11.98  9.14 
 Prior period items (net)   4.10  -   
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  18.93  6.03 
 Investment Maintenance Expenses  0.47  0.06 
 Miscellaneous expenses   232.85  297.29 
 Loss on fair value of investments (net)  41.39  -   
 Total  5,859.58  5,842.39 
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Particulars
for the Year Ended 

March 31, 2020
`

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

`

35(a) Payments made to auditors comprises 
 As auditors - Statutory audit  10.62  10.62 

Total  10.62  10.62 

35(b)Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
 i. Gross amount required to be spent on Corporate

Social Responsibility during the year  38.59  44.66 
 ii. Amount spent during the year on    

(i)   Doctor and Nurse fees  4.95  4.62 
(ii)  Purchase of medicines  0.63  1.41 
(iii) Desilting and strenghening of Bunds etc.,  8.58  -   
(iv)  Distribution of Boiled Ponni Rice-Lock Down Period  4.77  -   

 18.93  6.03 
iii. Amount unspent during the year on  19.67  38.62 

* During the year the board could not spend 2% of its average profit for the last  three years 
since the managerial resources is in the process of exploring the CSR projects which meet 
the board policy and statutory requirements

36.   Income tax expense
 (a) Income tax expense
      Current tax

         Current tax on profits for the year  -    603.00 
         Adjustments for current tax of prior periods  -    91.59 
Total current tax expense  -    694.59 
Deferred tax
    Deferred tax adjustments  291.64  (64.03)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)  291.64  (64.03)
Income tax expense  291.64  630.57 
b) The income tax expense for the year can be 
reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operations  (698.74)  1,563.34 
Income tax expense calculated at 31.20% 
(2018-19: 34.944%)  -    546.29 

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 
in determining taxable profit:
Dividend income from equity instruments 
exempt u/s 10(34)  (40.10)  (43.42)
Expenses Disallowable u/s 14A  (9.36)  (43.42)
CSR expenditure  5.91  2.11 
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in 
determining taxable profit  (248.08)  169.01 

         Income tax expense  (291.64)  630.57 
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Particulars
for the Year Ended 

March 31, 2020
`

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

`

c) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive  
     income
Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  1.92  (70.55)
Total income tax recognised in other 
comprehensive income  1.92  (70.55)

      d)  Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in 
relation to:

Opening 
balance

Recognised in 
profit or loss

 Recognised 
in OCI 

 Closing 
balance 

Property, plant, and equipment and 
Intangible Assets  (661.40)  83.72  -    (577.69)

Expenses allowable on payment basis 
under the Income Tax Act  186.56  (29.74)  1.92  158.74 

Remeasurement of financial 
instruments under Ind AS  122.92  (12.91)  -    110.01 

On Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  9.28  -    -    9.28 
On Un-absorbed losses  -    250.57  -   250.57

Total  (342.64)  291.64  1.92  (49.09)

       e)  Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2019

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in 
relation to:

Opening 
balance

Recognised in 
profit or loss

 Recognised in 
OCI 

 Closing 
balance 

Property, plant, and equipment and 
Intangible Assets��     (612.44)  (48.96)  -    (661.40)

Expenses allowable on payment basis 
under the Income Tax Act  150.77  106.35  (70.55)  186.56 

Remeasurement of financial 
instruments under Ind AS  125.56  (2.64)  -    122.92 

On provision for Bad & Doubtful debts  -    9.28  -    9.28 
Total  (336.12)  64.03  (70.55)  (342.64)

37.  Earnings per share

 Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to owners of 
the Company  (407.11)  932.77 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding  50,31,909  50,31,909 

Basic earnings per share (Rs)  (8.09)  18.54 
Diluted earnings per share (Rs)  (8.09)  18.54 
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38.	 Turnover

Particulars

For the period  
Ended 31.03.2020

For the year Ended 
31.03.2019

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

CHEMICAL DIVISION - MFG:
Sodium Hydrosulphite  9,867  7,052.87  11,777  10,428.79 
Liquid Sulphur Dioxide  907  203.98  518  113.39 
Sulphoxilates  -    0.01  -    -   
Recovery Salts  2,662  497.65  2,066  430.82 
Others  -    7.29  -    8.63 
WIND MILLS
Power (Units in Lakhs)  207  747.95  239  856.88 
POWER DIVISION: MFG *
Power (Units in Lakhs)  2,730  16,359.16  4,022  23,373.56 
Coal Trading  -    -    13,302  711.52 

 24,868.90  35,923.58 
       Sales are inclusive of Excise Duty and Education Cess and net of Sales Returns & Discount

39.	 Consumption of Raw Materials:

Particulars

For the period  
Ended 31.03.2020

For the year Ended 
31.03.2019

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

CHEMICAL DIVISION :
Sodium Formate  6,214  1,738.93  6,997  2,190.73 
Caustic Soda Lye  2,619  1,022.85  3,040  1,285.76 
Sulphur  4,852  408.10  5,222  642.68 
Others  1,588  249.98  1,760  429.64 
C R Sheets  757  407.07  860  450.63 
POWER DIVISION:    
Coal  2,43,413  12,228.91  3,57,621  18,719.70 

 16,055.85  23,719.15 
The above consumption does not include the following produced internally for captive consumption

Liquid Sulphur Di-oxide                                  8,266 (2019 - 9,535) tonnes
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40. 	Capacities and Production:
Capacity per annum Opening Stock Production Closing Stock
Licenced 
(Tonnes)

Installed 
(Tonnes)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
`

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
`

CHEMICAL DIVISION:
Sodium Hydrosulphite  10,000  10,000  37  23.69  9,980  150  94.66 
(Enhanced)  (5)  (2.72)  (11,809)  (37)  (23.69)
Liquid Sulphur Di-oxide  4,950  4,950  26  3.76  9,241  94  12.46 

 (138)  (17.32)  (9,941)  (26)  (3.76)
Sulphoxilates  2,000  2,000  -    -    -    -    -   
(Enhanced)  (1)  (0.65)  -    -    -   
Recovery Salts  297  21.37  2,729  365  23.82 

 (66)  (5.33)  (2,297)  (297)  (21.37)

Drum Plant  2,484  9.09  1,49,194  8,534  25.43 
Packing Drums in all sizes 500 drums per day #  (6,780)  (17.35)  (1,63,701)  (2,484)  (9.09)

POWER DIVISION:
Generated units in lacs * 63.5 mw 63.5 mw  3,180 

 (4,657)
WINDMILLS: 16.5 mw 16.5 mw 209 
Generated units in lacs @ (242)

	   *The above production of units generated includes	 308 	  lac units (2019-422) utilised for captive consumption
	  #The above production of drums includes  	 1,43,144 	  drums (2019- 1,67,997) utilised for captive consumption
	 @ The above production of units generated includes 	 55 	  lac units (2019-58) utilised for captive consumption
	     (Figures in brackets indicate those for previous year. Installed capacities are as certified by the Management.)

 
Particulars

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

`

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

`
41.  Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis:

Raw Materials  1,587.68  4,435.74 
 1,587.68  4,435.74 

42.  Earnings  in Foreign Currency :
 FOB Value of Exports  969.37  2,915.37 

 969.37  2,915.37 
43.  Expenditure in Foreign Currency on travel
 Travel Expenses  -    3.42 

 -    3.42 
44.  Value of Raw Materials, Spares and Components consumed:

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019
Percentage (%) ` Percentage (%) `

(i)  Raw Materials
      Imported 63  10,056.54 51  12,031.32 
      Indigenous 37  5,999.31 49  11,687.83 

100  16,055.85 100  23,719.15 
(ii) Spares and Components
      Imported 2  7.53 33  209.73 
      Indigenous 98  313.56 67  420.89 

100  321.09 100  630.62 
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Particulars
For the year Ended 

31.03.2020
`

For the year Ended 
31.03.2019

`

45. Managerial Remuneration:
 Salary, Allowances and Commission *  459.90  423.55 

Contribution to Providend Fund & Group 
Gratuity Fund * *  31.82  30.68 

Perquisities  189.01  66.15 
 680.73  520.39 

   *  Does not include an amount of  ̀  (-)  97.50 lakhs /- (2019 - ̀  (-) 15.90 lakhs) towards  actuarial 
valuation of earned leave entitlement and not  actually drawn by the Managerial Persons.

 **  Does not include an amount of   ` (-) 2,.90 lakhs (2019- ` (-) 40.,92 lakhs ) towards actuarial 
valuation of Gratuity entitlement and not  actually drawn by the Managerial Persons.

46. Disclosure of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure
The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:       
As on March 31, 2020

Liabilities Assets Net overall 
exposure on 
the currency 
- net assets / 
(net liabilities)

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net liability 
exposure on 
the currency

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net asset 
exposure on 
the currency

USD -  -    -    -    -    -   
EUR  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
In INR -     -    -    -    -    -   

As on March 31, 2019

Liabilities Assets Net overall 
exposure on 
the currency 
- net assets / 
(net liabilities)

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net liability 
exposure on 
the currency

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net asset 
exposure on 
the currency

USD  59,61,550  -    -    59,61,550  -    -    59,61,550 
EUR  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
in INR  42,06,64,022  -    -    42,06,64,022  -    -    42,06,64,022 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis	 					   
Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major 
foreign currencies may impact the Company’s revenues from its operations. Any weakening 
of the functional currency may impact the Company’s cost of imports. The foreign exchange 
rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate 
exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign 
exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management’s assessment of the 
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only 
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the 
period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates.
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In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign 
exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the 
exposure during the year.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for 
both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating 
rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the 
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or 
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and 
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
The 25 basis point interest rate changes will impact the profitability by INR __ Lakhs for the year 
(Previous INR __ Lakhs)
Credit risk management
Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a 
customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to 
credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its financing/ investing 
activities, including deposits with banks and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has 
no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure is the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with 
banks, trade receivables, margin money and other financial assets excluding equity investments. 
(a) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit 
evaluation policy for each customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer 
is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by 
either bank, guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.
The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per 
simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables 
using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision 
at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.
(b) Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank deposits
Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is 
generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions, who 
have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved financial institutions/ counterparty. 
Investments primarily include bank deposits, etc. These bank deposits and counterparties have 
low credit risk. The Company has standard operating procedures and investment policy for 
deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in bank deposits, debt securities and 
restricts the exposure in equity markets.
Offsetting related disclosures
Offsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the multiple banking agreement is 
available only to the bank in the event of a default. Company does not have the right to offset in 
case of the counter party’s bankruptcy, therefore, these disclosures are not required.
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Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective 
of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available 
for use as per requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, which 
carry minimal mark to market risks. The Company also constantly monitors funding options 
available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.
Liquidity tables
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative 
financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company 
can be required to pay.
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020  Due in 1st year  Due in 2nd to 
5th year 

 Due after  
5th year 

 Carrying 
amount 

Trade payables  2,675.70  -    -    2,675.70 
Other financial liabilities  119.13  -    -    119.13 

 2,794.83  -    -    2,794.83 
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2019  Due in 1st year  Due in 2nd to 
5th year 

 Due after  
5th year 

 Carrying 
amount 

Trade payables  6,847.27  -    -    6,847.27 
Other financial liabilities  31.02  -    -    31.02 

 6,878.28  -    -    6,878.28 

    March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at 
fair value (but fair value disclosures are required): Nil Nil

47. Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development  
       (MSMED) Act, 2006 are as under

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year*  24.68  6.85 
(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the  
      appointed date during the year  -    -   

(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act  -    -   
(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, as per the agreed terms  -    -   
(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid  -    -   
 ** There are no micro, small and medium enterprises to whom the company owes dues which are   outstanding for more  
      than 45 days at the Balance Sheet date, computed on unit wise basis. 
**  The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information  
     available with the Company.
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48.  Commitments, contingent assets and contingent liability

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`
Contingent Liability
    Unexpired letter of credit  -    4,694.49 
On account of contracts to be executed 28.44 18.97
    Bank guarantees outstanding  214.16  707.85 
    Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts  497.33  497.33 
     -   Excise Duty*  8.02  8.02 
     -   Income tax dispute pending**  625.26  625.26 
     -   Unpaid demand charges***  717.19  603.85 
	 * 	The Company has preferred an appeal before the appellate authorities which is pending.
	 **	The company has preferred a rectification petition before the Assessing Officer and Appeal before the 

Appellate Authority, which are pending. The Company is confident of succeeding the aforesaid appeals 
in view of the fact that most of the issues are already settled in favour of the company by higher judicial 
forum. Out of this said amount Rs 1.07 lakhs (Rs 1.07 lakhs) has been paid under protest.

 *** The Company has filed a petition in the Honourable High Court of Madras against The Tamil Nadu 
Generation and Distribution Corporation Ltd., (TANGEDCO) to forebear them from demanding and 
collecting separate demand charges and energy charges as tariff for start-up power and to charge 
only energy charges and to refund the amount already collected on this account. The Company also 
filed a petition in the honourable High Court of Madras praying to grant an order of Interim Stay of all 
further proceedings in the matter filed in the original petition including by way of subsequent current 
consumption bills in so far as it relates to charges for start-up power. The Honourable High Court 
of Madras vide its Order dated 8th November, 2013 has passed an Order of Interim Stay in relation 
to charges for start-up power on the condition that the Company pays 50% of demand for start-up 
charges until further orders. Pursuant to the order the Company has been paying 50% of the demand 
for start-up charges on all the current consumption bills from October 2013 bill onwards. The balance 
50% unpaid demand charges is not provided for in the Books of Accounts on account of the Interim 
Stay.

49.  Operating Segments
	 The business of the Company falls under five segments i.e., (a) Chemical; (b) Power;  
	 (c) Biomass; (d) Windmill; and (e) Others in accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments”  
	 and segment information is given below:

i.  Segment Revenue
 a. Chemical  8,353.79  11,273.46 
 b. Power  17,238.68  24,187.56 
 c. Biomass  0.58  0.90 
 d. Windmill  1,013.14  856.88 
 e. Others  33.09  34.31 
 Total  26,639.27  36,353.11 
 Less: Inter- Segment Turnover  1,078.07  1,081.41 
 Income from operations (Net)  25,561.19  35,271.70 
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Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`

ii. Segment Results
a. Chemical  (359.84)  1,304.18 
b. Power  (57.83)  531.64 
c. Biomass  (172.20)  (193.72)
d. Windmill  406.34  472.72 
e. Others  (12.58)  (40.39)
Total  -196.11  2,074.43 
Finance cost  716.92  734.16 
Other unallocable expenditure net of un-allocable income  (214.28)  (223.07)
Profit/ (Loss) from continuing operations  (698.74)  3,031.66 
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  (698.74)  1,563.34 

 (698.74)  1,563.34 

iii. Segment Assets
a. Chemical  34,511.73  34,464.23 
b. Power  13,469.58  16,426.37 
c. Biomass  2,674.13  3,246.23 
d. Windmill  3,224.60  3,002.37 
e. Others  476.11  485.41 
Total assets  54,356.15  57,624.61 

 

iv. Segment Liabilities
a. Chemical  5,425.99  6,264.54 
b. Power  7,295.31  9,143.75 
c. Biomass  121.20  122.71 
d. Windmill  120.57  116.57 
e. Others  17.15  23.42 
Total liabilities  12,980.22  15,671.00 

v. Capital Employed (Segment Assets less Segment Liabilities)
a. Chemical  29,085.75  28,199.69 
b. Power  6,174.27  7,282.62 
c. Biomass  2,552.92  3,123.51 
d. Windmill  3,104.03  2,885.80 
e. Others  458.95  461.99 
Total Capital Employed  41,375.93  41,953.61 

Disclosure relating to geographical area of operation				 
The manufacturing facilities of the Company is situated in India and no non-current assets are 
held outside India. The exports of the company are less than 10% of the total turnover and 
accordingly, no disclosure in respect of revenue from external customers based on geographical 
location is provided.	
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50.  Operating lease arrangements 

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`
As Lessor

 The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for 
certain surplus facilities. The leases are cancellable at the option 
of either party to lease and may be renewed based on mutual 
agreement of the parties. 

 58.18  55.69 

Total lease income recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
As Lessee					   
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements 
for certain facilities. The leases are cancellable at the option 
of either party to lease and may be renewed based on mutual 
agreement of the parties. 

 71.85  65.40 

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss

51.  Government Grants
       The details of Government Grants received by the Company are as follows :

Duty drawback on exports			    10.52  32.50 
52.  Investment Property
 Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties

Rental income  32.83  30.75 
    Direct operating expenses from property that generated  
    rental income
    Direct operating expenses from property that did not  
    generate rental
    Depreciation 1.10 1.10
Fair Value of investment property
    Land  282.79  282.79 
    Building  19.65  20.75 

53.  Financial Instruments							     
Capital management							     
The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as 
going concern, while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and 
equity balance. 
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and 
long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through 
equity, long-term borrowings and other short-term borrowings. 
For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other 
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.		

Gearing Ratio: March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Debt  828.03  903.32 
Less: Cash and bank balances  107.14  618.03 
Net debt  720.89  285.30 
Total equity  41,481.61  41,953.61 
Net debt to equity ratio (%)	 1.74% 0.68%
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Categories of Financial Instruments March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost
    Non-current investments  22,810.09  22,810.09 
    Other non-current financial assets  542.39  522.43 
    Trade receivables  8,573.60  7,869.68 
    Cash and cash equivalents  107.14  618.03 
    Bank balances other than above  29.41  71.01 
    Other financial assets  91.37  100.54 
b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through  
    profit or loss (FVTPL)
    Investments  84.46  101.36 
Financial liabilities 
a. Measured at amortised cost
    Borrowings (Long term)  828.03  903.32 
    Other Non Current financial liabilities  331.63  350.55 
    Borrowings (short term)  5,441.39  4,565.89 
    Trade payables  2,675.70  6,847.27 
    Other financial liabilities  119.13  31.02 
b. Mandatorily measured at fair value  
    through profit or loss (FVTPL)  Nil  Nil 

Financial risk management objectives						   
The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and 
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations 
through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 
risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.
The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using natural hedging financial 
instruments to hedge risk exposures.  The Company does not enter into or trade financial 
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market risk							     

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows 
that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company’s activities 
expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
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54.  Related party disclosure                 

	 a) 	 List of parties having significant influence	
		  Subsidiary company	 :	 TCP Hotels Private Limited 	

		  Associate company	 :	 Binny Mills Limited				  
			     	Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Limited		
				    Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited

		  Key management personnel (KMP)	 :	 Shri V.R.Venkataachalam, Managing Director 
       				   Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director 

		  Companies in which KMP are interested	:	 Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited 

Relatives of KMP
	 The following persons are related to Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director,as stated:
	 Shri V. Sengutuvan,                                             Son
	 Smt. V. Samyuktha                                              Daughter  
	 Smt. T. Amudha,                                                  Sister      
	 Smt. M. Radha                                                     Sister 
	 Smt. Dr. R. Andal,                                                Sister
Entities in which relatives of KMP exercise significant influence : TVRRS Enterprises
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b)  Transactions during the year

S.No Nature of transactions
 Amount 

 2019-20
`

 2018-19 
`

1 TCP Hotels Private Limited
   Advances  (15.10)  (24.26)
   Rent paid  36.00  36.00 

2 Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited

   Advances 1.09    (7.66)

3 Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Limited

   Sale of Power  509.99  470.21 

4 Binny Mills Limited

   Advances  0.01  4.69 
   Purchases  8.82  7.57 

5 TVRRS Enterprises

   Rent Paid  12.00  12.00 

6 Mr. V.R. Venkataachalam

   Interest on Unsecured loans - Received  9.79  6.64 
   Interest on Unsecured loans - Paid  20.84  1.91 
   Fixed Deposit  -    (0.64)
   Unsecured Loans received  33.13  71.81 
   Interest paid on deposits  -    0.04 
   Remuneration & Employee Benefits  298.64  283.20 

7 Mr. V. Rajasekaran

   Remuneration & Employee Benefits  382.10  237.19 
8 Mr. V. Sengutuvan

   Interest on Unsecured loans - Received  8.38  7.96 
   Interest on Unsecured loans - Paid  15.99  - 
   Unsecured Loans received  3.61  3.62 

9 Ms. V. Samyuktha

   Interest on Unsecured loans  5.21  5.07 
   Unsecured Loans received  1.20  1.20 
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c)  Balance outstanding at the year end	

S.No Nature of transactions
 Amount 

 2019-20
`

 2018-19 
`

1 TCP Hotels Private Limited
   Advances  (20.12)  (5.03)
   Investment in shares  893.25  893.25 

2 Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited

   Advances  (109.45)  (110.54)
3 Binny Mills Limited

   Advances  0.01  0.13 

4 TVRRS Enterprises

   Advances  0.66  0.66 

5 Mr. V.R. Venkataachalam

   Interest accrued on unsecured loans  9.79  20.84 
   Unsecured Loans  65.24  103.23 

6 Mr. V. Sengutuvan

   Interest accrued on unsecured loans  8.38  15.99 
   Unsecured Loans  35.96  91.37 

7 Ms. V. Samyuktha

   Interest accrued on unsecured loans  13.14  7.93 
   Unsecured Loans  58.46  57.26 

8 Ms. T. Amudha,

   Interest accrued on unsecured loans  5.41  5.40 
   Unsecured Loans  60.00  60.00 

9 Ms. M. Radha

   Interest accrued on unsecured loans  5.25  19.51 
   Unsecured Loans  58.21  58.21 

10 Dr. R. Andal

   Interest accrued on unsecured loans  7.22  49.98 

   Unsecured Loans  80.00  80.00 
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55. 	Acknowledgement of Balances :
	 The Company has obtained confirmation from Banks except in few cases.  
	 The balance of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances, Un-secured Loans and
	 Trade Payables are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
56. Previous Year Figures have been re-grouped / reclassifed wherever necessary.
57.	 Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans
In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive 
benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and 
the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ 
salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the Provident fund.
The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs. (-)  10.31 lakhs (for the year ended 
March 31, 2019 (-) Rs. 167.13 lakhs) represents contribution payable to these plans by the 
Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.					   
Defined benefit plans 							     
(a) Gratuity  							     
Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.  In terms of the same, gratuity is 
computed by multiplying last drawn salary (basic salary including dearness Allowance if 
any) by completed years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months 
and again by 15/26.  The Act provides for a vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and 
retirement and a monetary ceiling on gratuity payable to an employee on separation, as may 
be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time.  However, in cases 
where an enterprise has more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, 
interest rate risk and salary risk.
Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate 
determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated in Indian 
Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be 
partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.
Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best 
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An 
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability. 
Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future 
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will 
increase the plan’s liability.
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The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as 
follows:

Particulars March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Mortality Table IALM(2006-08) Ult. IALM(2006-08) Ult.
Attrition rate 3.5% at all rates 3.5% at all rates
Discount Rate 7.71% p.a 7.71% p.a
Rate of increase in compensation level 3.50% p.a 3.50% p.a
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 3.50% p.a 3.50% p.a

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of 
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the 
employment market.	
Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit 
plans are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Mortality Table IALM(2006-08) Ult. IALM(2006-08) Ult.
Attrition rate 3.5% at all rates 3.5% at all rates
Current service cost  20.57 28.95
Net interest expense  57.88 71.83
Components of defined benefit costs 
recognised in profit or loss

 19.97 43.13

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit 
liability comprising:

 

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during 
the period

 (30.28)  (210.26)

Components of defined benefit costs 
recognised in other comprehensive income

 (30.28)  (210.26)

 (10.31)  (167.13)
The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 
employee benefits expense in profit or loss.
The actuarial gain/ loss on remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in 
other comprehensive income.
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect 
of its defined benefit plans is as follows:	

Present value of defined benefit obligation  783.81 771.76
Fair value of plan assets  (824.53)  (802.16)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  (40.72)  (30.40)
Funded  (40.72)  (30.40)
Unfunded   -     -   

 (40.72)  (30.40)

The above provisions are reflected under ‘Prepaid gratuity (other current liabilities)’ [Refer 
note 15] and  ‘Provision for gratuity (short-term provisions)’ [Refer note 27]



T C P LIMITED

139

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year 
were as follows:		

Particulars March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Opening defined benefit obligation  771.76 897.90
Current service cost  20.57 28.95
Interest cost  (58.48) 71.83
Actuarial (gains)/losses  (30.28)  (210.26)
Benefits paid  (10.31)  (16.66)
Closing defined benefit obligation  693.26 771.76

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets 730.83 730.83
Expected return on assets 57.65 57.65
Contributions 30.35 30.35
Benefits paid  (16.66)  (16.66)
Expected return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest expense)  -    -   
Closing fair value of plan assets 802.17 802.17

Sensitivity analysis							     
In view of the fact that the Company for preparing the sensitivity analysis considers the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation which has been calculated using the projected 
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in 
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet. 	
(b) Compensated absences							     
“Company is following the practice of valuing the compensated absence as per Ind AS 19 
“Employee Benefits” based on the leave balance outstanding on the employees account 
on March 31st every year. The payment is done as and when claims are received from the 
employees or on the date of retirement/ relieving from the service of the company.
The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial 
valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected 
unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the 
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense recognised 
during the year is Rs. 14.55 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 84.55 Lakhs).”		

				    As per our report of even date attached

                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820

Place : Chennai			                    
UDIN:20207820AAAACI3104

Date  :  18th November, 2020
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FORM AOC - I

(PERSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 READ WITH 
RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2015) STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT 
FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARY.

PART “ A ” : SUBSIDIARIES

1 SL NO 1
2 NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY: M/S TCP HOTELS PVT LTD.,
3 REPORTING PERIOD 01.04.2019 TO 31.03.2020
4 REPORTING CURRENCY IN LAKHS OF RUPEES
5 SHARE CAPITAL Rs.         5.00 
6 RESERVES OTHER EQUITY Rs.   966.68 
7 TOTAL ASSETS Rs.   972.39 
8 TOTAL LIABILITIES Rs.   972.39 
9 INVESTMENTS NIL 

10 TURNOVER Rs.     42.00 
11 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION Rs.     37.98 
12 PROVISION FOR TAXATION Rs.       7.31 
13 PROFIT AFTER TAXATION Rs.     30.67
14 PROPOSED DIVIDEND NIL
15 % OF SHAREHOLDING 96%

NOTE : DURING THE YEAR, THERE ARE NO SUBSIDIARIES WHICH ARE YET TO COMMENCE 
OPERATIONS OR WHICH HAVE BEEN LIQUIDATED OR SOLD DURING THE YEAR. 

                                             For and on behalf of the board			   For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820
			   UDIN:20207820AAAACI3104

Place : Chennai								      
Date  : 18th November, 2020



T C P LIMITED

141

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TCP LIMITED 
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TCP Limited (“the 
Company”) and its subsidiary (the Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the 
Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to 
as “the consolidated financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 
March 31, 2020, the consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Information other than the Financial statements and other information thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.  The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditors’ 
Report thereon. The other information included in the Company’s annual report other than the 
Consolidated Financial statements and Auditors report is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and 
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 



142

When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated 
total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of 
the Group in accordance with the IND AS specified under section 133 of the act and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible 
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also :

• 	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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•	 Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary 
company, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

• 	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• 	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• 	Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit 
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements 
of which we are the independent auditors. For the subsidiary included in the consolidated 
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters
We did not audit the financials of M/s TCP Hotels Pvt Ltd, its subsidiary, whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of Rs 972.39 lakhs as at 31st March, 2020, total revenue of  
Rs 42 lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs 15.19 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements are audited by 
other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures 
included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Sec 143 of the 
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor and the financial statements 
certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. 	As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) 	We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements.

b) 	In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of other auditor.

c) 	The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

e) 	On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company 
as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the 
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of 
the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls; refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
A” which is based on the auditor’s reports of the Company and its subsidiary company 
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of those 
companies, for reasons stated therein.

g) 	With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, managerial Remuneration to the extent of Rs. 680.73 Lakhs has been paid in excess 
of the limits prescribed under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.However, we are 
informed that the Company is in the process of getting the approval of the shareholders for 
waiving the recovery of excess remuneration.

h) 	With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us :
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i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the Group.

ii.	 Provision has been made in the Consolidated Financial Statements as required under the 
applicable law or Indian Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on 
long term contracts. 

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

								        For NSR & Co
								        Chartered Accountants
								        Firm Regn.No.0105022S

Place: Chennai							       N. Sowrirajan
Date:  18.11.2020						      Proprietor
								        M. No. 207820
								        UDIN: 20207820AAAACJ4910

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report to the Members of TCP Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of  
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and 
for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of TCP LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “Company”) and its subsidiary company, as 
of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and its subsidiary company, based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the 
Company and its subsidiary company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect thetransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company and its subsidiary company, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

								        For NSR & Co
								        Chartered Accountants
								        Firm Regn.No.0105022S

Place: Chennai							       N. Sowrirajan
Date:  18th November, 2020					     Proprietor
								        M. No. 207820
								        UDIN: 20207820AAAACJ4910
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars  Note  
No.

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March, 31 2019

A ASSETS ` `  
Non-current assets
    Property, plant and equipment 4  9,152.35  9,507.08 
    Intangible assets 4  5.80  15.79 
    Capital work in progress 5  1,196.58  1,193.02 
    Investment Property 6  1,194.48  1,197.23 
    Financial Assets     
       Investments 7  22,001.30  22,018.20 
       Other financial assets 8  542.39  522.43 
    Other non-current assets 9  3,752.81  3,840.62 
Total Non-current assets  37,845.71  38,294.37 

Current assets
    Inventories 10  5,361.67  7,317.61 
    Financial Assets    
       Trade receivables 11  8,616.55  7,906.16 
       Cash and cash equivalents 12  122.33  622.33 
       Bank balances other than above 13  29.41  71.01 
       Other  Financial assets 14  91.37  100.54 
    Other current assets 15  2,348.12  3,356.04 
    Total Current Assets  16,569.45  19,373.68 
Total Assets  54,415.16  57,668.05 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
    Equity share capital 16  503.19  503.19 
    Other equity 17  41,056.85  41,498.18 
    Total Equity  41,560.04  42,001.38 
    Equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company  41,556.90  41,999.47 
    Non-controlling interest  3.14  1.91 

 41,560.04  42,001.38 
Liabilities    
Non-Current Liabilities    
    Financial Liabilities    
    Borrowings 18  828.03  903.32 
    Other financial liabilities (net) 19  331.62  350.55 
    Provisions 20  69.62  58.19 
    Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 21  49.09  342.64 
Total Non-Current Liabiliies  1,278.36  1,654.70 

      

Current liabilities       
    Financial Liabilities       
       Borrowings 22  5,441.39  4,565.89 
       Trade payables 23  2,675.78  6,847.34 
       Other financial liabilities 24  119.13  31.02 
    Other current liabilities 25  3,234.80  2,472.89 
    Short Term Provisions 26  105.67  94.83 
    Total Current liabilities  11,576.77  14,011.97 
    Total liabilities  12,855.13  15,666.67 
Total  Equity and Liabilities  54,415.16  57,668.05 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
				    As per our report of even date attached
                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820

Place : Chennai			                    
UDIN:20207820AAAACJ4910

Date  :  18th November, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year ended  
31  March, 2020

For the year ended  
31  March, 2019

CONTINUING OPERATIONS                         `                       `
A Income

Revenue from operations 27  24,966.61  36,077.68 
Other income 28  600.59  281.42 
Total Income  25,567.20  36,359.11 

B Expenses    
(a) Cost of materials consumed 29  16,277.00  23,996.42 
(b) Purchases of traded stock 30  -    777.59 
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods 31  (98.47)  (14.54)
(d) Employee benefits expense 32  2,894.81  2,838.06 
(e) Finance costs 33  716.92  734.16 
(f)  Depreciation 34  611.74  617.33 
(g) Other expenses 35  5,825.97  5,809.88 
Total expenses  26,227.97  34,758.90 

C Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax  (660.77)  1,600.21 
Exceptional items  -    -   

D Profit / (Loss) before tax from continuing operations   (660.77)  1,600.21 
Income Tax expense:  -    -   
(a) Current tax expense for current year  7.31  610.40 
(b) Taxes relating to earlier years  -    91.59 
(c) Deferred tax (net)  (291.64)  (64.03)

 (284.33)  637.97 
Profit/(Loss) for the year before share of associates  (376.44)  962.24 
Share of profit of associates  -    -   
Profit / (Loss) for the year   (376.44)  962.24 

E Other Comprehensive income  -    -   
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss  -    -   
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations  (6.16)  201.90 
Income tax relating to these items  1.92  (70.55)
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax  (4.24)  131.35 
Total comprehensive income for the year  (380.67)  1,093.59 
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to : 
Equity holders of the company  (377.66)  961.06 
Non-controlling interest  1.23  1.18 

 (376.44)  962.24 
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: 
Equity holders of the company  (381.90)  1,092.41 
Non-controlling interest  1.23  1.18 

 (380.67)  1,093.59 
(i)  Basic earnings per share  (7.48)  19.12 
(ii) Diluted earnings per share  (7.48)  19.12 

 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 	
				    As per our report of even date attached
                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820

Place : Chennai			                    
UDIN:20207820AAAACJ4910

Date  :  18th November, 2020
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020
`

 For the year ended 
31 March 2019

`

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit /(loss) before tax  (660.77)  1,600.21 
     Adjustments for

     Depreciation and amortization expense  611.74  617.33 
     (Profit)/ Loss on sale of fixed asset  (345.46)  -   
     Fair Value changes of investments considered to profit and loss  41.39  (7.56)
     CWIP written off  5.62  -   
     Rent received  (32.83)  -   
     Interest received  (85.76)  (98.81)
     Dividend Income  (128.52)  (124.26)
     Finance cost  716.92  672.94 

 122.33  2,659.85 
Change in operating assets and liabilities

     (Increase)/ decrease in Other financial assets  (19.96)  81.58 
     (Increase)/ decrease in inventories  1,955.95  960.12 
     (Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables  (710.40)  (59.65)
     (Increase)/ decrease in Other assets  1,164.95  (1,020.80)
     Increase/ (decrease) in provisions and other liabilities  889.07  (377.22)
     Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  (4,171.57)  2,088.43 
Cash generated from operations  (769.62)  4,332.33 
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds)  (76.54)  (801.42)
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities (A)  (846.17)  3,530.92 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

     Purchase of PPE (including changes in CWIP)  (256.00)  (479.74)
     Sale proceeds of PPE (including changes in CWIP)  348.00  -   
     (Investments in)/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks  41.60  (11.20)
     (Investments in) equity shares of listed company  (24.49)  -   
     Interest income  94.94  121.55 
     Dividend Income  128.52  124.26 
     Rent received  32.83  -   
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (B)  365.40  (245.13)
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Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020
`

 For the year ended 
31 March 2019

`

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

     Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings  875.50  (1,656.96)

     Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings  (75.29)  (358.97)

     Finance costs  (787.89)  (676.31)

     Dividend Paid  (21.20)  (50.32)

     Tax on Dividend  (10.34)  (10.34)

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C)  (19.23)  (2,752.90)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (500.01)  532.89 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  622.33  89.44 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  122.33  622.33 

Notes: 	
1.  ‘1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7  
     “Cash Flow Statements”.	
2.  Components of cash and cash equivalents

    Balances with banks
    -  in current accounts  87.31  606.91 
    Cash on hand  35.02  15.42 

 122.33  622.33 

				    As per our report of even date attached

                                             For and on behalf of the board			   For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820

Place : Chennai			                    
UDIN:20207820AAAACJ4910

Date  :  18th November, 2020



152

Statement of Consolidated Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) 

(A) Equity Share Capital
Balance at the beginning of April, 2019  503.19 
Changes in equity share capital during the year   -   
Balance at the end of March, 2020  503.19 

(B)   Other Equity

Particulars Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

General     
Reserve

Retained  
Earnings

Other  
Comprehensive 

Income
Total

Balance as at April, 2018  0.01  25.00  20,563.60  19,876.63  -    40,465.25 
 Additions/(deductions) during the year  -    -    500.00  932.77  131.35  1,564.12 
 Transfers to reserves during the year  -    -    -    (500.00)  -    (500.00)
 Transfers to retained earnings uring the year  -    -    -    -    (131.35)  (131.35)
 Transfer from Comprehensive income  -    -    -    131.35  -    131.35 
 Dividend and tax on dividend paid during the year  -    -    -    (60.66)  -    (60.66)
 Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    -    29.48  -    29.48 
 Balance as at April, 2019  0.01  25.00  21,063.60  20,409.57  -    41,498.18 
 Additions/(deductions) during the year  -    -    -    (376.44)  (4.24)  (380.67)
 Transfers to reserves during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Transfers to retained earnings uring the year  -    -    -    -    4.24  4.24 
 Transfer from Comprehensive income  -    -    -    (4.24)  -    (4.24)
 Dividend and tax on dividend paid during the year  -    -    -    (60.66)  -    (60.66)
 Balance as at March, 2020  0.01  25.00  21,063.60  19,968.23  -    41,056.85 

				  
As per our report of even date attached

                                             For and on behalf of the board			   For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820

Place : Chennai			                    
UDIN:20207820AAAACJ4910

Date  : 18th November, 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of  Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1	 Corporate Information							     
	 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of “TCP Limited” (“the 

Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group”) for the year 
ended March 31, 2020.

	 TCP Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. 
The Holding Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of Sodium 
Hydrosulphite, Liquid Sulphur Dioxide and generation and sale of power. The Holding 
Company has invested in TCP Hotels private Limited.

2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements				  
	 Statement of compliance							     
	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

(Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017.

	 Basis of preparation and presentation						    
	 For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Group prepared its 

financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). 	 

	 The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 are the first financial statements 
the Group has prepared in accordance with Ind AS with the date of transition as April 1, 2017. 
Refer to note 53 for information on how the Group adopted Ind AS.

	 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprises of TCP Limited and TCP Hotels Private 
Limited, being the entity that it controls. Controls are assessed in accordance with the 
requirement of Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements.

	 The Consolidated Financial Statements also includes the financials of Thiruvalluvaar Textiles 
Private Limited and Binny Mills Limited, the associate companies accounted on equity 
method as per Ind AS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”.

	 Principles of Consolidation
	 (a)	The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are combined on 

a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, 
expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group 
transactions.

	 (b)	Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, 
such as Inventory and Property, Plant and Equipment, are eliminated in full.
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	 (c)	The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting 
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

	 (d)	The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminated) 
against the parent’s portion of equity in each subsidiary.

	 (e)	 Investment in Associates has been accounted under the Equity Method as per Ind AS 
28 – Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

	 (f)	 Non-Controlling Interest’s share of profit / loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year 
is identified and adjusted against the income of the Group in order to arrive at the net 
income attributable to shareholders of the Company

	 (g)	Non-Controlling Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified 
and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

	 Use of estimates						    
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised prospectively in current and future periods. 

	 Functional and presentation currency
	 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Group’s 

functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the 
nearest lakhs (up to two decimals). 

	 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on  
28th May, 2019.	

2A	 Critical accounting estimates and management judgments		
	 In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management 

of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant.

	 Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in 
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised 
in the financial statements is included in the following notes:	

	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Intangible Assets and Investment Properties
	 The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible Assets and Investment 

Properties are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account 
the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past 
history of replacement and maintenance support. Upon review, the management accepts 
the assigned useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortization. 
Also, management judgement is exercised for classifying the asset as investment property 
or vice versa.
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	 Current tax						   
	 Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and 

management’s judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of 
relevant provisions of law.	

	 Deferred Tax Assets						    
	 Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at 

each reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained / 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with 
future tax planning strategies.  						    

	 Fair Value						    
	 Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments 

where active market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, 
management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions 
that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would 
use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its 
best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates 
may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the 
reporting date.						    

	 Impairment of Trade Receivables
	 The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default 

and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of impairment 
are based on management judgement considering the past history, market conditions and 
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.			

	 Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE/Intangible Assets/Investment property)  
	 The  impairment  of  non-financial  assets  is  determined  based  on  estimation  of recoverable  

amount  of  such  assets.  The  assumptions  used  in  computing  the recoverable amount 
are based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount 
rates and the risks specific to the asset.

	 Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term benefits		
	 The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits, and the present value of 

such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. 
Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and  its  long term  nature, this  obligation is  
highly sensitive  to changes  in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

	 Fair value measurement of financial instruments				  
	 When  the  fair  values  of  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  could  not  be measured 

based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including 
the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value  The  inputs  to  these  
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models  are  taken  from  observable  markets  where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

	 Provisions and contingencies
	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the 

probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at 
the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from 
the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.	

2B	 Recent accounting pronouncements						    
	 Standards issued but not yet effective						    
	 The following standards have been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
	 a.   	Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective from April 1, 2019)
	 b.  	Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
	 c.  	 Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income taxes regarding recognition of deferred tax assets on  

	 unrealised losses
	 The Group is evaluating the requirements of the above standards/ its applicability to the 

Group and the effect on the financial statements is also being evaluated.	
3	 Significant Accounting Policies							     
	 a)	 Current versus non-current classification	 				  

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification.
 An asset is treated as current when it is:						    
i)	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
ii)	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading					   
iii)	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or		
iv)	Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability  
	 for at least twelve months after the reporting period

	 A liability is current when:						    
i)	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle		
ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading				  
iii)	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv)	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.		
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified 12 months as its operating 
cycle.
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b)	 Fair value measurement						    
	 The Group has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each reporting 

period.					   

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer 
the liability takes place either:				  

	 i) 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability;					   
	 ii) 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or  

	 liability.					  
	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
	 The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non - financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by 
selling it to another  market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.		

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:	

	 Level  1	 : 	Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities;
	 Level  2 	: 	Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair  

		  value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
	 Level  3 	: 	Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair  

		  value measurement is unobservable.
	 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 

the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

	 The Group has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and 
procedures for both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement.  External valuers 
are involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Group’s board of directors.  Selection 
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. 

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Group has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level 
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.  The component wise fair value measurement 
is disclosed in the relevant notes.
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	 c)	 Revenue Recognition						    
	 Sale of goods						    
	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 

to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is 
being made. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership 
is transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the dispatch of the goods or as per 
the Inco-terms agreed with the customers.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods after 
deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on sale. It also excludes value of 
self-consumption.

	 Power Generation						    

	 Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking arrangement 
with the State Electricity Board/ Electricity Distribution Companies are consumed at 
factories. The monetary values of such power generated that are captively consumed are 
not recognised as revenue.  						    

	 Sale of renewable energy certificates						    

	 Revenue from sale of renewable energy certificate is recognised on sale of such certificate  
and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant 
export proceeds.						    

	 Export entitlements	 					   

	 Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in 
respect of the exports made by the Group, and where there is no significant uncertainty 
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.	

	 Interest Income						    
	 Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly 

discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the 
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount 
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.			 

	 Rental income						    
	 Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the 

relevant lease, if the escalation is not a compensation for increase in cost inflation index.

	 Dividend income						    
	 Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established by 

the reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
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	 d)	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress	
	 Presentation						    
	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes 
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying 
asset,  if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their 
specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss 
as incurred.  						    

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet 
date, are disclosed as capital advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of 
the tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital 
work in progress.

	 Component Cost						    

	 All material/ significant components have been identified for our plant and have been 
accounted separately. The useful life of such component are analysed independently and 
wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful 
life of components are considered for calculation of depreciation.			 

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of 
repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

	 Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of 
fixed assets and their issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such 
spares is charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and 
when consumed.	

	 Derecognition						    

	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

	 e)	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment		

	 Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful 
life. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted 
for cost, less 5% being its residual value.

	 Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013.						    

	 Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such 
additions. For deletion/ disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the 
date on which such assets have been discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing 
5000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.  		
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	 The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate.						    

	 f)	 Intangible assets						    

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost 
of a separately acquired intangible asset comprises (a) its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; and 
(b) any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.

	 Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  

	 Useful life and amortisation of intangible assets			 

	 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible 
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. 

	 Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follow:	

  Assets Category Estimated useful life (in years)
  Technical know-how 5

	 The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

	 g)	 Investment property	 					   

	 Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
(including property under construction for such purposes).			 

	 Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16 - 
Property, plant and equipment’s requirements for cost model. The cost includes the cost of 
replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced 
at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 
incurred.	

	 Group depreciates investment property as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013.						    

	 Though the Group measures investment property using the cost-based measurement, the 
fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based 
on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a 
valuation model.
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	 An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.	

	 h)	 Inventories						    

	 Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost includes cost of 
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Costs are determined on weighted average method following basis :	

	 i) 	 Raw materials, consumable stores and machinery spares : At purchase cost, viz., the 
landed cost, excluding taxes.		

	 ii) 	 Work in progress: At cost, which includes the cost of raw materials and an appropriate 
share of production overheads on weighted average cost basis up to the stage of 
completion or the net realisable value, whichever is lower,  after adjustment of unrealised 
profits on inter division transfer.

	 iii) 	 Finished goods and waste : At the lower of the cost or net realisable value. The cost 
includes landed cost of raw materials consumed, conversion costs and other costs 
directly attributable to bring the finished goods to the present location and condition, as 
reduced by recovery of by-products.	

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 i)	 Financial Instruments						    
	 Financial assets						    
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments.						    
	 Initial recognition and measurement						    
	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets 

not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery 
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place 
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits 
to purchase or sell the asset.

	 Subsequent measurement						   
	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of managing them.
	 Financial assets are classified into the following categories:			 
	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at amortised cost		
	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVTOCI)					   
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	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at 
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)					   

	 ●	 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI)					   

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at amortised cost		

	 The Group classifies a financial instruments other than equity instruments as at amortised 
cost, if both the following conditions are met:				  

	 a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows; and					   

	 b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.	

		  Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.  				  

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at FVTOCI			 
	 The Group classifies a financial instrument other than equity at FVTOCI, if both of the following 

criteria are met:	
	 a)	 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling the financial assets, and					   
	 b)	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.	
	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments included within the FVTOCI category 

are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized 
in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the group recognizes interest income, 
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss 
statement. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI 
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.		

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at FVTPL			 
	 The Group classifies all financial instruments other than equity instruments, which do not 

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.	
	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are 

measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.		
	 Equity investments						    
	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 

which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where  the Group makes an irrevocable 
election of equity instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent changes in the fair 
value in other comprehensive income, without any recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
profit and loss, even on sale of such investments.			 
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	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the profit and loss.						    

	 Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual 
terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents solely payments of principal 
and interest thereon, are measured as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans to related  parties,  deposits, interest 
receivable and other advances recoverable in cash 

FVTOCI	 Equity    investments    in    companies    other    than Subsidiaries and 
Associates as an option exercised at the time of initial recognition.

FVTPL		 Other investments in equity instruments.
	 Derecognition						    

	 A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:					   

	 ●	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or		

	 ●	 The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed 
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

	 When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues 
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In 
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Group has retained.						   

	 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.			 

	 Impairment of financial assets						    

	 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit 
risk exposure:						    

	 a)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost  
	 e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.	

	 b)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI		

	 c)	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that  
	 result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.
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	 The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
	 ●	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and				     

●	 All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

	 The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit 
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss 
(ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.	

	 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group 
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to 
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

	 Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime 
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date.						    

	 ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all 
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Group 
considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, 
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument and Cash flows from 
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms.						    

	 ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense 
in the statement of profit and loss, net of lien available on securities held against the 
receivables. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. 
The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

	 ●	 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying 
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment 
allowance from the gross carrying amount.		

	 ●	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since 
financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further 
reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment 
amount’ in the OCI.	

	 For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial 
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating 
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a 
timely basis.					   

	 For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each 
reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar 
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credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done retrospectively on the 
following basis:

Name of the financial asset Impairment Testing Methodology			 

Trade Receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over 
lifetime of the assets are estimated by using a provision  
matrix  which  is  based  on  historical  loss rates reflecting  
current conditions and forecasts of future economic 
conditions which are grouped on the basis of similar 
credit characteristics such as nature of industry,  customer  
segment,  past  due  status  and other factors that are relevant 
to estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.

Other financial assets When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month 
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. When there is 
significant change in credit risk since initial recognition, the 
impairment is measured based on probability of default over 
the life time. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the  entity  
reverts  to  recognising  impairment  loss allowance based 
on 12 month ECL.

	 Financial liabilities						   

	 Initial recognition and measurement						    

	 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as 
at amortised cost.						    

	 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as 
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.			 

	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.	

	 The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.		

	 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL						    

	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities 
are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by 
Ind AS 109. 

	 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
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	 For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own 
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit 
and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other 
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The 
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Classification Name of the financial liability
Amortised cost Borrowings, Trade payables, Interest accrued, Unclaimed/ Disputed 

dividends, Security deposits and other financial liabilities not for trading.
FVTPL Foreign exchange Forward contracts being derivative contracts do 

not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109 and other financial 
liabilities held for trading.

	 Loans and borrowings						    

	 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when 
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.  

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities						    

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

	 Reclassification of financial assets						    

	 The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments 
and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is 
made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes 
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management 
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which 
are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A 
change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an 
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies 
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the 
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does 
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) 
or interest.



T C P LIMITED

167

	 The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:	

S.No. Original 
classification

Revised 
classification Accounting treatment

1. Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference 
between previous amortized cost and fair value is 
recognised in P&L.

2. FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross 
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new 
gross carrying amount.

3. Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair 
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to 
reclassification.

4. FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative 
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. 
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always 
been measured at amortised cost.

5. FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.

6. FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to 
P&L at the reclassification date.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.						    

	 j.	 Foreign currency transactions and translations		
	 Transactions and balances							     
	 Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are 

recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. However, for 
practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual 
rate at the date of the transaction.						    

	 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences 
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss 
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value 
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively).					   

	 k.	 Borrowing Costs						    
	 Borrowing cost  include  interest  computed using Effective  Interest  Rate  method, 

amortisation  of  ancillary  costs  incurred  and  exchange  differences  arising  from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost 
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capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use. The Group determines the amount of borrowing cost eligible 
for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. 
The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted average rate of borrowing cost 
applicable to the borrowings of the Group which are outstanding during the period, other 
than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of 
borrowing cost that the Group capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of 
borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowings costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur.

	 l.	 Taxes						    
	 Current income tax						    
	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the 
countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.		

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where  appropriate.		

	 Deferred tax						    
	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax 

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at 
the reporting date.						    

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.	
	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 

be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets 
arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised 
to the extent of deferred tax liability.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.		

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised 
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.		 	
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	 m.	 Retirement and other employee benefits			 
	 Short-term employee benefits						    
	 A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is 

rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
that service.					  

	 Defined contribution plans						   
	 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group 

has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group 
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an 
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service 
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit 
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already 
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received 
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the 
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

	 Defined benefit plans						    
	 The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to 

be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.			 

	 Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return 
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), 
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to 
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.			 

	 Compensated absences						    
	 The Group has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-

accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is 
determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance 
sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / 
availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. 
Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which 
the absences occur.						   

	 Other long term employee benefits						    
	 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the 

present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.  	

	 n.	 Leases						   
	 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 

substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, 
a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on  the use of a specific asset or assets 
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right  is not 
explicitly specified in an arrangement.						    

	 For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2017, the Group has determined whether the 
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of 
transition.						    
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	 A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the 
Group is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are operating leases.	

	 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are 
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance 
with the Group’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised 
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.		

	 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no 
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the 
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease 
term.			 

	 o.   Impairment of non financial assets						    
	 The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset 

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset 
is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount.

	 p.   Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset		
	 Provisions						    
	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.						    

	 Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using 
pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an 
increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These 
provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates.	

	 Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made if realisation of money is 
doubtful in the judgement of the management. 				  

	 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from Covid-19
	 The World Health Organisation (WHO) had declared Covid-19 pandemic as a global 

pandemic on 11th March 2020.  The Government of India had announced a nationwide lock 
down from 25th March 2020.  Due to this lockdown the operations in the Chemical Plant and 
the Power Plant got temporarily disrupted. Though the Plants started functioning, after the 
initial lockdown period, as they are continuous process plants, there was labour shortage 
and fall in demand. In the light of these circumstances, the Company has considered the 
possible effects that may result from COVID 19 on the carrying amount of financial assets, 
inventory, receivables, advances, Property plant and equipment etc. as well as liabilities 
accrued. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the 
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economic conditions because of this pandemic, the company has used internal and external 
information such as current contract terms, financial strength of parties etc. Having reviewed 
the underlying data and based on current estimates the Company expects the carrying 
amount of these assets will be recovered and there is no significant impact on the liabilities 
accrued.  The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ from 
that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

	 Contingent liability						   
	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will 

be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because 
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A 
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed 
separately.	

	 Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation 
of contingent liabilities only when converted into demand.			 

	 Contingent assets				  
	 Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Group discloses a brief description of 

the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, 
an estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the 
financial statements.			 

	 q.  	Cash and cash equivalents					     	
	 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-

term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 r. 	 Cash Flow Statement						    
	 Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future cash receipts or payments.						    

	 Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where 
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash 
management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents 
for the purpose of Cash flow statement.						    

	 s.	 Earnings per share						    
	 The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable 

to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period.  

	 Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity 
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently 
for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares 
are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(All amounts are in  Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

5. Capital Work-in-progress
Capital work in progress  1,196.58  1,193.02 

 1,196.58  1,193.02 

6.	 Investment Property

PARTICULARS
Tangible Assets

 Land  Buildings  Total  

Gross Carrying Value  as at April 1, 2018  1,147.54  56.82  1,204.36 
Additions  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
Ind AS adjustments  -    -    -   
Cost as at April 1, 2019  1,147.54  56.82  1,204.36 
Additions  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
Ind AS adjustments  -    -    -   
Cost as at March 31, 2020  1,147.54  56.82  1,204.36 
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1st April, 2018  -    4.39  4.39 
Depreciation/Amortization  -    -    -   
Charge for the year  -    2.74  2.74 
Ind AS Adjustments  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at March 31, 2019  -    7.14  7.14 
Charge for the year  -    2.74  2.74 
Ind AS Adjustments  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at March 31, 2020  -    9.88  9.88 

   
Net Block
As at April 1, 2018  1,147.54  52.43  1,199.97 
As at March 1, 2019  1,147.54  49.69  1,197.23 
As at March 31, 2020  1,147.54  46.94  1,194.48 
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Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`
7. Non-current investments

     Investment in equity instruments 
Non-trade-Unquoted - at cost 
     Associates 
     M/s Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Pvt Ltd. 
     (70,000 (2019 - 70000) shares of Rs.100/- each)  70.00  70.00 
Non-trade-Unquoted - Fair valued through profit and loss* 
     Other companies 
     Jugal Chemicals Ltd 
     (10,000 (2019- 10000 ) shares of Rs.10/- each)  1.00  1.00 
     Madras Enterprises Ltd 
     (13,67,050 (2019 - 13,67,050 ) shares of Rs.1/- each)  35.98  35.98 
Non-trade-Quoted - Fair valued through profit and loss* 
     Associates 
     Binny Mills Ltd   38.06  13.58 
     (63,670 (2019 - 5664)shares of Rs.10/- each) 
     Clariant Chemicals (India) Ltd  
     (352 (2019 - 352) shares of Rs.10/- each)  0.80  2.90 
     Indian Overseas Bank  
     (28,100 (2019 - 28,100) shares of Rs.10/- each)  1.99  12.95 
     IDBI Bank Ltd  
     (27,360 (2019 - 27,360) shares of Rs.10/- each)  5.28  25.21 
     Indian Bank (formerly  Allahabad Bank) 
     (2,035 (2019-17,700) shares of Rs.10/- each, Pursuant to      
     amalgamation of Allahabad Bank with Indian Bank with effect       
     from 01st April, 2020) 

 1.35  9.74 

 Non-trade-Unquoted - at amortised cost 
     Investment in preference shares 
     Binny Mills Limited
     (27,60,54,066  ( April 1, 2019 - 27,60,54,066)  13,802.70  13,802.70 
     preference shares of Rs.5/- each) 
     M/s Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Pvt Ltd.  
     (18,14,075  ( 2019 - 18,14,075 )   8,120.37  8,120.37 
     preference shares of Rs.100/- each) 
     National Savings Certificates  0.23  0.23 

 22,077.77  22,094.67 
Less: Provision for dimunition in value of investments  76.46  76.46 

 22,001.30  22,018.20 

* Fair values have been determined to the extent information available with the Company in respect of the  
   investments in unlisted companies.  In the opinion of the management, the impact of fair value changes, is not  
   considered to be material. 

     Total non-current Investments 
     Aggregate amount of quoted investments  47.49  64.39 
     Aggregate market value of quoted investments  47.49  64.39 
     Aggregate cost of unquoted investments  22,030.28  22,030.28 
     Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  76.46  76.46 
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Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

8. Other non-current Financials Assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Bank deposits maturing after 12 months from the reporting date * 352.31    345.85 
Security deposits 190.08   176.58 

542.39    522.43 
* represents earmarked deposits held as per Companies (Deposit Acceptance) Rules 2014 and as margin  
   money against letter of credit

9. Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital Advances  2,146.38  2,146.38 
Advance for vehicle  85.20  109.11 
Advance for property  529.43  662.55 
Advance Income Tax (net of provisions)  991.82  922.58 

 3,752.81  3,840.62 
10. Inventories

Raw Materials  2,430.68  3,232.71 
Goods in Transit  0.73  1,427.63 
Work in Progress  60.41  63.33 
Finished goods  156.37  57.90 
Stores and spares  2,713.48  2,536.04 

 5,361.67  7,317.61 
Inventory comprise of Raw Materials
Sodium Formate  415.81  341.76 
Caustic Soda Lye  53.35  46.16 
Sulphur  53.88  65.08 
Coal  1,816.75  2,693.16 
Others  90.90  86.55 

 2,430.68  3,232.71 
Work in progress
Caustic Soda Lye  16.10  16.10 
Sulphur  1.82  1.82 
Others  42.49  45.41 

 60.41  63.33 
Finished goods
Sodium Hydrosulphite  94.66  23.69 
Liquid Sulphur Dio-xide  12.46  3.76 
Others  49.25  30.46 

 156.37  57.90 
11. Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good)
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months 
from the date they are due for payment  3,835.78  3,308.11 

Other Trade Receivables  4,807.35  4,624.61 
Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts   (26.57)  (26.57)

 8,616.55  7,906.16 
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Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

12. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  35.02  15.42 
Balances with Banks
    In current accounts  87.31  606.91 

 122.33  622.33 
13. Other Bank Balances

Unpaid dividend account  29.41  0.30 
Bank deposits maturing within 12 months from the reporting date  -    70.71 

 29.41  71.01 
14. Other current financial assets

 (Unsecured, considered good doubtful) 
 Inter-corporate deposits and interest accrued thereon  208.43  192.09 
 Less: Allowance for expected credit loss   (208.43)  (192.09)
 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 Interest accrued  91.37  100.54 

 91.37  100.54 
15. Other current assets

 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 Loans and advances to related parties 
 Others  0.97  0.66 
 Loans and advances to employees  10.73  4.11 
 Prepaid expenses  110.82  147.84 
 Prepaid gratuity  40.72  30.41 
 Balance with the Government Authorities 
 GST credit receivable  63.11  12.64 
 Claims recoverable   238.01  484.30 
 Advance to suppliers  1,636.98  2,344.06 
 Others advances  246.78  332.02 

 2,348.12  3,356.04 
16. Capital

Authorised Share Capital
1,17,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights  1,175.00  1,175.00 
11% Cumulative Redeemable preference  
 shares of  Rs.100/- each  25.00  25.00 

 1,200.00  1,200.00 
Issued Share Capital
 50,31,909 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights  503.19  503.19 

 503.19  503.19 
Subscribed and fully paid up share capital
 50,31,909 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights  503.19  503.19 

 503.19  503.19 
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Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

       Notes:
1. Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed
    Balance at the beginning and end of the year  50.32  50.32 
2. Shares issued for consideration other than cash
    There are no shares which have been issued for consideration   
    other than cash during the last 5 years.
3. The company does not have any holding company
4. Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total share capital

Name of the share holder
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

No of shares %  of Holding No of shares %  of Holding

The Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Pvt Ltd.,  13,08,300 26.00%  13,08,300 26.00%
Shri V R Venkataachalam  12,43,449 24.71%  12,43,249 24.71%
ICL Financial Services Ltd  4,59,480 9.13%  4,59,480 9.13%
Shri V Sengutuvan  3,60,664 7.17%  3,61,664 7.19%
ICL Securities Ltd  2,70,272 5.37%  2,70,272 5.37%

5.  Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company
	 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re.10 each. The equity 

shares of the company having par value of Re.10/- rank pari-passu in all respects including voting 
rights and entitlement to dividend. The dividend proposed if any, by the Board of Directors, is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. During the year, the 
Company proposed a dividend of INR 1/- per equity share held (Previous year INR 1/- per equity 
share held)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

17.Other Equity
Capital Reserve  0.01  0.01 
Capital Redemption Reserve  25.00  25.00 
General Reserve  21,063.60  21,063.60 
Retained earnings  19,968.03  20,409.37 
Securities Premium Reserve  0.20  0.20 

 41,056.85  41,498.18 
a) Capital reserve
    Balance at the beginning and end of the year  0.01  0.01 

b) Capital Redemption Reserve
    Balance at the beginning and end of the year  25.00  25.00 
c) General reserve
    Balance at the beginning of the year  21,063.60  20,563.60 
       Transfer from retained earnings  -    500.00 
    Balance at the end of the year  21,063.60  21,063.60 



178

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

d) Retained earnings
     Balance at the beginning of the year  20,409.37  19,876.44 
     Comprehensive income for the year  (376.44)  962.24 
     Transfer to General Reserve  -    (500.00)
     Transfer from OCI  (4.24)  131.35 
     Dividend paid  (50.32)  (50.32)
     Tax on dividend paid  (10.34)  (10.34)
     Balance at the end of the year  19,968.03  20,409.37 
e) Other Comprehensive Income
     Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
     Additions during the year  (4.24)  131.35 
     Transfer to balance in profit and loss account  4.24  (131.35)
     Balance at the end of the year  -    -   
f)  Security Premium Reserve 
     Balance at the beginning and end of the year  0.20  0.20 

18.Long Term borrowings
Unsecured-Considered good
Loans from
    Key Management Personnel  65.24  103.23 
    Relatives of Key Management Personnel  292.63  346.84 
    Others  286.70  284.95 
Deposits from
    Inter corporate deposit  183.46  168.30 

 828.03  903.32 
19.Other non financial liabilities 

    Advance received    163.41  149.88 
    Unamortised interest income  168.21  200.67 

 331.62  350.55 
20.Provisions (Non-current)

    Provision for Compensated Absences  69.62  58.19 
 69.62  58.19 

21.Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liability
    On property plant and equipment  577.69  661.40 

 577.69  661.40 
Deferred Tax Asset
    On expenses allowable on payment basis  156.81  186.56 
    On fair valuation of financial instruments  110.01  122.92 
    On Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  9.28  9.28 
    On Un-absorbed losses  252.50  -   

 528.60  318.76 
    Net Deferred tax liability / (asset)  49.09  342.64 

22.Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings
Secured loans
Cash Credit loans from
    Indian Overseas Bank  2,115.67  462.25 
    State Bank of India  1,048.24  1,031.86 
    IDBI Bank  1,277.49  1,071.78 
Short term Loans from
    HDFC  1,000.00  2,000.00 

 5,441.39  4,565.89 
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Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2020
`

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

Terms of loan and security details  
Cash Credit loans and short term loans from banks are secured by a pari passu first charge on the inventory 
of raw materials, stores and spares and finished goods and a pari passu second charge on the fixed assets of 
the Company (movable and immovable assets) except wind mills, the corporate office building and specific 
land and buildings situated at Bawa Road, Chennai and is collaterally secured by the personal guarantee of 
Shri V R Venkataachalam, promoter director of the Company.
Short term Loans from bank are secured by first charge on the Corporate Office building and specific land and 
builidngs situated at Bawa Road, Chennai and is collaterally secured by the personal guarantee of Shri V R 
Venkataachalam, promoter director of the Company.

23.Trade Payables

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises **  24.68  6.85 
Dues to others
     Acceptances  -    4,694.49 
    Other than acceptances  2,651.09  2,146.01 

 2,675.78  6,847.34 

** Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been 
identified on the basis of information collected by the management represents the principal amount 
payable to these enterprises. There are no interest due and outstanding as at the reporting date. Please 
refer note 47.

24.Other current financial liabilities
Security deposits received  119.13  31.02 

 119.13  31.02 
25.Other current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt from
    Others  -    444.41 
Unclaimed deposits  57.98  94.54 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings  9.69  34.64 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings from 
    Key Management Personnel  9.79  20.84 
    Relatives of Key Management Personnel  160.97  98.81 
    Others  113.90  211.04 
Other payables 
    Statutory dues payable  113.39  120.05 
    Advances from customers  1,427.45  169.91 
    Employee related  payables  502.23  439.25 
    Unpaid dividend  29.41  0.30 
    Others Current Liabilities  809.98  839.09 

 3,234.80  2,472.89 
26.Provisions (Current) 

    Provision for compensated absences  105.67  94.83 
 105.67  94.83 
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Particulars
For the year ended  

March 31, 2020
`

For the year ended  
March 31, 2019

`
27. Revenue from operations

Sale of products (Refer Note (i) below)  24,868.90  35,923.58 
Other operating revenues (Refer Note (ii) below)  97.71  154.10 
Total  24,966.61  36,077.68 
(i) Sale of products comprises
     Manufactured goods
     Sodium Hydrosulphite  7,052.87  10,428.79 
     Liquid Sulphur Dioxide  203.98  113.39 
     Sodium Formate Sulphoxilate   0.01  -   
     Recovery Salts  497.65  430.82 
     Power (Units in Lakhs)  17,107.10  24,230.44 
     Coal Trading  -    711.52 
     Miscellaneous Sales  7.29  8.63 
Total - Sale of manufactured goods  24,868.90  35,923.58 
Total - Sale of products  24,868.90  35,923.58 

(ii)Other operating revenue comprises
     Sales- Scrap  24.63  21.17 
     Export Incentive  10.52  32.50 
     Insurance Claims  -    10.46 
     Rent Received  24.00  24.00 
     Miscellaneous Income  38.56  65.97 
Total - Other operating revenues  97.71  154.10 

28. Other income
Interest Income
    Deposits  22.50  26.29 
     Interest on loans and advances given  63.26  72.52 
Dividend Income
    Non Current Investments  128.52  124.26 
    Net gain fair value of investments  -    7.56 
    Gain on exchange rate fluctuations  0.67  -   
Rent received  40.18  37.69 
   Unclaimed credits written back  -    2.18 
   Prior period items  -    10.94 
   Profit on sale of asset  345.46  -   
Total  600.59  281.42 

29. Cost of materials consumed
Materials Consumed
   Opening Stock  4,660.34  5,839.32 
   (Add) Purchases  14,048.06  22,817.47 
   (Less) Closing Stock  (2,431.41)  (4,660.34)
   Cost of Material Consumed  16,277.00  23,996.42 
   Net Materials consumed  16,277.00  23,996.42 
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Particulars
For the year ended  

March 31, 2020
`

For the year ended  
March 31, 2019

`

Cost of Material Consumed
    Sodium Formate  1,738.93  2,190.73 
    Caustic Soda Lye  1,022.85  1,285.76 
    Sulphur  408.10  642.68 
    Coal consumed  12,228.91  18,719.70 
    CR Sheets consumed  407.07  450.63 
    Others  471.13  706.92 
Total  16,277.00  23,996.42 

30. Purchase of stock-in-trade - Traded goods
Non-cooking coal  -    777.59 

 -    777.59 
31. Changes in inventories of finished goods

Opening Balance
Finished goods  57.90  43.36 

 57.90  43.36 
Closing Balance
Finished goods  156.37  57.90 

 156.37  57.90 
Total changes inventories of finished goods  (98.47)  (14.54)

32. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus  2,450.60  2,246.61 
Contribution to provident and other funds  154.50  154.34 
Staff/ workmen welfare expenses  289.71  437.11 

 2,894.81  2,838.06 
33. Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowings  672.04  672.94 
Bank Processing charges  44.88  61.23 

 716.92  734.16 
34. Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  599.01  599.68 
 Amortization of Intangible assets  9.99  14.91 
 Depreciation on Investment property  2.74  2.74 

 611.74  617.33 
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Particulars
For the year ended  

March 31, 2020
`

For the year ended  
March 31, 2019

`
35. Other expenses

 Consumption of stores and spare parts  117.95  115.27 
 Power and fuel  3,061.28  3,295.89 
 Rent   35.85  29.40 
 Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  44.03  51.58 
 Repairs and maintenance - Machinery  979.86  755.18 
 Repairs and maintenance - Others   113.74  117.22 
 Insurance  152.85  81.04 
 Rates and taxes  305.85  486.46 
 Communication   22.95  27.60 
 Travelling and conveyance   38.24  68.81 
 Printing and stationery  16.99  15.30 
 Freight and forwarding   63.41  62.18 
 Sales commission   27.93  27.23 
 Business promotion   8.92  8.55 
 Legal and professional   9.36  22.41 
 Fees  500.70  210.20 
 Payments to auditors   10.70  10.70 
 Bad trade and other receivables written off  -    71.58 
 Prov for Bad & Doubtful Debts   -    26.57 
 Long pending advances written off  5.62  13.98 
 Net loss on foreign currency transactions   11.98  9.14 
 Prior period items (net)   4.10  -   
 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  18.93  6.03 
 Investment Maintenance Expenses  0.47  0.06 
 Bank Processing charges  0.00  0.10 
 Miscellaneous expenses   232.87  297.40 
 Loss on fair value of investments (net)  41.39  -   
 Total  5,825.97  5,809.88 

35(a) Payments made to auditors comprises 
As auditors - Statutory audit  10.70  10.70 

 10.70  10.70 
35(b)Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

 i. Gross amount required to be spent on Corporate 
Social Responsibility during the year  38.59  44.66 

 ii.  Amount spent during the year on 
     (i) Doctor and Nurse fees  4.95  4.62 
     (ii) Purchase of medicines  0.63  1.41 
     (iv)Desilting and strengthning of Bunds etc.,  8.58  -   
      (v) Distribution of Boiled Ponni Rice - Lock Down Period  4.77  -   

 18.93  6.03 
iii. Amount unspent during the year on  19.67  38.62 

*  During the year the board could not spend 2% of its average profit for the last three years since the  
    managerial resources is in the process of exploring the CSR projects which meet the board policy  
    and statutory requirements
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Particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2020
`

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2019

`

36.   Income tax expense

 (a) Income tax expense
      Current tax

         Current tax on profits for the year  7.31  610.40 
         Adjustments for current tax of prior periods  -  91.59 
Total current tax expense  7.31  701.99 
Deferred tax
    Deferred tax adjustments  (291.64)  (64.03) 
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)  (291.64)  (64.03) 
Income tax expense  (284.33)  637.97 
b) The income tax expense for the year can be  
     reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operations  (660.77)  1,600.21 
Income tax expense calculated at 34.944%  
(2018-19: 34.944%)  7.31  559.17 

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in 
determining taxable profit:
     Effect of change in tax rate  -    - 
     Dividend income from equity instruments    
     exempt u/s 10(34)  (40.09)  (43.42) 

     Deductions u/s 80IA  -    - 
     Expenses Disallowable u/s 14A  (9.36)  (43.42) 
     CSR expenditure  5.91  2.11 
     Effect of expenses that are not deductible in  
     determining taxable profit  (248.08  (163.52) 

         Income tax expense  (284.33)  637.97 
c)  Income tax recognised in other comprehensive  
     income
Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  1.92  (70.55) 
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  1.92  (70.55) 

       d)  Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in 
relation to:

Opening 
balance

Recognised in 
profit or loss

 Recognised 
in OCI 

 Closing 
balance 

Property, plant, and equipment and 
Intangible Assets  (661.40)  83.72  -    (577.69)

Expenses allowable on payment basis 
under the Income Tax Act  186.56  (29.74)  1.92  158.74 

Remeasurement of financial 
instruments under Ind AS  122.92  (12.91)  -    110.01 

On Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  9.28  -    -    9.28 
On Un-absorbed losses  -    250.57  -   250.57

Total  (342.64)  291.64  1.92  (49.09)
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       e) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2019
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in 
relation to:

 Opening 
balance 

 Recognised in 
profit or loss 

 Recognised 
in OCI 

 Closing 
balance 

Property, plant, and equipment and 
Intangible Assets  (612.44)  (48.96)  -    (661.40)

Expenses allowable on payment basis 
under the Income Tax Act  150.77  106.35  (70.55)  186.56 

Remeasurement of financial instruments 
under Ind AS  125.56  (2.64)  -    122.92 

On provision for Bad & Doubtful debts  -    9.28  -    9.28 

Total  (336.12)  64.03  (70.55)  (342.64)

37.  Earnings per share

Particulars For the year Ended 
31.03.2020

For the year Ended 
31.03.2019

 Profit for the year attributable to owners of the 
Company  (376.44)  962.24 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding  50,31,909.00  50,31,909.00 

Basic earnings per share (Rs)  (7.48)  19.12 
Diluted earnings per share (Rs)  (7.48)  19.12 

38.	 Turnover

Particulars

For the period  
Ended 31.03.2020

For the year Ended 
31.03.2019

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

CHEMICAL DIVISION - MFG:
Sodium Hydrosulphite  9,867  7,052.87  11,777  10,428.79 
Liquid Sulphur Dioxide  907  203.98  518  113.39 
Sulphoxilates  -    0.01  -    -   
Recovery Salts  2,662  497.65  2,066  430.82 
Others  -    7.29  -    8.63 
WIND MILLS
Power (Units in Lakhs)  207  747.95  239  856.88 
POWER DIVISION: MFG *
Power (Units in Lakhs)  2,730  16,359.16  4,022  23,373.56 
Coal Trading  -    -    13,302  711.52 

 24,868.90  35,923.58 
Sales are inclusive of Excise Duty and Education Cess and net of Sales Returns & Discount
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39.	 Consumption of Raw Materials:

Particulars

PROVISIONAL

For the period  
Ended 31.03.2020

For the year Ended 
31.03.2019

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
(`)

CHEMICAL DIVISION :
Sodium Formate  6,214  1,738.93  6,997  2,190.73 
Caustic Soda Lye  2,619  1,022.85  3,040  1,285.76 
Sulphur  4,852  408.10  5,222  642.68 
Others  1,588  249.98  1,760  429.64 
C R Sheets  757  407.07  860  450.63 
POWER DIVISION
Coal  2,43,413  12,228.91  3,57,621  18,719.70 

 16,055.85  23,719.15 
The above consumption does not include the following produced internally for captive consumption  
Liquid Sulphur Di-oxide  8,266 (2019 - 9,535) tonnes 

40. 	Capacities and Production:
Capacity per annum Opening Stock Production Closing Stock
Licenced 
(Tonnes)

Installed 
(Tonnes)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
`

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Quantity 
(Tonnes)

Value 
`

CHEMICAL DIVISION:
Sodium Hydrosulphite  10,000  10,000  37  23.69  9,980  150  94.66 
(Enhanced)  (5)  (2.72)  (11,809)  (37)  (23.69)
Liquid Sulphur Di-oxide  4,950  4,950  26  3.76  9,241  94  12.46 

 (138)  (17.32)  (9,941)  (26)  (3.76)
Sulphoxilates  2,000  2,000  -    -    -    -    -   
(Enhanced)  (1)  (0.65)  -    -    -   
Recovery Salts  297  21.37  2,729  365  23.82 

 (66)  (5.33)  (2,297)  (297)  (21.37)

Drum Plant  2,484  9.09  1,49,194  8,534  25.43 
Packing Drums in all sizes 500 drums per day #  (6,780)  (17.35)  (1,63,701)  (2,484)  (9.09)
POWER DIVISION:
Generated units in lacs * 63.5 mw 63.5 mw  3,180 

 (4,657)
WINDMILLS: 16.5 mw 16.5 mw 209 
Generated units in lacs @ (242)

	  *The above production of units generated includes 	 308 	  lac units (2019-422) utilised for captive consumption
	 #The above production of drums includes  	  1,43,144 	  drums (2019- 1,67,997) utilised for captive consumption
 	 @ The above production of units generated includes 	 55 	  lac units (2019-58) utilised for captive consumption
	 (Figures in brackets indicate those for previous year. Installed capacities are as certified by the Management.)		
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41.  Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis:

Particulars
for the Year Ended 

March 31, 2020
`

for the Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

`

 Raw Materials  1,587.68  4,435.74 
 1,587.68  4,435.74 

42.  Earnings in foreign currency
 FOB Value of Exports  969.37  2,915.37 

 969.37  2,915.37 

43.  Expenditure in Foreign Currency on travel
 Travel Expenses  -    3.42 

 -    3.42 

44.  Value of Raw Materials, Spares and Components consumed:

Particulars
Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019

Percentage (%) ` Percentage (%) `

(i)  Raw Materials
      Imported 63  10,056.54 51  12,031.32 
      Indigenous 37  5,999.31 49  11,687.83 

100  16,055.85 100  23,719.15 
(ii) Spares and Components
      Imported 2  7.53 33  209.73 
      Indigenous 98  313.56 67  420.89 

100  321.09 100  630.62 

Particulars
For the year Ended 

31.03.2020
`

For the year Ended 
31.03.2019

`

45. Managerial Remuneration:
 Salary, Allowances and Commission *  459.90  423.55 

Contribution to Providend Fund & Group 
Gratuity Fund * *  31.82  30.68 

Perquisities  189.01  66.15 
 680.73  520.39 

   *  Does not include an amount of  ̀  (-)  97.50 lakhs /- (2019 - ̀  (-) 15.90 lakhs) towards  actuarial 
valuation of earned leave entitlement and not  actually drawn by the Managerial Persons.

 **  Does not include an amount of   ` (-) 2,.90 lakhs (2019- ` (-) 40.,92 lakhs ) towards actuarial 
valuation of Gratuity entitlement and not  actually drawn by the Managerial Persons.
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46. Disclosure of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure
The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:			 
As on March 31, 2020

Liabilities Assets Net overall 
exposure on 
the currency 
- net assets / 
(net liabilities)

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net liability 
exposure on 
the currency

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net asset 
exposure on 
the currency

USD -  -   -  -    -    -   -
EUR  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
In INR -  -   -  -    -    -   -

As on March 31, 2019
Liabilities Assets Net overall 

exposure on 
the currency 
- net assets / 
(net liabilities)

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net liability 
exposure 

on the 
currency

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged 
using 

derivatives

Net asset 
exposure on 
the currency

USD  59,61,550  -    59,61,550  -    -    59,61,550 
EUR  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
in INR  42,06,64,022 -  -    42,06,64,022  -    -    42,06,64,022 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis	 					   

Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major 
foreign currencies may impact the Company’s revenues from its operations. Any weakening 
of the functional currency may impact the Company’s cost of imports. The foreign exchange 
rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate 
exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign 
exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management’s assessment of the 
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only 
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the 
period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign 
exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the 
exposure during the year.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for 
both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating 
rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the 
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or 
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and 
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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The 25 basis point interest rate changes will impact the profitability by INR __ Lakhs for the year 
(Previous INR __ Lakhs)

Credit risk management
Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a 
customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to 
credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its financing/ investing 
activities, including deposits with banks and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has 
no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure is the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with 
banks, trade receivables, margin money and other financial assets excluding equity investments. 

(a) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit 
evaluation policy for each customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer 
is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by 
either bank, guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per 
simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables 
using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate 
provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher 
risk. 

(b) Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank deposits

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is 
generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions, who 
have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved financial institutions/ counterparty. 
Investments primarily include bank deposits, etc. These bank deposits and counterparties have 
low credit risk. The Company has standard operating procedures and investment policy for 
deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in bank deposits, debt securities and 
restricts the exposure in equity markets.

Offsetting related disclosures

Offsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the multiple banking agreement is 
available only to the bank in the event of a default. Company does not have the right to offset in 
case of the counter party’s bankruptcy, therefore, these disclosures are not required.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective 
of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available 
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for use as per requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, which 
carry minimal mark to market risks. The Company also constantly monitors funding options 
available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative 
financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company 
can be required to pay.

March 31, 2020  Due in 1st year  Due in 2nd to 
5th year 

 Due after 5th 
year 

 Carrying 
amount 

Trade payables  2,675.70  -    -    2,675.70 
Other financial liabilities  119.13  -    -    119.13 

 2,794.83  -    -    2,794.83 

March 31, 2019  Due in 1st year  Due in 2nd to 
5th year 

 Due after 5th 
year 

 Carrying 
amount 

Trade payables  6,847.27  -    -    6,847.27 
Other financial liabilities  31.02  -    -    31.02 

 6,878.28  -    -    6,878.28 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not 
measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required): Nil Nil

47. Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development  
       (MSMED) Act, 2006 are as under

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year*  24.68  6.85 
(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the  
     appointed date during the year  -    -   

(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act  -    -   
(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, as per the agreed terms  -    -   
(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid  -    -   
  * There are no micro, small and medium enterprises to whom the company owes dues which are   outstanding for more  
     than 45 days at the Balance Sheet date, computed on unit wise basis. 
** The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information  
    available with the Company.
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48.  Commitments, contingent assets and contingent liability

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`

Contingent Liability

    Unexpired letter of credit  -    4,694.49 

On account of contracts to be executed 28.44 18.97

    Bank guarantees outstanding  214.16  707.85 

    Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts  497.33  497.33 

     -   Excise Duty*  8.02  8.02 

     -   Income tax dispute pending**  625.26  625.26 

     -   Unpaid demand charges***  717.19  603.85 

	 * 	The Company has preferred an appeal before the appellate authorities which is pending.

	 **	The company has preferred a rectification petition before the Assessing Officer and Appeal before the 
Appellate Authority, which are pending. The Company is confident of succeeding the aforesaid appeals 
in view of the fact that most of the issues are already settled in favour of the company by higher judicial 
forum. Out of this said amount Rs 1.07 lakhs (Rs 1.07 lakhs) has been paid under protest.

 *** The Company has filed a petition in the Honourable High Court of Madras against The Tamil Nadu 
Generation and Distribution Corporation Ltd., (TANGEDCO) to forebear them from demanding and 
collecting separate demand charges and energy charges as tariff for start-up power and to charge 
only energy charges and to refund the amount already collected on this account. The Company also 
filed a petition in the honourable High Court of Madras praying to grant an order of Interim Stay of all 
further proceedings in the matter filed in the original petition including by way of subsequent current 
consumption bills in so far as it relates to charges for start-up power. The Honourable High Court 
of Madras vide its Order dated 8th November, 2013 has passed an Order of Interim Stay in relation 
to charges for start-up power on the condition that the Company pays 50% of demand for start-up 
charges until further orders. Pursuant to the order the Company has been paying 50% of the demand 
for start-up charges on all the current consumption bills from October 2013 bill onwards. The balance 
50% unpaid demand charges is not provided for in the Books of Accounts on account of the Interim 
Stay.
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49.  Operating Segments
	 The business of the Company falls under five segments i.e., (a) Chemical; (b) Power;  
	 (c) Biomass; (d) Windmill; and (e) Others in accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments”  
	 and segment information is given below:

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`
i. Segment Revenue

a. Chemical  8,353.79  11,273.46 
b. Power  15,612.91  23,386.31 
c. Biomass  0.58  0.90 
d. Windmill  482.76  576.73 
e. Others  39.09  34.31 
Total  24,489.12  35,271.70 
Less: Inter- Segment Turnover  1,078.07  1,081.41 
Income from operations (Net)  25,567.19  36,353.11 

    ii. Segment Results
a. Chemical  (359.84)  1,304.18 
b. Power  (57.83)  531.64 
c. Biomass  (172.20)  (193.72)
d. Windmill  406.34  472.72 
e. Others  25.39  (3.52)
Total  (158.13)  2,111.30 
Finance cost  716.92  734.16 
Other unallocable expenditure net of un-allocable income  214.28  223.07 
Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations  (660.77)  1,600.21 
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  (660.77)  1,600.21 

iii. Segment Assets
a. Chemical  33,618.48  8,772.87 
b. Power  13,469.58  41,224.49 
c. Biomass  2,674.13  3,246.23 
d. Windmill  3,224.60  3,002.37 
e. Others  536.33  528.41 
Total assets  53,523.12  56,774.36 

iv. Segment Liabilities
a. Chemical  5,425.99  6,264.54 
b. Power  7,295.31  9,143.75 
c. Biomass  121.20  122.71 
d. Windmill  120.57  116.57 
e. Others  17.86  24.12 
Total liabilities  12,980.92  15,671.70 

   v. Capital Employed (Segment Assets less Segment Liabilities)
a. Chemical  28,192.50  2,508.33 
b. Power  6,174.27  32,080.74 
c. Biomass  2,552.92  3,123.51 
d. Windmill  3,104.03  2,885.80 
e. Others  518.47  504.28 
Total Capital Employed  40,542.20  41,102.66 
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        Disclosure relating to geographical area of operation				  
The manufacturing facilities of the Company is situated in India and no non-current assets 
are held outside India. The exports of the company are less than 10% of the total turnover 
and accordingly, no disclosure in respect of revenue from external customers based on 
geographical location is provided.	

50.  Operating lease arrangements 

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

`
As Lessor

 The Company has entered into operating lease 
arrangements for certain surplus facilities. The leases are 
cancellable at the option of either party to lease and may 
be renewed based on mutual agreement of the parties. 

 40.18  37.69 

Total lease income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
As Lessee					   
The Company has entered into operating lease 
arrangements for certain facilities. The leases are 
cancellable at the option of either party to lease and 
may be renewed based on mutual agreement of the 
parties. 

 71.85  65.40 

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss

51.  Government Grants
       The details of Government Grants received by the Company are as follows :

 Duty drawback on exports  10.52  32.50 
52.  Investment Property
 Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties

Rental income  32.83  30.75 
   Direct operating expenses from property that generated  
   rental income  -    -   

   Direct operating expenses from property that did not  
   generate rental  -    -   

   Depreciation  1.10  1.10 
Fair Value of investment property
   Land  1,147.54  1,147.54 
   Building  46.94  49.69 

53.  Financial Instruments							     
	 Capital management							     
	 The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue 

as going concern, while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the 
debt and equity balance.   				  

	 The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans 
and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met 
through equity, long-term borrowings and other short-term borrowings.  	
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	 For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.	

Gearing Ratio: March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Debt  828.03  903.32 
Less: Cash and bank balances  122.33  622.33 
Net debt  705.71  280.99 
Total equity  41,560.04  42,001.38 
Net debt to equity ratio (%) 1.70% 0.67%

       Categories of Financial Instruments

Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost
    Non-current investments  21,916.84  21,916.84 
    Other non-current financial assets  542.39  522.43 
    Trade receivables  8,616.55  7,906.16 
    Cash and cash equivalents  122.33  622.33 
    Bank balances other than above  29.41  71.01 
    Other financial assets  91.37  100.54 
b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through  
    profit or loss (FVTPL)
    Investments  84.46  101.36 
Financial liabilities 
a. Measured at amortised cost
    Borrowings (Long term)  828.03  903.32 
    Other Non Current financial liabilities  331.63  350.55 
    Borrowings (short term)  5,441.39  4,565.89 
    Trade payables  2,675.78  6,847.34 
    Other financial liabilities  119.13  31.02 
b. Mandatorily measured at fair value  
    through profit or loss (FVTPL)  Nil  Nil 

	 Financial risk management objectives						    
	 The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic 

and international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the 
operations through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude 
of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other 
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

	 The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using natural hedging financial 
instruments to hedge risk exposures.  The Company does not enter into or trade financial 
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

	 Market risk							     
	 Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash 

flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company’s 
activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange 
rates.
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54   Related party disclosure                 
	 a) 	 List of parties having significant influence	
		  Subsidiary company	 :	TCP Hotels Private Limited 	
		  Associate company	 :	Mills Limited
      				   Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Limited
				    Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited
		  Key management personnel (KMP)	 :	Shri V.R.Venkataachalam, Managing Director 
       			   Shri V. Rajasekaran, Executive Director 
		  Companies in which KMP are interested	:	Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited 
Relatives of KMP
	 The following persons are related to Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Managing Director,as stated:
	 Shri V. Sengutuvan,                                         Son
	 Smt V. Samyuktha                                           Daughter  
	 Smt. T. Amudha,                                              Sister      
	 Smt. M. Radha                                                 Sister 
	 Smt. Dr. R. Andal,                                            Sister
Entities in which relatives of KMP exercise significant influence : TVRRS Enterprises
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b)  Transactions during the year

S.No Nature of transactions
 Amount 

 2019-20
`

 2018-19 
`

1 TCP Hotels Private Limited
   Advances  (15.10)  (24.26)
   Rent paid  36.00  36.00 

2 Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited

   Advances 1.09   (7.66)

3 Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Limited

   Sale of Power  509.99  470.21 
4 Binny Mills Limited

   Advances  0.01  4.69 
   Purchases  8.82  7.57 

5 TVRRS Enterprises
   Rent Paid  12.00  12.00 

6 Mr. V.R. Venkataachalam
   Interest on Unsecured loans - Received  9.79  6.64 
   Interest on Unsecured loans - Paid  20.84  1.91 
   Fixed Deposit  -    (0.64)
   Unsecured Loans received  33.13  71.81 
   Interest paid on deposits  -    0.04 
   Remuneration & Employee Benefits  298.64  283.20 

7 Mr. V. Rajasekaran
   Remuneration & Employee Benefits  382.10  237.19 

8 Mr. V. Sengutuvan
   Interest on Unsecured loans - Received  8.38  7.96 
   Interest on Unsecured loans - Paid  15.99  - 
   Unsecured Loans received  3.61  3.62 

9 Ms. V. Samyuktha

   Interest on Unsecured loans  5.21  5.07 
   Unsecured Loans received  1.20  1.20 
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c)  Balance outstanding at the year end	

S.No Nature of transactions
 Amount 

 2019-20
`

 2018-19 
`

1 TCP Hotels Private Limited
Advances  (20.12)  (5.03)
Investment in shares  893.25  893.25 

2 Tanchem Imports & Exports Private Limited
Advances  (109.45)  (110.54)

3 Binny Mills Limited
Advances  0.01  0.13 

4 TVRRS Enterprises
Advances  0.66  0.66 

5 Mr. V.R. Venkataachalam
Interest accrued on unsecured loans  9.79  20.84 
Unsecured Loans  65.24  103.23 

6 Mr. V. Sengutuvan
Interest accrued on unsecured loans  8.38  15.99 
Unsecured Loans  35.96  91.37 

7 Ms. V. Samyuktha
Interest accrued on unsecured loans  13.14  7.93 
Unsecured Loans  58.46  57.26 

8 Ms. T. Amudha,
Interest accrued on unsecured loans  5.41  5.40 
Unsecured Loans  60.00  60.00 

9 Ms. M. Radha
Interest accrued on unsecured loans  5.25  19.51 
Unsecured Loans  58.21  58.21 

10 Dr. R. Andal
Interest accrued on unsecured loans  7.22  49.98 
Unsecured Loans  80.00  80.00 

55. Acknowledgement of Balances :

      The Company has obtained confirmation from Banks except in few cases.  
      The balance of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances, Un-secured Loans and
      Trade Payables are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
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56.	 Previous Year Figures have been re-grouped / reclassifed wherever necessary.

57.	 Retirement benefit plans
Defined contribution plans
In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive 
benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees 
and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered 
employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the Provident 
fund.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs. (-) 10.31 lakhs (for the year ended 
March 31, 2019(-) Rs. 167.13 lakhs) represents contribution payable to these plans by the 
Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.	

Defined benefit plans 							     
(a) Gratuity  							     
Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.  In terms of the same, gratuity is 
computed by multiplying last drawn salary (basic salary including dearness Allowance if 
any) by completed years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months 
and again by 15/26.  The Act provides for a vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and 
retirement and a monetary ceiling on gratuity payable to an employee on separation, as may 
be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time.  However, in cases 
where an enterprise has more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, 
interest rate risk and salary risk.

Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate 
determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated in Indian 
Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be 
partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best 
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An 
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability. 

Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future 
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will 
increase the plan’s liability.
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The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Mortality Table IALM(2006-08) Ult. IALM(2006-08) Ult.
Attrition rate 3.5% at all rates 3.5% at all rates
Discount Rate 7.71% p.a 7.71% p.a
Rate of increase in compensation level 3.50% p.a 3.50% p.a
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 3.50% p.a 3.50% p.a

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of 
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the 
employment market.
Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit 
plans are as follows:		

Mortality Table IALM(2006-08) Ult. IALM(2006-08) Ult.
Attrition rate 3.5% at all rates 3.5% at all rates
Current service cost  20.57 28.95
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest expense)

 (58.48)  (57.65)

Components of defined benefit costs 
recognised in profit or loss

 19.97 43.13

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit 
liability comprising:
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during 
the period

 (30.28)  (210.26)

Components of defined benefit costs 
recognised in other comprehensive income

 (30.28)  (210.26)

 (10.31)  (167.13)
The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 
employee benefits expense in profit or loss.
The actuarial gain/ loss on remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in 
other comprehensive income.
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in 
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:		

Present value of defined benefit obligation  783.81 771.76
Fair value of plan assets  (824.53)  (802.16)
Net liability arising from defined benefit 
obligation

 (40.72)  (30.40)

Funded  (40.72)  (30.40)
Unfunded   -     -   

 (40.72)  (30.40)
The above provisions are reflected under ‘Prepaid gratuity (other current liabilities)’ [Refer 
note 15] and  ‘Provision for gratuity (short-term provisions)’ [Refer note 27]	
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year 
were as follows:		

Particulars March 31, 2020
`

March 31, 2019
`

Opening defined benefit obligation  771.76 897.90
Current service cost  20.57 28.95
Interest cost  (58.48) 71.83
Actuarial (gains)/losses  (30.28)  (210.26)
Benefits paid  (10.31)  (16.66)
Closing defined benefit obligation  693.26 771.76

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets 730.83 730.83
Expected return on assets 57.65 57.65
Contributions 30.35 30.35
Benefits paid  (16.66)  (16.66)
Expected return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest expense)  -    -   
Closing fair value of plan assets 802.17 802.17

Sensitivity analysis							     
In view of the fact that the Company for preparing the sensitivity analysis considers the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation which has been calculated using the projected 
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in 
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet. 
(b) Compensated absences
“Company is following the practice of valuing the compensated absence as per Ind AS 19 
“Employee Benefits” based on the leave balance outstanding on the employees account 
on March 31st every year. The payment is done as and when claims are received from 
the employees or on the date of retirement/ relieving from the service of the company. 
The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial 
valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected 
unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the 
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense recognised 
during the year is Rs. 14.55 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 84.55 Lakhs).”

				    As per our report of even date attached
                                             For and on behalf of the board			  For M/s NSR & CO.,
							       Chartered Accountants
							       (FRN No.010522S)

V R Venkataachalam	 V Rajasekaran	 Ravi Selvarajan	 N Sowrirajan
Managing Director	 Executive Director	 Company Secretary	 Proprietor
DIN: 00037524	 DIN: 00037006		  M.No 207820
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